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IN THE OFFICES OF THE GOVERNOR 
Ai"'ID nIE MISSOURI BOARD OF PARDONS Al"JD PARO LE 

Roy Michael Roberts:­
Applicant, 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

V. 

State of Missouri, 
Respondent. 

APPLICATION OF ROY MICHAEL ROBERTS 
TO GOVERNOR MEL CARNAHAN FOR EXECUTIVE CLEMENCY. 

Innocent of the crime for which he was convicted and sentenced to death, applicant Roy 

Michael Roberts applies to Missouri Governor Mel Carnahan for an order granting Roberts 

executive clemency, or, alternatively, either commuting his death sentence to life without parole, 

or staying the execution and convening a board of inquiry. 

Executive clemency exists precisely for cases like this. Governors who have previously 

granted clemency to inmates with claims of innocence did so based on doubt ab~ut guilt. 

Cogcern about the horrible possibility that their state might execute an innocent man forced each 

of these Governors to the same conclusion: mercy must be shown and clemency granted if there 

is any doubt as to guilt. 

"While there is 1guilt for Ronald Monroe, in an execution in this country the test ought not 
be reasonable doubt; th~ test ought to be is there any doubt." - Louisiana Governor 
BuddyRoemer, quoted in, J. Wardlaw & J. Hodge, "Execution Halted by Roemer", New 
OrleansTimes-Picayune, Aug. 17, 1989. 

"I cannot in good conscience erase the presence of a reasonable doubt and fail to employ 
the powy:rs vested in nie as governor to intervene." - Virginia Governor L. Douglas 

.·Wilder, quoted in The Washington Post, Jan. 24, 1992, Sec. D 1 (grant of clemency to 
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"The first question I ask in every case is whether there is any doubt about the individual's 
guilt or innocence. This is the first case since I have been the governor when the answer 
to that question was 'yes' .... I take this action so that all Texans can continue to trust the 
integrity and fairness of our criminal justice system."- Texas Governor George W. Bush, 
Dallas Morning News, Saturday, June 27, 1998, Editorial, Sec. 24A, story Sec. 12A. 
(granting clemency to Henry Lee Lucas). 

"There was more than sufficient evidence to show he was guilty, but there were some 
questions as far as I was concerned. I was able to get some information that I know the 
judges and jurors did not necessarily receive. Some of the evidence came in after the 
trial." - Virginia Governor George F. Allen, quoted in, The New York Times, Nov. 10, 
1996 (commutation of the death sentence of Joseph Payne) . 

. "My decision finally was reached by some slight tinge of doubt about both the 
commission of the crime and the location of the crime.... I'd have to say in the main that 
I lean toward the prosecution side. However, as I mentioned, if there's the slightest 
doubt, I'm reluctant to have a man executed." - Idaho Governor Phil Batt, quoted in, M. 
Trillhaase, "Batt Spares Paradis' Life," The Idaho Statesman, May 25, 1996, p. lA. 

A fair and reasoned examination of the facts of this case must create not just any doubt, but 

reasonable doubt as to Roberts' guilt. We implore Governor Carnahan to have the courage1 to 

exercise his clemency powers in this difficult and troubling case, lest the State of Missouri suffer 

the shame and infamy of executing an innocent man. 

INTRODUCTION 

Roy Roberts was convicted and sentenced to death for his alleged participation in the 

stabbing death of a prison guard, Thomas Jackson, during a July 3, 1983 riot in the state prison in 

We note that there has been considerable criticism by death penalty supporters of 
Governor Camahan's commutation of Darryl Mease's death sentence, following the Pope's 
request for mercy. The Governor's courageous act in commuting Mease's sentence out of 
respect for the Pbpe came at a political price. We fervently hope that fear of additional political 
fall-out will.notpreventGovernor.Camahan from granting clemency in this much more 
deserving case. --·-·- ·- ·· - -

2 
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Moberly, Missouri, the Moberly Training Center for Men.2 Roberts was never accused of 

stabbing Jackson. Roberts was accused and convicted based on testimony that identified Roberts 

as the person who restrained Jackson during the riot while other inmates stabbed and murdered 

Jackson. The murder occurred in the midst of the bedlam and confusion caused by over thirty 

rioting inmates. Roy Roberts has always maintained his innocence. 

All of the surviving guards, that could identify who stabbed Jackson, identified Rodney 

Carr as the stabber. Carr was convicted of capital murder but received a sentence of life 

imprisonment, rather than death. Another inmate, Robert Driscoll, was also convicted and 

sentenced to death for stabbing Jackson, but Driscoll's conviction was reversed in 1995 after it 

was discovered that the prosecution had misled the jury into believing that the dead guard's 

blood was on Driscoll's knife, when in fact no such blood was present. See Driscoll v. Delo, 71 

F.3d 701 (8th Cir. 1995). Driscoll has yet to be retried for the crime. Thus, Roberts is the only 

person under sentence of death for the crime, even though he is the least culpable, even under the 

State's version of the evidence. This disproportionality pales in comparison, however, to that 

which arises if, as we contend, Roberts is indeed innocent of the crime. 

Roberts' claim of innocence is supported by three main points. First, the initial 

statements of all the eyewitnesses against Roberts at trial failed to describe or mention Roberts 

as being near Officer Jackson, much less holding Jackson while he was stabbed. The failure of 

2 Roy Roberts was originally sent to prison as punishment for an armed robbery 
conviction in 1979. A columnist for the St. Louis Post-Dispatch, Bill McClellan, recently 
interviewed a man who claimed to have committed that robbery, Carl Harris. After reading the 
robbery trial transcript, McClellan concluded in an article published on February 21, 1999, that 
Roberts may well have been wrongly imprisoned in the first instance. 

3 



This document is housed in the Capital Punishment Clemency Petitions (APAP-214) collection in the M.E. Grenander 
Department of Special Collections and Archives, University Libraries, University at Albany, SUNY. 
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the eyewitnesses to identify Roberts initially raises grave doubts about their later testimony 

against him. Roberts, a 300 pound behemoth, should have been impossible to miss while 

allegedly restraining Jackson in a headlock and crushing him against a wall and door frame as 

Jackson was repeatedly stabbed. Despite the glaring omission of any identification of Roberts 

by each of the eyewitnesses against him in their initial statements, Roberts' counsel failed to 

cross examine all but one of those eyewitnesses on that omission at trial. The negligence of 

appointed counsel thus precluded the jury from learning that the eyewitness identifications of 

Roberts, the only evidence against him, were thoroughly suspect. 

Second, no physical evidence ties Roberts to the bloody scene of Jackson's death, where 

Roberts' allegedly restrained Jackson in a headlock while he was stabbed in the eye, heart and 

abdomen. Though the guards were on the lookout for bloody clothes, and indeed confiscated 

such clothes from Robert Driscoll, Roberts' clothes were scrutinized after the riot, but were not 

confiscated because they were not bloody. 

Third, on February 19, 1999, to prove his innocence, Roy Roberts took a polygraph (lie 

detector) test, administered by a well-respected, retired Kansas City police officer/polygrapher. 

Despite being under the stress of a warrant for execution, Roberts passed the polygraph. His test 

results showed "no deception" in his answers denying involvement in the murder, including 

specific denials that he was holding the victim during the stabbings. 

All attempts at relief in the courts have failed. An appeal for clemency to Governor 

Carnahan is Roberts' only hope. 

4 
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DOUBTS ABOUT ROBERTS' GUILT AND THE POSSIBILITY THAT HE IS 
INNOCENT COMPEL THE EXERCISE OF THE GOVERJ.~OR'S CLE:MENCY 
PO\VERS TO PREVENT ROBERTS' EXECUTION. 

A. THE "EYEWITNESS" IDENTIFICATIONS AT TRIAL ARE 
INHERENTLY UNRELIABLE AND SUSPECT. 

At Roberts trial, four witnesses testified in the guilt phase that Roberts was holding 

Jackson when Jackson was stabbed. Three witnesses were guards, Denver Halley, Robert 

Wilson and Wayne Hess, and one was an inmate, Joseph Vogelpohl. At first blush, four 

eyewitnesses might seem like a strong c~e for guilt. The facts are otherwise. 

As set forth in greater detail below, each of these four witnesses gave initial statements 

shortly after the riot which omitted any mention or description of Roy Roberts. The inability of 

anyone to identify Roberts as the inmate who restrained Jackson in the two weeks following the 

riot is particularly troubling, given Roberts' easily recognized size at the time of 300 pounds. 

Further, and of great significance to the fairness of Roberts' trial, his appointed lawyer, Tom 

Marshall, failed to question these witnesses, save one, about their prior inconsistent statements. 

The jury was led to believe that the eyewitness identifications of Roberts were far more reliable 

and trustworthy than was in fact the case. 

Before addressing the specifics of the eyewitnesses failure to describe or name Roberts. 

initially in their individu.al statements, it is worthwhile to put the scope and extent of the murder 

investigation in perspective by examining the summary report by the Department of Corrections' 

internal affairs investigator, Mark Schreiber. Two weeks after the riot, Schreiber submitted a 17 

page internal inv~stigation report of the murder. That memo does not mention Roy Roberts. The 
' 

report confirms that nobody knows who, if anyone, was holding Jackson while he was being 
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stabbed. The DOC's report on the riot, dated July 18, 1983, is telling in its omission of any 

mention of Roy Roberts, and in its suggestion that hypnosis be used to identify more suspects. 

Schreiber's report concluded that additional participants might not ever be identified, because of 

difficulties in identifying any other assailants of Officer Jackson, other than, of course, those 

mentioned in the Supplemental Report, inmates Driscoll and Carr. Schreiber's conclusion bears 

reprinting in its entirety here, as it underscores the completeness of the investigation to that point, 

makes the candid assessment that no further suspects were likely to be identified, and 

significantly undermines the credibility of the subsequent identification testimony against 

Roberts: 

Conclusion 
Every investigative effort has been and is being made to determine the identity of and to 
bring to justice the individual or individuals who are responsible for the death of CO/I 
Thomas Glen Jackson and the subsequent assaults upon other correctional officers at 
MTCM on July 3, 1983. Due to the number of inmates who were intoxicated and who, to 
varying degrees participated in the riot, the full extent of the number and identity of those 
involved may never be known. The greatest obstacle which has hampered ongoing 
investigation thus far has been the inability of potential eyewitnesses to remember 
anything as to the identity of the officers' assailants. This is not to say that the officers 
have not honestly made such attempts. The hard facts are that when one is fighting for 
life itself there is no time to sit down and take notes. 

It was suggested by Sgt. L. Dale Belshe that perhaps it might be beneficial if the officers 
involved were to be placed under hypnosis if they are willing. I feel that such an 
investigative procedure might be of benefit. Sgt. Belshe has indicated that he is willing to 
make the arrangements. 

A continued effort will be made to identify any individual who was involved in the acts 
of violence which took place on July 3, 1983. The important factor in an investigation of 
this magnitude is not who or what agency receives the credit but that agencies working 
together as a single effective investigative unit do all that is possible within the realm of 
police sc~~nce to solve the problem for the benefit of all concerned. 

i 
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Memo to W. David Blackwell from Mark S. Schreiber, dated July 18, 1983, Re: Supplemental 

Investigation - MTCM Incident of July 3, 1983, at p. 17 (emphasis added). Memo Attached as 

Exhibit A. 

Roberts has never denied that he was involved in the riot and engaged in fisticuffs with 

prison personnel. Officer Kroeckel testified that he and Roberts fought in a fist-fight in the 

control center, Trial Transcript ("TT") at 243-45. This Roberts did, along with 20-40 other 

inmates, many of whom have presumably served their sentences and are now walking the streets 

of Missouri. See TT at 240 (testimony of Officer Kroeckel that 20-30 inmates were fighting in 

the control center); id. at 317 (testimony of Officer Hess that 25-40 inmates involved); id. at 3 72 

(testimony of Officer Humphrey that 30-35 inmates involved). 

What Roberts did not do was hold Officer Jackson while he was being stabbed and 

thereby prevent Jackson's escape from whatever murderous inmate was stabbing him. Many 

inmates testified that Roberts did not restrain Jackson. They are not alone. Officer Kroeckel 

acknowledged that Roberts fought with him, and agreed that he did not see Roberts holding 

Jackson. TT 245. 

The testimony of four people convicted Roy Roberts of the crime for which he is 

sentenced to die. Examination of their initial statements and comparison to each person's trial 

testimony reveals how radically different the trial testimony is. Clearly, the witnesses in this 

case got their story "straight" over time and aimed it directly at Roy Roberts. Such "evolving" 

testimony is inherently suspect and raises serious doubts of Roberts' guilt. 

) -

Captain Denver Halley was the ranking officer during the riot. He testified at trial that 

from a foot away through the glass window, TT 254, he saw Roberts hold Jackson "by the arm 
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and also by the hair of the head and keeping him right up against the door casing." TT 256. 

Halley testified that "while Roberts was holding him, I would see Jackson jerking and blood 

getting all over him." TT 257. Halley further testified that when Halley attempted to rescue 

Jackson, Roberts let go of Jackson to hit Halley, and thereafter, Roberts re-took his hold on 

Jackson. TT 257-58. Excerpts of Halley's trial testimony are attached as Ex. B. 

After the riot, Halley wrote a report that night. TT 269; Transcript of Rule 27.26 Motion 

Hearing ("PCR TR") at 29. Excerpts of Halley's PCR TR testimony are attached as Ex. C. 

Halley's signed report, dated 3:17 a.m. on July 4, 1983, is attached as Ex. D (originally marked 

as PCR TR Ex. 11 ). At the time of the riot, Halley knew Roberts. PCR TR 36, Ex. C. 

Moreover, he later described Roberts as standing out "like a red rose in the Sahara desert." 

Deposition of Denver Halley in the Robert Driscoll case at 9, excerpt attached as Ex. E. 

Despite Roberts' great size and the specificity oflater trial testimony, Halley failed to 

mention Roberts in his initial statement on July 4. Ex. D. Halley identified only a mob of 

inmates, no individuals, and stated that "they" were holding him. Id. 

They [Goodin and Kroeckel] arrived at the steps leading out of the wing with this inmate, 
and he went to hollering and [at] that time approximately 35 or maybe 40 inmates came 
running to us. They grabbed Officer Tom Jackson first and had him up against the door, 
and approximately, I would say, 12 or 14 inmates were trying to come out into the 
Rotunda. Officer Goodin, Officer Wilson, Lt. Kroeckel, and myself -- Captain Halley -­
we went to fighting these inmates. a number of them were armed with iron bars and 
knives. I attempted to help Officer Jackson get away from the inmates. Th'ey were 
holding him and during this procedure, I was knocked down twice, plus was hit in the 
arm with a pipe. I heard Officer Jackson holler and I finally managed to drag him out. 
He was bleeding profusely and I dragged Officer Jackson across the Rotunda and knew at 
that time that he was dying. 

Ex. D, Statement
1
ofDenver Halley dated July 4, 1983 (emphasis added). 

8 
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Sixteen days later and two days after DOC Internal Affairs investigator Mark Schreiber 

submitted his report, Ex. A, Halley submitted an investigation report identifying Roberts for the 

first time as "one of the inmates" holding Officer Jackson. Ex. F, Halley statement dated July 

20, 1983. 

Two days after the DOC report acknowledged that no more inmates were likely to be 

identified, Halley selected the biggest and most noticeable inmate to have been in the riot and 

suddenly implicated him as one of the persons holding Roberts. The evolution of Halley's 

testimony had begun. That evolution continued and culminated with Halley's trial testimony, in 

which he stated that Roberts, alone, was holding Jackson. 

Correctional Officer Robert Wilson likewise testified at trial that Roy Roberts held 

Jackson around the neck, TT 296, and that Roberts was the one preventing Jackson from getting 

away. TT 299 (Wilson trial excerpts attached as Ex. G). Wilson's initial statements are far 

different: 

Officer TG Jackson, KF Goodin & DL Kroeckel went in B wing and brought out 
a man who was intoxicated. 

As they was bring the man out the door about 30 t 40 inmates busted out the wing 
door after us. I grabbed one inmate by the head and was hitting him. He came out with a 
knife and cut me on the left hand. Then (S) went for officer T.G. Jackson. At this time 
Officer Humphrey hit him with bat & (S) went down. 

The other inmates drug back into the wing. 
By then I was fighting with anoughter (sic) inmate & the other officers got the 

wing locked down. 

Ex. H, Wilson Statement, dated 2:30 a.m on July 4, 1983. Obviously, there is no mention of 

Roberts in this statement. Nor is there any mention of Roberts in Wilson's next statement, which 

is much more co~plete and states in pertinent part: 

9 
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As they were bringing the drunken inmate out of the wing approximately 35 inmates 
rushed us. Inmate Rodney Carr# 38428 rushed out the door toward myself. I grabbed 
inmate Carr around the neck from behind and started hitting him with my flashlight. He 
pulled a shank and cut me across the left hand freeing himself from my grip. Lunged 
forward approximately 3 feet sticking Officer Jackson in the chest area. At this time 
Officer Hess grabbed inmate Carr and they began to scuffle. Carr got in behind Hess and 
stuck him in the right shoulder. Officer Humphry hit inmate Carr behind the head with a 
ballbat knocking him to the floor. Carr then dropped the shank as he fell. At this time an 
unknown inmate hit me in the right shoulder knocking me to the floor. as I was getting 
up I picked up the shank that Carr had dropped and stuck it in back of my belt. Inmates 
began dragging Carr and other inmates back into the wing giving us enough time to get 
the wing doors shut and locked. Myself, Officer K.roeckel and Halley placed Officer 
Jackson onto a stretcher [illegible] to the prison hospital. Officer Humphry Lt. Kroeckel 
and a inmate accompanied Offi~er Jackson to the hospital. Capt. Halley and a new 
officer by the name of Dillon ran to the administration building to get shotguns and more 
help. Myself, Officer Goodin and Officer Hess stayed back to hold down the house. 
Inmates from all four wings were hollering, breaking glass and preparing to come into the 
Rotunda after us. After approximately 10 minutes Capt. Halley, Officer Dillon and Lt. 
Arney returned with shotguns. The order was given for the inmates to return to their 
cells. Some of them did, most did not! At this time Capt. Halley & Lt. Arney & myself 
began firing into the wings & the inmates ran for their cells. 

Ex. I, Wilson statement, dated July 10, 1983. More than two months later, Wilson's statement 

was virtually the same, still without any reference to Roberts. Ex. J, Report of Officers Merritt 

and Ullery dated September 13, 1983 (previously identified as PCR TR Ex. 6). 

Wilson admitted that he "knew" inmates Carr and Roberts. Ex. K, Robert Wilson 

deposition in Robert Driscoll case at 5-6. Yet despite this knowledge and Roberts' large size, 

Wilson named only Carr and failed to identify Roberts in either of Wilson's initial statements. 

Wayne Hess, too, failed to identify Roberts in his initial statements. He ga·ve two 

statements, one dated July 4, 1983, Ex. L, and another dated July 9, 1983. Ex. M. In the July 4 

statement, Hess stated that "three or four inmates had ahold of his [Jackson'] head and tried to 

pull him back into the wing." Ex. L, p. 3. Hess was "right beside him," but Hess did not know 

any of those inmates. Id. Hess only remembered Carr and affirmatively stated that he did not 

10 
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remember any other inmates that were directly involved in the incident. In the July 9 statement, 

Hess states that "some of the inmates had Jackson in a headlock." Ex. M, p. 2. He then went on 

to say that the next day he had been shown photos of inmates, "one I remember was Carr, I think 

Driscoll, Batey or something like that, and one other I don't remember. I looked at one picture 

of Carr and I stated this was the man who done the stabbing." Ex. M, p.3. 

Hess' failure to identify Roberts in these statements is particularly significant, because 

Prosecutor Finnical admitted in the Rodney Carr trial that Hess was shown a photograph of Roy 

Roberts before Hess went to the line-up on July 4. Ex. N, Hess testimony from trial of Rodney 

Carr. Thus, Hess failed to identify Roberts as an inmate who restrained Jackson in a statement 

made shortly after Hess was shown Roberts' picture on July 4, Ex. L, and again on July 9. Ex. 

M. The prosecution attempted to hypnotize Hess to bolster his memory, Ex. 0 (PCR TR Ex. 3), 

and still he did not identify Roberts. Ex. 0 at 6, 12. Hess could not identify Roberts in Hess' 

initial statements, notwithstanding that he admitted that he knew "Hog" Roberts as the largest 

man in the wing and knew him by that name. Ex. P, Hess' 27.26 testimony at 16-18. 

Nevertheless, Hess' testimony at trial was very specific, alleging that Roberts, a man he 

had "seen around" before and who weighed "about 300 pounds," had Jackson "in a headlock and 

Tom Jackson couldn't get away to defend himself." TT 305. Given these circumstances, Hess' 

trial identification of Roberts is particularly dubious. 

Inmate Joseph Vogelpohl was the only other witness who identified Roberts in the guilt 

phase as the person who restrained Jackson while he was stabbed. Vogelpohl, too, was unable to 

identify Roberts 'initially. In Vogelpohl's initial statement on July 4, 1983, Ex. Q, he totally 

failed to mention Roy Roberts. Despite his later claim to having witnessed Jackson's murder, all 

11 
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he said in his initial statement was that: he'd seen Robert Driscoll assemble a knife in his cell; 

then, while near the rotunda from five feet away he saw Driscoll "punch at" Officer Jackson; and 

finally, he'd returned to his cell, where Driscoll also returned and said to Vogelpohl that Officer 

Jackson "had got stuck." Ex. Q. In his statement Vogelpohl announced that he was making a 

statement so that he wouldn't "take the rap" for the crime. Id. In his subsequent statement to 

Officers Merritt and Ullery on October 3, 1983, Vogelpohl stated that Driscoll and John Bolin 

were the inmates who stated that the inmates should stop the guards from taking Jimmy Jenkins 

out of the wing, and that Bolin said "let's rush them." TT 341. Vogelpohl also wrote a letter to a 

friend, Dewitt Burns, saying that he heard that Ed Ruegg, not Roberts, had held Jackson. TT 

335. 

At trial, however, Vogelpohl's testimony turned on Roberts. First, he stated that Roberts 

had been the person who suggested that the inmates should "rush" the guards. TT 326-27. Then 

he stated that Roberts had stopped Jackson at the wing door, TT 328, and that he had seen 

Driscoll stab Officer Jackson while Roberts held him. TT 329. Excerpts ofVogelpohl's 

testimony is attached as Ex. R. Vogelpohl's evolving testimony should be seen for what it was, 

an attempt to evade "the rap" for being in a riot five feet from the murdered guard, and an 

attempt to curry favor to get paroled early. 

Thus, by the time of trial, the State presented four witnesses in the guilt pha.'se3 who gave 

relatively unambiguous, chilling testimony that placed Roberts at the scene as the one and only 

3 0¥e rebuttal witness in the penalty phase, Michael Dunn, testified that from his 
position in the upper tier of A-wing, he saw Roberts hold Jackson in B-wing, while Driscoll 
stabbed him. TT 696-98. Dunn has since recanted that testimony. See Ex. S, Affidavit of 
Richard S. Hays. 

12 
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person restraining Jackson. The dramatic change in the specificity of these witnesses from the 

time of the riot until trial, in which their stories coalesced and "matured" into adamant certainty 

that Roberts restrained Jackson and was the sole person to do so, by itself creates significant 

questions about Roberts' guilt. The changes in testimony are too dramatic to be believed and 

seem to confirm the rumor that Prosecutor Finnical was out to get "three for one," no matter what 

the cost in terms of integrity or reliability. The questions raised by the changes in testimony 

creates a reasonable inference that the State of Missouri may be intending to execute a man who 

may well be innocent. 

B. NO PHYSICAL EVIDENCE CONNECTS ROY ROBERTS TO THE 
MURDER OF OFFICER JACKSON. 

No physical evidence connects Roy Roberts to the murder of Officer Jackson. It is 

uncontroverted that Roberts did not have a weapon. Despite the extensive amount of blood 

spilled by Officer Jackson, there is no evidence of any blood on Roberts or his clothes. It defies 

belief that Roberts could have restrained Jackson as described by the adverse eyewitnesses, and 

not gotten blood on himself. 

Roberts was described as having Jackson around the neck, TT 296 (testimony of Wilson), 

in a headlock, TT 305 (testimony of Hess), and "by the arm and also by the hair of the head and 

keeping him right up against the door casing." TT 256 (testimony of Halley). The bleeding from 

Jackson was profuse. Halley described it as "while Roberts was holding him, I would see 

Jackson jerking and blood getting all over him." TT 257. The blood was "all over the front and 

side of Jackson's shirt" and was "very, very obvious." TT 258. Halley said that Jackson looked 

like a "butchered hog." TT 281. Jackson's shirt looked like "solid blood." TT 375 (testimony 

13 
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of Officer Humphrey). Given Roberts' supposed close contact with Jackson and the amount of 

spilled blood, Roberts should have been soaked with blood. 

After prison guards quelled the riot, the inmates were locked into their cells. TT 266 

(Halley testimony). Thereafter each room was searched, and the inmates were personally 

searched. TT 267. Robert Driscoll's clothes were collected from his room and analyzed because 

they appeared to be covered with blood. See Driscoll v. Delo, 71 F.3d 701, 707 (8th Cir. 1995) 

(blood analysis conducted on the recovered knives, Officer Jackson's clothes, "and the clothes 

worn by various inmates, including Driscoll, on the night of the riot''). Notably, Roberts' clothes 

were not saved, tested or ever offered into evidence against him. 

The fact that Roberts clothes were not tested or confiscated directly correlates to the 

absence of blood on them. At the time of the riot, Willie Dennis was a major at the Moberly 

prison. On February 20, 1999, Dennis spoke with Roberts' investigator, Richard S. Hays of the 

Federal Defenders of Eastern Washington and Idaho. Major Dennis told Mr. Hays that he 

arrived at the prison within an hour of the death of Officer Jackson and relieved the guards that 

were involved in the initial disturbance. Major Dennis acknowledged that he supervised the 

removal and transfer of inmates from their cells in Wing B who were thought to have been 

involved in the riot. Major Dennis acknowledged that he supervised the removal of Roy Roberts 

from his cell, and that he saw no blood on Roberts. Major Dennis further stated that he would 

have confiscated any article of clothing or other item for evidence, if blood was on it. Affidavit 

of Richard S. Hays, attached as Ex. T. Major Dennis' claim that he was looking for blood on 

clothes is corrobbrated by the record of confiscated clothes in this case. See Driscoll v. Delo, 71 

F.3d at 707. 

14 
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The absence of blood on Roberts' clothes raises serious questions about his participation 

in the murder of Officer Jackson. The likelihood that the witnesses are correct in their 

description of Roberts' alleged restraint of Jackson is highly improbable. 

C. ROY ROBERTS PASSED A POLYGRAPH TEST THAT INDICATED 
"NO DECEPTION" WHEN HE DENIED INVOLVEMENT IN 
JACKSON'S MURDER AND DENIED RESTRAINING JACKSON 
WHILE JACKSON WAS BEING STABBED. 

To prove his innocence, Roy Roberts insisted upon, took and passed a polygraph (or lie 

detector) test on February 19, 1999 at the Potosi Correctional Center while under a warrant of 

execution set for March 10, 1999. Despite the stress involved in taking a test under those 

conditions, Roberts' test results were clear: "no deception" in his denial of involvement in 

Jackson's murder. 

Donald I. Dunlap, A.C. P., administered the polygraph test. Mr. Dunlap retired after 

thirty years with the Kansas City, Missouri Police Department. Dunlap served as a polygrapher 

for the last 24 years of his service with the Kansas City Police Department. He spent nine years 

as a full-time polygrapher, followed by more than 15 years as Chief Polygraphist of the 

department. Since Dunlap's retirement in 1985, he has worked in private practice, presently 

under the name of Don Dunlap & Associates. He is a highly respected polygrapher who has 

continued to work for law enforcement, such as the Benton County Sheriffs Department, as well 

as th<;: Missouri Public Defender's Office, and various private attorneys. His resume is attached 

as Ex. U. 

The polygraph report of the Roberts examination on February 19th is attached as Ex. V. 
j. 

That report reaches the following conclusion: 
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It is the opinion of the polygraphist that deception was not indicated in this person's 
polygraph records when he answered the following questions as indicated: 

1. When Jackson was being stabbed, were you holding him in any way? 
Answer, No. 

2. When Jackson was being stabbed, were you holding him by the hair? 
Answer, No. 

3. Just before Jackson was stabbed, did you pin him against a door casing? 
Answer, No. 

4. While Jackson was being stabbed, did you have any physical contact with 
him? Answer, No. 

Ex. V, Letter Report of Don Dunlap & Associates to Bruce D. Livingston, dated February 20, 

1999, Re: Roy Michael Roberts Polygraph Interview. 

The U.S. Supreme Court recently addressed the admissibility of polygraph evidence in 

the military courts. United States v. Scheffer, 118 S.Ct. 1261 (1998). The Supreme Court 

recognized the trend toward admissibility of such evidence, 118 S.Ct. at 1265-66, though the 

Court declined to recognize a constitutional right to present polygraph evidence t?ased on a lack 

of consensus within the lower courts on the reliability of polygraphs. Id. In dissent, Justice 

Stevens compiled the evidence on the reliability of polygraphs: 

There are a host of studies that place the reliability of polygraph tests at 85% to 
90%. While critics of the polygraph argue that accuracy is much lower, even the studies 
cited by the critics place polygraph accuracy at 70%. Moreover, to the extent that the 
polygraph errs, studies have repeatedly shown that the polygraph is more likely to find 
innocent people guilty than vice versa. Thus, exculpatory polygraphs -- like the one in 
this case -- are likely to be more reliable than inculpatory ones. 

Scheffer, 118 S.Ct. at 1276 (Stevens, dissenting) (footnotes omitted) (emphasis added). Like the 

t . 
defendant in Scheffer, Roberts, too, passed the more reliable polygraph-- an exculpatory one. See 

16 
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Scheffer, 118 S.Ct. at 1276 n.22 (compiling studies that show exculpatory polygraphs to be more 

reliable than inculpatory polygraphs). 

The polygraph that Roberts passed was reliable not only because it was exculpatory, but 

also because the examination was administered by a respected, experienced, former member of 

law enforcement, Don Dunlap. As the chief Polygraphist for the Kansas City Police Department 

for over 15 years, Dunlap's qualifications are impeccable. As a former police officer, Dunlap is 

decidedly unlikely to be inclined to favor an accused guard-killer through questionable 

interpretations of the test results. Dunlap's finding that Roberts passed an exculpatory polygraph 

test is powerful additional evidence that Roberts is innocent of the crime for which he has been 

sentenced to death. 

Clemency proceedings have turned upon polygraph results previously. Virginia 

Governor Douglas Wilder would have granted clemency to Roger Coleman in 1991, had 

Coleman passed a polygraph test. J. Tucker, "May God Have Mercy: A True Story of Crime and 

Punishment," W.W. Norton & Co. (1997), at 280-81, 300-01. When Coleman failed to pass the 

polygraph, Governor Wilder declined to intervene. Id. at 312. Coleman's p<;>lygraph was given 

urider extreme circumstances, hours before his scheduled execution. Id. at 305-14. Though that 

test, which was inculpatory, suffered from more significant reliability concerns than Roberts' 

exculpatory polygraph, it provides precedent for considering polygraph results in making a 

clemency decision. 

Given the greater reliability of Roberts' exculpatory polygraph, one must have serious 

doubts about hist guilt. Roberts' polygraph result strongly supports his claim of innocence and 

provides Governor Carnahan with yet another reason to intervene in this case. 

17 
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CONCLUSION 

In conclusion, Roberts implores Governor Carnahan to stop the execution scheduled for 

March 10, 1999. Roy Roberts deserves clemency, and at least commutation or a board of 

inquiry. The State of Missouri must not proceed with this execution. The possibility that 

Roberts may be innocent is too real. Allowing Missouri's machinery of death to continue to 

operate, wheeling an innocent man on a gurney to the execution chamber in Potosi, is too 

horrible to contemplate -- the ultimate miscarriage of justice. This application for clemency 

raises doubts about Roberts' guilt, significant doubts. Those doubts cry out for Governor 

Camahan's intervention and mercy. Let not Missouri be the State that knowingly executes an 

innocent man. 

We urgently and respectfully request that Governor Carnahan halt the execution of Roy 

Michael Roberts. 

i. 

Federal Defenders of Eastern Idaho and Washington 
Capital Habeas Unit 

By: Bruce D. Livingston 
201 North Main St. 
Moscow, Idaho 83843 
208-883-0180 

Leonard J. Frankel 
Frankel Rubin Bond & Dubin, P.C. 
231 S. Bemiston, Suite 1111 
Clayton, Missouri 63105 
314-725-8000 
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~ :~l~~ho~~ c~ll ~t ~y residence from Dale Riley, A~sistant 
~~=Q==== of ~tl~lt I~scitutions, Zone II. Mr. Riley related to 
;;,.~ :::~:::. :=ct-.·:.een .!.O:CO and 10:30 p.m. on t:hut dat·~ a se=iol!s 
,-::.s:.'.:=b.:nce h~d t:a~:c:1 9lace tJ.t Missouri T=aining Cente:- :o= :-:e:i. 
;i:~~ :-elated that one co=rectio~s officer had been k~ll~d i:1 
t~n iisturb~:;~c and several ochers had been inju=ed. Ri~ey 

re~~asc~j thac ~ re;:a:-t to the instit~::.ion as soon as ;cssibl~ 
to ~ssist in the invastigation . 

..:\':. a~;:::o:d:nat~ly L2:30a.:':1. on July 4, 1983 ~tr. Geo:-:;:e Lac.tear=.:.. 
Assis:~~t ~i=~ctor:, Zona I, and I arrived at the Habcrly i~$t~­
t:.:::·=:; .::lr:d cc:;::.~cted other officials already pr:esenc. r:i t~c 
abse~=~ ~E C~r~ White, S~?erintendcnt, J. H. Jones, Assistant 
S~?~=i~:gn~c~c oE ?r=;ra:n Services, served as Chief Ad~inistr~t~:: 
o~ :te ;~s:it~cion. C9on our: a=rival we were ascorted ta tte 
c!:~:c cf L:. ~ay~o~d ~ewberry, Investigator fo~ t~e instit~::..:.o~. 
s~ve::al ache:: indi~idu~ls unknown to us ~ere located i~ ~:. 
;-:e!:!'Ce:-=·i'S oE:icc <lcca. 

Af:~r a bri~f rcvic~ session 1uring ~hie~ the events of :~2 
di3::.~=~~nce ~cc~ u~~~:cd foe our benefit, t~is inves::.ig~coc 
was i~c:~d~ccd to S;c.L.Dale 8elshe of Trooo_ S. Misso~=i Sta:~ 
H ig~~ar ~at=cl. Sgt. Ualshe is an investigator tor ::he r & I 

.-.-

Di~ision ~E th~ ~at=oL. Also prcscn~ during the int~ta~ ca~tact 
en July~. 1033 ~ere David Blackwell, Directer, Di~isicn o~ 
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~olLo~t~g ~~f ~cc!:"s h.Jd bc~n ~illed er inju=ed in a disc~=~e::c~ 
~~:.c~ :cc~ =~~c~ in housi::g ~::~c #2 a: a~p==x~~~:cly 9:30 
t ·J : J:} !J • ::l • ~ :--. .j :J 1 y 3 • l ') 8 3 . 

( t ) :.h•.!::-:~s G::~:-i Jackson, CO!~ 
cc:..: .J;.;::e l, ~921 

( 2) ::~=~~l-::! ;l.2.y >I.Jt.:;>i:i. 
L:C3: J~!.y 5, !.94·3 

( J l ~ o ~ ·~ ~ ~ ·! c 'f:: ".! H ~ s s • C 0 I I 
CC3: Au;;·~$t. 26, 19·i.; 

~~) ~ote~~ S. ~ilson, CO/I 
CC~: Jt.:ly 12, 19~7 

CS) Dcn•;c:- F. :!alley, csn: 
DOS: :·:ay 9, 1922 

(6} Cor.a.!.'..l :·. ~·::-oec!<:el. CO/!!! 
CC:3: .-\:..;·~:;~:: 23, 1943 

·,.; ..... ··- -': -~ "--~~ _..,. 

Stab wou~d to l~f t ha~~ 

:·tultiplc 'br-:..:iscs to c":!!:~S 

Multiple cruises to a:-:::s a:i:: 
head 

for ~~~plate ~ctail3 of injuries received by the dece3sed or::~c: 
Jackson, ref~:- to det~iled rae~ical re9orts of Fred W.:rd, Cc=c~2=. 
~an~ol~h C=~~:y, ~isscuri ~nd aucopsy ::'epo=~ cf Dr. Jay Dix, ~-~­
?~Ch~lo~:sc, ~he ;er~or:::ed an autopsy on the bo~y of Ja=~s=~. 
For a c~9y oE :he ctcath cercif icacc and an escablished :i~e c~ 
d~ath, ~ai~r to re9orc of Fred Ward. For cc~plece decai!s oE 
what took 9lace during t~e disturbance, refe= .to re~orts oE 
Lt. Ray~o~d ~awber~Y rnvesti;ator, ~TC~. a~d Sgt. L. oa:e 
3~lsh~. !n·..restigaco::-, MSH?. 

:er th~ pu=~o~~s oE ~aking this report as useful cs possi=~e 
regarding t~e investigative assistance rer.de=ed by this i~~es:~­
;atcr. ther~ ~ill be no ~ccem;i: in this re9or~ to disc~ss !.n:c=­
....,,.,,., ,..n ,.;:i.gar,.;;-g the ;n;tial ;-.:..i·....:.,,.,... .. ··~i·c·n :....,.- ""'een o·,- 1 =- ... ~ 
,\i~---• -- -\...&-•• . ••.., - -~"''-' -....-1.a.t... l'I&.&. •·-~ - • .,...---··--

accurately by ocher investig~ci~e 9e::-3cnnel. This ~c~o=a~~~~ 
~ill d2al o~:y with the inves:igative assis:a~ce gi~~n =~ -~ 0 

·,.;r:.:.tc::. 

At a9?roxi~ately 2:00 a.~ .. J~ly 
and t~is investigate= tea~ color 
sustai~ed bv CO/[ ~obcrt ~i!son. 
ti.ens' i:O ~·liison's left. hand. 

4, 1'333, Sg~. L. Dale 3el.st-.e. 
'""' r-- o= •l!..,e ,..,.,.._._.;~ .. p1;0:.ogra9 •• ~ · 1.. ._ .. -··.J-----=> 
?ho:os were take~ o~ Lace:-a-

~t ag9rcxi~ately 2:03 a.m., July 4, 1983, p~ocog=a9hs ~e=e ta~e~ 
of inju::-ies ~us:ained by Lt. Donald .. ~roec~el. ~ho~os ~ece 
also taken of stains a99earing to be blood on the uni:o=~ shi=t 
oE Lt. ~roec~el. 
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~::::==~:~a:.~l~ 2::2 ~-~-.~~otcg=~?hs were ta~an o~ CO/I ~~=:o~ 
H·.:~~~=;;·1. =-~'.;~:):-..:-~·' :iac :i;.i:n-::!rct.:s stains wh!.c!i. a:J::earcd s:o ~c ·0 •-. ... , 

... . - . ·- ---·-
c:i his ·..:;!:.:~:::i. 

rt shc·;l-:: t.;e ::.~:.c:! t:.h.J.r. ~hoto:;=c.9hs could :10t ~c taken of CC/ r 
:'-:~··~=: :·:. !!·::ss .::-:-:.! C~I ! ~!~=old ~- Maupin beca~s~. b'?th ir.d!.·;~c'..;e,l.:; 
~t :~c :i~~ ~~re ~~~cr;cing t=cat=cnc for thc!.r !.nJu=:cs dt 
o~:s:~a hos;!.:313. 

~~ ~;~=~~l~~=~ly 2:~5 a.~ .. July 4, 1983, Sg:. Delshc and =e9c=:.:~ 
i~v~stlgato= :.cc~ ?hoccs=a9hs o~ deceased offic~r Tho~as Gl~~n 
Jackson. T~~ ~~o:=gra?hs we=e taken in the in~ir~ary a: c~~ ~7C~ 
ir.s:~t~:.!~~- ~=- ~r~d Ward, Ccroner. was p:-es~~t: when t~~ 
;hc::g=~~hs ~~re ca~en. Inic!al examination of Officer Jac~s~~· 3 
~cdy by ~=cd ~a=j =cvealod ~ultiple stab woun~s to the left si~c 
=t c::~ i:::cs: ,~~d to the lowe:- left side. There ·..;ere a tc:.al o: 
[o~= ~o~nds f~u~d in the chest and side of the victi~ in!tially. 
A f ifc~ ~c~~~ was located on the inside cor~er of the left eye. 
~er =~~~lee~ dct~ils oE the wo~nds found. refe~ to the xedical 
=c?.:::-C!:i ~-,f '.;i~=d ar.d D:-. Ju"f Di:<, :-t.O. Nu::tcccus 9hotogca~h~ ce 
t~~ vi=:~~'s ~c~y ~ere taken by Sgt. Belshe and this investigate=. 

C~3t~i1 ~e ~~~ t~dy and the victim's clothing and 9ro9crty ~as 
:;:ai.:-::::-~:::0r! :)·:° ~:. :=:uy:7:ocd Ne·.·:be==y, C.ctail.s o.f •.-1hich cart be 
:c~:-:= ~:i ~i~ =~;J=t. !:::. ~ho~ld ce noted that there a9pea=:d 
co ~e ~o dcf~ns~ ~a~~ds an the hands or ar~s of tte vict~~-
. .l.11. ;;:~::t'.j·~=~9:-.s ·.·:::=~ tc.'.-:en ·.-1i::.~ :Codak :!S:mn colcr fil:n wit!"t C:.r1 

s~~c::.rcn!.c flash wa~ used where nec~ssa=y. 

:'·.t ;~~;;::-::.:-:L~.:i~ ~l'f ~ :46 :i.:n., July.;, l'.J33, Sgt. Belshc and ::-e9a=c:.:­
ir.'.'E:!st.:~ .... ::c;= ;c~·:::·:!c.:d to ho1..:3i.:1g unit ;i where the inciC.c~t had 
ca%~n ~ i.?.·::~. E::-::"::~i:-:ation of c:::c area revealed nurr.e?:"o1..:s s:air1s 
u99earin; to ~e blood s~earcd over the e~tire 2A and 23 side of 
the '.-1 .. J'~z:.:ig ~r-.i.:. :-oturidw.. ,\n ·'.J?:"ang'3 towel t'.eavily stai:--.Qd ·11as 
obser1/Crl 0:1 tf"'~n el~==- i:i the a:-ea of the 2 . .:\ wi~g· door:-. ~ :-c::i 
officer e·;e·.1!.t:-:~ss :::cc:::i:..:nts, ii: ·.-1as .:.n this a:-ea that Off :.ce= 
Jac!-<sc:: !"'.ud c:>ll=~~.3~d .:;.:~c. died :::.fte= being st.acted. 

Stai~s wh~c!1 19;c~~cd tu be blood were located on the in:2ric= 
ste93 jus: ir.si=~ th2 J-wi~g ccoc a~d on the sec-vice ccur.t~= i~· 
fror!t pf ::.he 2-:3 ·.;i.;~g ::.oo?:". Tt'.e counte= is t:tc on~ behi~d ·,.,rhich 
tr.~ roc•..;::-:u. ;:,(f!.::c= is Lcc~ted. Stc:iins 'N"ecc also located on ~ 
c'.l~o:her se=~icc c~~~tc= in the lobby rotund~ near the la~ndcy 
a?:"ca. r<1..::r.c=ous c::iio:- 9'n.otog=-:!9hs of the stained areas .,..c:-e ta'.-<::::1 
hy in~esciga:o=s ~c= ~ossible l~ter use. 
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·~:-=·-c=! ,:~ -~~ :.~c :..::...~~ ·.::;·,~~. Or.·~ 9hot.o tu.ken ju.:t outside ::he 
2J ·,.;~n; :!•)c·::- =~·:ca.led .J;;rr:cxi::l.atcly fi.vc gallo:u of ho::-:cmade 
;;::-.~· . .: in~i·.;-! ~ µ.!.ast.:.c IJt.1.:i<ct. Curing i:-ivcstiga:io:i. i.t wus 
""e•:c~!t!.! :..::.~t. .:l9f==o:<i~1.J:..cly 50 - 70 gallons oE hc~c brc·..., · .... c:-c 
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C<.!::-~f~1~ ~~.J:~i:1:.:i~:i cf ~h~ hc~si:1g \.!nit i.nter:iors by i.:w~sti.­
;~=~=3 fai!~d :o =~~~31 any a:ai~s appea=ing co be bleed ot~er 
~h~:1 ~~~tc ~=~vi~c3lv ~~~tioncd ~hich were located an the s:~=s 
l~~di:"'.I E=~~ :~c fro;: ~e ~ir.g 20 to the rotl.!nda entrance. · 

C:•e 9:1~: o-::: .J.; h t ak~n rcvc a 1-:?d ·...-ha: a9!;)ea.::ed to be dClm~ge 
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3 ·= ~ t t 'l , :: ~ ·: '!. ~ ; = ~ s ~ ..: c... i i : : 11 c u s i r: ; •.; :1 i t i1 2 , w i n g a , r: a o::. i# 4 t ~ , 
·..:a::; ~ 11,~s;e"..i 1 :-.; hcJ':~ i;~~:i in•:olv.::~ i:-i the distu=bancc of Ji..;l.y 3. 
1933. Ba~cty ~~s i~~erviewed in the investigatorJs office a: 
>!TC:·L ?ric:- !..:J ~1.:;~i:-:g 2catty a::iy questions, he ·,;as given his 
co~sti~t..i::.ionel.!.. ~iq~1:3 ~t..!= ~:ie :·!i=.::.nCa d~cisi_on by St. Raymer.:! 
::e:·.v·::e:-:-::. ..; st:a:"!i.~:-.:i ;::-i:tt·~d ~-ti=.::1=;1 rig=-:.ts fo:-~ a~d ·~·ai'tc:= 
o~ :-i;~:z Ea.::~ ~as Lsnj Eo= thu ~u=;ose. Sgt. Dale Sels~e a~d 
=2;:~=ti:g i:1· .. 't~~:: i.g.:i,;::.:;:: · . .,..~r:c also ?=csen: a: ·.-1it.nes:cs •. Seatt~· . 
~ck~~~led;a~ that ~e un~crstcod ~ach oc ~~s consc~~~t~onal =~g:-::s, 
~ould ~aiv~ ~ha~ ~illingly, an~ ~ould ans~er ~uesti~ns =cga=di~; 
·:h~ i~c:dcnt oE Jul¥ J, 1933. Bce~tv sicned his Mi=an~a ri;h:3 
~o=~ a~d ~ai~c~ of eights in :he ;=c;enc; of ~~wbe==y, 3als~e. ~~= 
=e;crti~g Lnvc~ti3a:~=-

J ,!_;...,_ -~'"' ;n!"'"'·""'"'~•··n·..; •. ,~--..... [3.,.:i•-,,, .;~ ···="'~ ..,o,..."c· ...... ~ t:~~::. ~.er.ad ___ :.i'J 1-•'-- -L·----·-· ••'-•lo __ ._i._~, -- .1<:..i.~ •• ..__ -- ·•- .. 

se~cr~L s:air.s ac:cari~c to te bleed on the rear ;or:ion of hi5 
~ ..... ;:: .. s;,c,.1...;c- ;:.,-,,.,- ... ,~-~·ho ··:is._ . .,._.,.,..;..,,_ cuto-=>= oa,.,·s .:!,.. '"l"'."' ti:-.~ 
- - - I._ •I - - O t, "* .... • - I...)\., I._ : , • \, • /Y <:.:. 11 t;: - - - .. lo--:: - - .. .. o - - '- -

.:.nt~=·,-1c·.,·~,:. als·) =~~d ·::siQle stai:1S :J.::cc~=in·; to be blood C:1 ::-.~ 
::.:ii:::< c:i·nis l~~s u:1.:i c:: ~Ls fc.:c. ?:-tctog=a9hs of t=--.c stains ,_ 
·.-1ecc t.:::<c:i ~\.· t~::; :.:it.·csr. i.a~to::- at the cc::clusion of tr:.:: ir.te::·::.:w 
7?-;e s t<1 i;ts w~ ::-c t !°:<::1 rc:~o·1~d er.d secured .:!S 9os5 ib le e'J' i.de:lce 1=.·! 
Lt. R~y.-::ond ~:c·.-rncr::-i·· ~..::·.:t:c:-r:y us~d cctt.0:1 !::i·..tabs foe- :his ~u:-;::::s2 
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 Lit;:-!.:-:::J ::::c ~nr.~cvi~~w wi~h !3cacty, he stutcd th.:i:: h~ hud :-::;::. ~e ....... 

~::·:.:Jl.·:cd !.'."1 :::~ c.:..c:: of JL:ly J, t93J. He st.:ii::~d th<Ji:: :-:.~ ··•2.s -·· 
·~::-·...::..< ·H :::.:-.-2 :::: i.:h~ .:l~d h~<..i b~cn ,-!=5..:i:,i::3 wii::h.:..n u:iic 23 -=c- ~-- ... 

- .... ~i..... •• ~ 

::.:-::~. :'\Cc~-:.ii.::'] to 8c.J.c:y t'.~ j•.:st. thouqht:. t:--.c ot:fic~cs <!:-:d 
i~~~:~s ~c=~ !.'."1 ~ Eiche ~hen t~c trcu~L~ sca:tcd. Geattv s~;~ 
::~~:: ~c ~~j ~===cxi~icaly fcur nr Ei~e big c~ps of brew ;o ~:: ... ~ 
~~~cc cc :~c ~lcc. He seated that he did ~at. ~~cw haw t~~ b-~:~~ . ·~-~ 

gc:: an :i:~. ~ft.! thouaht :;erh.J.os it had co~e f:-0:71 a s:7tall c;.;c .J" 

r.is chi:-1. 8eatty st~t~d· ::hat. lie would t.:i'.-<e a polygraph c= ?s::" 
tc3t to ;:~vc t~3t he had net har~ed any of!iccr du=ing th~ 
d~~cur~~~~c. The i:itar~icw with Beatty was ttc:i tcr~i:ia:~d. 

At cl??C·::>:-:i~a~cly 7:27 a.~. on July 4, 1983, an i:i::e=vi~w 
~as co~d~ctc~ ~i::h inmate Sdward Ervin Ruegg, ~~5477, 003 
~:o·.1emt:e::- 5, 1963. The i!1tervicw with Ruegg was conducted i!1 
c~c invest:ig~to~s office at MTC~. ?rior to being inter~ie~ed 
~uc;g ~as 3d~iscd of ~is constitutional rights as per che ~i=~~~~ 
dcclsicn b7 this invesci;acor. A standard ;rinted ~ira!1da :ig~c~ 
~c=~ an~ wai~e= of rights was u~ed for che pur~ose. ~uegg 
ac~~o~ladgcd that he ~n~cr=tood each of hi~ constitutional ri;~ts 
and that he would waive each right ~nd answer questions rcga:~ing 
t~c invcsciq~tion. Rucg~ signed the Miran~rights form and w~ivc 
:.n t!':~ ~::-est.;:t·::c o: Sgt. O~lshc clnd re9orti:&g investigator. 
~~~;g =~lated du=i~g his oral conver~tion .. thac on July J, 1933, 
hu a~d r.u~c=ous ot~~r ir.~ates wc:-e drinking ho~e~ade alcc!':ol i!1 
hJ~sing 1.!~it: ;2. ih:l..!g~ lived in G-wir.g. Ruegg stated t:!'1..::.:: s::c::: 
uf::er :!"'.e: :J:t>) ~.::i. <.:c•.nt, c·.·:o cE!:Lcc?:s c.::.me into housir.g !~!1:t 
23 a;;c! a:t-:;::-:i:ccd :::'1 =-.::;.o•:c :.:1:na:::.2 J.!.~-ny Jenkins, •.-1!'-,o was!.:'.:::.:!~~ 

~cbc=:: D=is~oll's ccll~iltc. Jenkins and Driscoll lived ~:i 
ho~si:-:3 ~:ii: 23, cell ~410. Accordi:1g to R~egg, Officer 7~~:::as 
Jacks-:::;: · . .;as :::nc of the cfficc.:-s att:~:n~cir.g to rc::iov'3 Je:ii<i:-:s. 
R~~sg rcl~tcd th~t J~:lkin~ h~d a ~iecc of steel rod whic~ te 
h~d obtai~~d fro~ cell· #393. J~nkins, accordi~g to Rues;, ~=c 
t~~ rod in his pants all evening. For ~hat specific pu:~cse 
i~ • .. rnkno~.-n. t·ihen Jenk.!.:-:s became intoxicated, he removed :r:e 
=od and chrew it under his bed. Ruegg stated t:~at seve=al Ln~ate 
inc!. 1...!di~g hi~ls.::lf dropi;:cd chei= pants and "sf'.ct tr.c :noo:1'' at 
the afficecs. 

~ucgg sai~ that: in his c~inion half of the housing uni: ~as 
C .. -!!.-1 ... "'u"c~ cc ... t' ... · "· ..... a,.r.·"-g t'-""" ~n ..... ,. .. ,,,- ·..1 1 -hi:-i 1 ... _.,. ..,,..,,,_;_ - "'- "- --:::t '' ..i..~.UCC vf ...Jt.. ._ .,l t..o.~:_ _. lt.\•C"--.:::. .-'- •· -"'·- ··-·-.:J,- ... 
unit stated that there ~ould bo no trouble "if the co~~ di~:i': 
tilkc a:iyo~c to jail. IE i::hcy do, we will rush t~c~ and s:~=c 
killing the~." T~is sc~::c~cnc, according to Ruegg, was ~ad~ by 
an i. r. ma r. c k r. c ~ ·.-rn ~ n d i ~ c r \ c. i. f i c d as Jo h n B o L i ~ , ~ 4 2 l ~ 4 . 0 ,J l :. n , ,__. 
according to ~ucg~, wa~ the spokesman for the in~~:cs on ~~ly 3, 
1983. 
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J~ :..·: . ,--.. , .. -·. 
;:) ~ .. · . .. ~.: -

\. 
l • -~ . l'.•:.;1 
:: ........ ,_,,_ ... 
·; .. ~· ~· - - .•. ·• • 1 L J: _ 

.\t :.~:-=~:·:~:-::;.:tel .. · 7:21 :'.:n., ::!-1."I .;, 1983, Ri..:cgg ~e.;.::.:i a :.· . .;o 
--·•.· .. ,.), ....• ,, ... '-... :·-1k-,... .. · ___ ,,. ... - ...... : ,.., ·1n~,-h ;..c ·"w.s~ -~11 
:· ... ··;- ........ c.._ .... "" -~-·· .J ... c;..1-·-···-··-- -·· .· --· •. - • .._-=..--:· · .. :e:"::: ~,--~~'::" 

··:-~ ,_;'.";c-:•.!;:i ::.~~·~3.s~d -.!u:!.:1g :::.~ ::=s~ Lnt·~-c·:i.e;'.·•. fo:- c!c:::J.l.~.3 

~= ·.-.·n.:.:: ~·-=·:1.; :-at~~~:?(! :.:i :::~: ~c~:~.T.~:-:t, :-c:e:: :·:> ~:.:i.s~:.: 1 ~ 
c=~:~~ ~va~!~~:e . 

........ t a ~ ;J = ':> :-: !. =~:?. :. ·~ t ·1 9 : ; 0 ~ . :7? • , : t ~ !. '/ ~ , ~ 9 3 3 , an l :i : ~ = ·: !. c ·.·1 ·...: C! s 
c~~c:.;c:.<:":d · .. ;:~:-i Cv/ r KC!.;c::': :-;~y~-.? ~~SS, DOG .Jul·:· 26, 194..;. 
0:::.,:c:- !~cs~. as Gt:-=:vt.ousl:r :::cr:i:i.c:-:cd, was c~c oc ~he oc::.::;=:=s· 
·...- r. :J ·.:a s ~ ~ :: :. .:- : : s l :_..· i n j t: :: ~ cl on t ~ e c ·: ~ :i :. :-: g o f J u l y .1 • t 9 a 3 . 
~-:.:::~~':- :·,~33 =·~sic3ll!' cclatcd li\::t!·3 ir:for::iac.icn -.:!u=ing ::-.c 
=c:·~f :.::t:.c=·:-.c·.-: C..: 1..)n:!:..:c::'"~d. T~i~ ;::::ssibly ;~·as dt..4~ t:o ::.::~ £c:?.c: 
:~3C ~~ ~~d =~=~iv~d ~0me ~ain ~edic~tion fer his inj~ries ~~~ 
·.·;.J..s ::c: ::0·..::l!.:~':] · .. :1~11 at th~ ~i~e i~t:.crvicw.ad. Hess did. =~!..2.:~ 
.-."' .... ;..'"' ; --- .... , .. ,·r.o st "bhi:-d ....... ,,_..; r.==i.·cc"" ,._ck · ·· -··-- ......... ........ c.:'-- ... . ..- '"""- ··-··• c... •• - --- - ""'c: • so:i :..Jas ... ~a:-:::.:; 
~ ~l~~ ~~~~ tc? shirt wit~ ~h~cc ;i.?in; a:cu~d it. Hess sca:~d 
:a i~~c~~i]~t~rs ttat the in=ate who had assaulted hi~ a~d 
..:.:-=:-::.;::1 :·:.:!s :.n:r.~tc i~at~~c·: Ca:;:r, 1*J3~23. 1\dditio:iall·.· Hes3 
::;:..;;c~:::: t:~.:l: ~~ .Jlso o~li.;'lod ir:.:n-at~ Robe::t: Driscoll wa; i.:v::>l.•:(;d 
i~ =~~ :igh:: ~Le~ of:ice::-~. Hess stated, hc~evcr, tha: ~c 
c·:1 1...!ld ::~;::. ;it.;:_ ~ ~aife i:i D::isc-::>ll's h::i.:ids. It ::.hot:l.:i cc nct~d 
c~3~ 0~ ~he ~~=ni:ig of July~. !983 rc9orcing in~estigator a:i4 
~=~~= :~vesti;a::Jrs in~olved i~ the case conducted a li~c-~o 
:!t :rrc:i :o ~.H~ u3cd for idenc if ic::icion ;>u=?E:>ses. This was c:;::-~ 
~E=~= CEf ic~= Hess stated tha: he could identify in~atc C~== 
a3 ~ei~g t~s as3ail3~C of bee~ hi~salf and Office= Jacksc:i. 
t:: .-~ L~1~c.!t"C:s ·:·:~:--c u5cn in t!i.c !.i:-:e- 1...!;l. 

!~~ !i~a-u; ~a3 ccnducccd in an outside cor=ido= loca:cd ~~ 
:::-.£! sccci:d Etoo= oE th'3 ad:::i:nist::aci.cn buildi:ig nea: ::he 
1n~cs;:.igat~~·s office. Care was ::a~en to attempt to have all 
of the subjc~ts ~scd in the line-~~ ao~ear to have the sa~c 
cesi"= cha.:-~ctc?:"i.stics.· The su:Jjects .:.ere all caucasiari ~ale 
i~~~~a~ having basic3lly the saxe ?hysical char.:l~teristic3 a~d 
d::-e.s3. All of the individuals used had similar hai= styles and 
t:.:J.c:.ti:os. 

r~:::-:a;:~ ~odn~'' ca::r: r..._ras olaced in the line-u·o seco~d E:-om t.=-.e 
left c:id. Office~ Hess-entered the a=ea and looked at t~c 
s~bjcc~s in th~ line-up. Hess the~ entered ::he i~vcstigato='s 
of~ic~ and stated that Ca:= was locaced second fro~ the l~E: 
end. rt should be noted that chotoa=aohs were tak~n oE ::.~e 
li~c-~o to b~ u~cd for oossi~l~ 1ac;r lctantification and to 
s~o~ :~at:. ::he l~~e-uo ~~s co~duc~ed in a fair manna=. Lt s~o~lj 
=e ~~nti.0r.ed ~n this- r:eoort that i:ivestigatO!:'S Sclshc. Ne·.~·ocr!:'y, ·_ 
and ss~=ci~c= found out. a short ti=c later t~at Off iccr Hess .--
h~d sc"c:i C~r:;: o::ior to t:-:.c line-uo on July 4, 1983. F=o:n i:if~=-
mation =cccLvc~, Hess ~ad seen Ca~r for some ti~e in housing 
uni!: ;2:J. This fact potentially ::t!..;~c:. seciously da:nage the 
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.! . ..! i .,. ~ 3 . t ) 'J : 
~re~ s~~;!~x~~tJl rn~~stig~:~cn 
? .'!'JC :J 

··:i.:...:·..:.:.:·:· ,.. .: .. '· .. 
I - .._ • ··-

investi.g~:o:-s. 

• ~ ..... _._- .. -:.~ ·.· - . . ..... c.:.::;_,_ t.J"'-- ··as ccr.c···c .. ,..d .. , __ ::· ..... :-=·::~tN ':/l: .. L '---'-C- ... -.:J~ .-. • ._ '-t..! r.J.t. u.:i::=~:·:-

:~JC·~:·· ~.t:.;7 ":..~ .. J:J.!.·: ~. t"J83. 7hc int:.~t"V!.C'.·: . ...,,-:s cf""-,..;·,.~~,....i . - . -··--.._ -·--
: :1 i:.:-.i..:: ;~: ~:...:·.~ ::: C.:i.:-l ~·i:i~:a. :11.;oe.:-.!.n:~r:dcrlt, :·tTCt. T!i~ i'1 .. ,....- ... -·· 
··---- .. ..: .. ,-- .... a· b·· C''"'··-t;n,.., C.J.-i::,..c .. ·of;:~cc ... L1es- , .... - .... c~~:~-~~~--"'c.::a '--•·'-'---- ! .._.~ .............. ":3 s..-•- -· -- - •• .::» _..;,~ ''~-- .._,:l 

~:al ~~cs:ic~s. Ltc ~ns~ccs to which were recorded via shorth~~~ 
:.;·1• ::?<i:-~~u=i ;,..:.:.~~hi'-!ld, Clar:<-Stcno !I!, ~·lTC:·t . 

... ~;-:!' .:;::J.:-=:::~~t, !!~s:3 c.:c:it=.r.t..:cd t-:> st~te ~h'1t in~~c-= Roc!:1'=Y Cc:l:= 
~~5 :c~~c~1:~!a ~c= Ofeicc.:- Jackson's death and Ee= t~e assat..:~: 
J~ ~:.s Q~n ~~=sen. Rctc= to t~e st3t~~ent of Office.:- Hcs3 ~~= . . 
C·..!::ll.!.5 ,.. -

·J:! ;~.:t:l -t, !.~:3 at c!?~:-o:.;ir:1..!tc1l:r 10: l2 a.::i., an i~~~r·.ri~· . .; ·.,.r~s 
c-::r.dt..:~':·~.::: · . .;;,th in:n~t<:! i\odr.~:· R. C.ir:-, :t38428. COt3 Octcbc:- !..O, 
~96t. T~~ i~:crvi~~ with Car.:- was cond~ctcd in t~e in~esci;a::= 
a~l t.:-,::l.!>i:.!] cfficc at :-r!:'C:·l. ~ri:or to being inte::'via.wed, i~~.:i::.'.~ 
C~== was ad~:s~d of his constitutional r!g~ts as ?~= the ~i=a~~a 
1dci3L~~~ C~== ~as aa~ised o~ his .:-ights by =a9oc:ing invcsti;ac: 
S·;;:. t. ~i.:il~ 5~lshc. :·iSE?, and Oill Ar:i:cntrou~. Assist:J.:lt: Ward-E!::, 
~.:.ssour~ Sta:c ?~nitc~ci~ry, ~ere also ?rcsen:. !n~ate Ca== r~~d 
the ~:andari ~i=and~ rights fc.:-~ and waiver of =i;hts af:er h~ 
ha~ :)c~r1 ·.Jd·.::.sc<l f:-r:-::1 tnc z.:i:i.c.:. Car:: ac:.:nowlcdged th~t he 
t; :: :H! :-s t c ~ d .:: .:; ·:; i t o E h i s co n s c i : •..: i: .:. ·~ n a l r i ~ ht s , was .,, i 11 i :-! g t o 
·.·:ai·.~ t!:r;~ .. i.1!d '.·.:ott '·-= <J::s;..;~:- qL.:esr:ior.s dir:ec\:ed to hi~. Ca== 
t :-. (. :I s : :: : : ~ d :.. !~ (: r c .:- ~:! ~ n ti~~ t ·.-: 0 :i ;J a c e :3 p = 0 v i d (! d . ~ e 9 0 = : i. :1 '~ 
:::,.,"~SC.i.~a~:}= .:.~::i S~:. f..!t..;lst:e ·.vit:1CSSed ti"°'.e Si,;ni:-tg ~~, i~~.;:~ 

C~==-· !t !j:1cuLi :;~ :;otcd that Sgt. Bel.she did r;ot. sig:1 c.s a 
~it~~ss at th~ bottc~ of che for~ because he forsct to sig:1 i~ 
1:he secor.:! s;·:?.i:::. :~.:!~orci~g in·.:cstigacor did si;:-i in both. 
s~aces ~rovi~cd. 

At th·~ ::E:gi:i:"!ing of t:~c int~t"view, inmate· Carr: ·.-1as extr:~ely 
~~~et a~d ~~~cic~a! r~g~rding the events which had ta~en ;lace 
t~e 9r2vioc3 night. Carr stated n~morous ti:i:es that he had ~ot 
scabbed any e~ployce or anyone even though he was bei~g ac=~~e~ 
of it. Se'.rcral ti:nes, i.r;mace Car= b:-o'.<e do·..rn in teat"s a~d. c-•~,.; 
-.-·~ .. -·..,· · ti... · · - .. b" · ot-;:i.·-e- ·-s a 110 r-c::.r1 ·-·'/ ••• ..:l l H \.. ~ t. , , .!. i"'! g ..:. ~.a L ~ ~ :".a a :i o '- s '- a o e '.':! an ~,. '"' ._ - c - • - :: - - "-" 

Of:icc::- Hess. 

·- .. i.,· ,.· ·..., •• tl·- - . - - d c.,,,...,... t""'" .. ,..,,.... '"'r.-~ .. _.,- _,...;_ .. '°"'- ..•• ls _i.:::c. i. .. ~C?s ~,a ... ors Lncoc ..• e <-<•- ~-~'- '·'' ..... - ... _~ -:, ..... - .. ~ 
to ~ar~ ~i~ ~nd that LE he was r.ot resoonsi.blc far tha of~~cer's 
to~:cido a~d th~ assaults on ct~cr offlccrs, cveryc~ing ~ould ~e. 
done f r;o:n a l·:?gal sca:1C::Jo iric to o:-ovc that he '11as innoc~r.t. T~is· 
sc1::ncct' to h.:i•:t.! a oosit1:1c effect. en Cu:-r who :3ta:cr:ed to scttl::?-· 
do~n. !~vcsci~~t:~rs c.h0n told Car= to be honest in his state~e~:s 
and ct~ si~~~cion woul~ work out for the best. Carr t~en rela:~d 
t h c E o L L (.,J '·" i ': ··1 i n t !'J r r.; .:i. c. Lo : 1 • 
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.JuJ..·l :J. ~CJ3} 

:-:-re:-~ St:~?L.:~::~t.:i! ~ri·:cs:::is;;at.:.o:i 
?~gc o 

?ocl:-:c¥ C~=c st=c~d th~: on c~c.~~c~in~ of.July J, 1983, he ~2i 
-··-·"'"·"'"S ,...; . ..,,.. ; - t ;.,.,.; ~.,..,.~ __ .,...'.<•-g ':1 '-O:JS':1g •·n1·- .. ) 
··-···-~ .. ·u .J1- •• • •• .-:": •• ,,l CS ··-·~ -t..:t:: .• .__ -··• ..,,, -• •• ,.., ~ '- i' ..... J. 
C~== ~~~:~j :~~: ~c h~d ~cc~ d=:r.kir.g cr~ngc j~:ce wine and 
:-:.:.:: : ... ~c-::::~ :-:!:_:h!.·:· t.nco:c.c.J.:cd. ,\t urour.d 10:0'.J to lO:JO ?-::?., 
sc•:..!:-:.1 ,:fe :.C";~:_j =.J.::!.C to c:-.c ~r.i.~ cegcJrdi:1g c:-..c i:icoxicatcd 
::;::-?~:·;s. ..!..: i:::ast two •J:fic:::=s cnte::-cd E3-·,;:.:-:g ::o =er.iovc ir.~~:e 
.J:.::-:..-::•.: J·~::'.<!.:-,.s. ;45908 -. .. .-ho livi:)d l:l 20 ~~to ·.·rit!": Robert Dc1 5 .-~1: 

' ~---· 

C~cc 3:~=~~ :~~~ ~~ wa~ st~r.c!~g Oy dn off ic~r talki~g to hL~ 
d:;o;..:: · .. ;'r•/ ::-.c·:· ·.·:l!cc locxir.g Ji::-_-:iy J.en!<ins u;i. The o.:ficc:­
a!:egc~ly =~s~c:-:d~d ·g~~ause ha is d:unk~. Ca:= stated th~t ~a 
~=~l~ ~o: ~~~c =~~ officer to ~hem he ~as t~l~:~g; however. ~e 
sale :n~: ~c ~~s caucasian. talt, and ~ad brown hair and a 
~~3:~=~~. ~~c~~=i~g to Cu~=. as the ofEicc~s ~~~=ouched :~~ 
·=~~a~~3 ~it~ ;~~~i~s. a lar;~ grou~ of in~a:es rushed :he~. 
'·--~:.-;,..,,.... ,..,., •·~I J ;,. 'c·.---.:•-- tO C,-r ~h""" ; ...,.,.,..;,. ; .. _..; . :s'""'---····''·:: ..: ...... ;t...:---··;... n ............. ·--·~:. ...-.- , '- .. ~ -t1;..''-'--s -n.e .. _~-= 
: ·:; ~ .!::c ; ·-·.,~.:.~is a:A·f:! 'l f :-c,rn th-:: :'J t: !.Ce rs • 

Ca== sc~:~d :hat i~~at~ Joh~ 2olin, i42144, ~~c anoc~e::- ur..:.de~t:f: 
~~~~c~ ~~r~ ~~c subjects who told tho others to cha=;c the office= 
C~r= =~id t~~c =~c i~coxlcacad in~accs did r~sh :~c officers a~d 
J~~~i~s ~a~ t~~~~ away. Alc~g with the of~icer~. Carr was pu~~~~ 
i~:o t~~ =~=~~~~ ~rca by th~ ~ch. 

C~r: s:~ted r~at he did not see anyond stab a~ officer bccausa 
as sea~ ~s ~~ was pushed into t~e lobby he was s:ruck on the 
~e.::d ~!'" .:;a::-:~·y~c. (C:i:-:-'s ~cad ~-1as oandaged ~t t!:~ cime of t:-.c 
~~cn::-~1c~. ~s ~ere his r~bs.) 

~·i~cn asked a~-.1~: · . ..-hat he ·.vas wea::-i:ig en Ju!.y 3, 1983, C.:?.r::- s:<J.:·::..:! 
chat he c~uli not re~cmbcr for certain, however, he thought ~e 
~3~ on a ~hit~ t-shirt or ~o s~irt at all. When asked if he ~ai 
-::~a l.Jlr~-: t::i;;k to9 st-.irt ·.-1ith ·.-:hite tri::l o:::- ?i;iir:g, he stac:c ··~a" 

Carr ~as then a~~cd what he kne~ about Robert Driscoll, Je~~.:.~s· 
c~ll~~c-a. H.:? r<.?lat~d that Dr-iscoll'.s nicl<:ia::?e was "Rabbit''. 
He sta:ed that ao::oxi~:itelv two weeks orior to Julv 3, 1933, 
~e had otser~ed ~;ba:-t Dris~oll ~a~e a home~ad3 kni~e fro~ a 
sceel rul~ a: the HTC~ sign sho9. Carr rela:ed that to the ~es: 
of his ~e~cry the wea;cn was ~99roxi::-:at~ly seven or eight inc~~s 
i~ length ~~d h~d a b=own wcod handle. Acccrding to Car=. D:~sc=: 
had told hi~ that he was goi~g to use t~e wea~on when he was =ec~: 
to :t:e st~r.e ~E C.:ili:o~nia :n tte near fur:.u=~ Eo= co~rc. 

_;-~::. t:.c conc1.u57..:J:l of the inte:::-vi.ew with Cu.rr. he was shot.;n tt:~ 
w~apon w~ich was in the possession of Lt. New~~rry as the 
;ossibl~ weapon ~scd to kill Officer Jackson. The wea9on ~as 
a ho::lc~ad~ :~n i fc ~1.:idc from as t~e l rule and had <:l bro~·m ·..;oode:1 
handle. 

-
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Jt.:ly t8, 1•)3.; 
~TC~ ~~;pl~~ent~l Zn~esti~atic:i 
?~;~ l :) 

' 

C~== 12~~~~ ~l ~~c icc:n :n t~~ ~=csancc of i~vcs:L:ato~~ ~-~ ... - ....... _ 
· .... ·~:~"J~:~ :-:-."""3~~~t:.J:i !..:"l~r.r:i:i~C :~~ !.::::-t us =e.:..r!g 1=~:-:t::.cu.!. :,:, 
... ._ - - :. : 1 r: :-: ~ z: :J s s ~ s ::; !. c n c : i :-; ::-: ..l : ~ : = : ~ co 11 :: · . .: o ~·: c c '.-< s ;J :- i. 0 t" • 

C'"~== :.::..-:.:::..:!:.·~·~! .1t:. ~::~ t~~~c.: o: ::~-~ :.n::..:='·":.c·.·: ~!""..~: :: :-ec;·...:~·s:·~C 
·a .1,..., __ ..., i-.-. ···'"' .. 1,..; :, ,. ll;..,- • ..., .. _..,., .. a -01\. __ ,,,_,.. ..... • .. - - - - -' ... - .. "-" ~ . . ...... - c ... l - .. ~ ~ ""'" """' - ..... I..; :-' .... J ':: - - ~ 1 

.. - ..J 9 c 0 ,.., c ... :: .! : 
h~ :-:c::J ~t: . .:;c~t!d ;i0 one a:1d tha: :::.J :.:icc::-:.1ac.cr. h~ h.J.d -c1~~ . .., ... - -~---
· .. ;a s t ' : ·..! t = · : : :. . C n ~ :: ·.·1 a n c: e d 1 r. \ .. ta~ :; c !. ·;a c o = s t:. o a:!~ i :i i s t c :- t: r:. e 
ct·.c c:-:3::". !.:;,...1: :.~ n i~~L!c! ia tc ly. E~ · . ..-..ls inf cr:ned t !":.;t it ·..:ou Li 
t-c !.:::::=s.:.i'..Jl·..: to t::l1.·i= hi:7t a col•::::-.:::~ ·.?xa:nin.;:.c:.~n ':}rt J..:1·1 1 
1 ·.::>3 • 1 ··:"' .i,-,. o .. ;: ···0··1·• i--n :. ••• :_~·"'~SOC"" as ~c~sl·,... 1 .-. .;,,."· 
.. .,,J , --- ...... _ ··- .4 .... - .... t...: '::-·-·' -- •• ~ - o.J--· •.. ~ 
:.~tc=~~~~ ~L:~ C~== ~as then cc=~:~~ccd. 

c~1 Jul·/ 7, l'1SJ, .: ·.·!rit~~n s::~ta::-:~:;: .. ..,as obt:~ined Er-or.i i:1~a:::~; 
R~Cn~:· C.:::-= :.;!ga:·:±i.:1; i:1Ecr:r.cl~i~:i =elated by h!.::t C:.::-ing t:-.:: 
i~::~=~~~w 0~ ;uLy 4, 1983. Th~ ~=:~ten statex~~c was obt~i~a~ 
~ ~ - ~ "' .. , ; - ·· - · · - • ·· ... - t "' ~ c .. i· ~ "" - c • " ,.. ·1 ; ... J e f ;: e - s a .. c ; t " c - - · · _,,_ -··- ··-~40.I"'-"··-· .:>-. ..... II::;~ •• -w~l ---. -·· ~ - •• - ,:• a ... _ ~.a.:3 

a~~:.s~~ cf ~13 co~scituc1onal ri;hc3 as par the ~i=a~d~ dee:~:.=~. 
C.:!=:- .. u:..s 3~·:L~ec! b;- rc~occingi"lv-~sc!.g.:itor. A scu.n_:iard pri:-::c-:­
=i~hts ~c=~ and ~aiver of cia~cs was used for the our~cse. 
Ca~= 3ign~~ chc for~ and wai~er :..~the presence of.Bill M. 
Ar~c~cr~~:. Assistant Warden, Lt.G~ocge Orooks. investigato=. 
MS?. and :c9ortin; investigate:-. Carr then ccx?leted in his 
o~n h~nd a c~o page staccmenc :e!aci~g the.saxe info=~atio~ 
which had bc~n discussed on July J. 1983. Refer to copy oE 
t~e sta~~~c~: f~r d~tails. 

On Jul:· 8, 1933, i:i:natc C~r= ·.·ras given a 9olygca;J~ exu::iinat :.i:'.1 

to ~c=i~y his s:ac~:nents. The ~xa~ination was ad:n!.n!.3:c=ed a: 
T=co~ ~. >!iss:iu=i State Hig!1· ... ·ay ?acrol, Jeffec-so:-i City. :-!.:.s~:::·..:=.:... 
Sgt. Gcc:gc ?~yn~ ad:niniste:ed the examination to Car=. At :~c 
ti~e of t~is :e90:-t, written res~lts hawnot been fo:w~rd~d to 
c·his o::.:ce. H-::·.1ever,- verbal cc::cacc with Sgt. ?ayne incic~:-:s 

that in~atc C~== ~as basically t=uc~Eul in his res~o~se to 
q~czci~~3 asked d~:-ing tr.a ex~~i~~tio:i. A cc~?le:e cc~y of 
the ;olyg:-~ph examination will ~e forwarded ~hen it is recei~~~­
Acc~:i:.~q to Sgt. ?ayne. the ~os: significant info=~acic:i :c 
cc~c frc:n the exa~i~ation was :~a: ~n~ace Carr evidently did ~ot 
scab a:iy officer d~=ing the July 3. L983 disturb~~ce and ind~:a­
tions cJ.!"'C th.::.t =-.c d.7..d not t:av~ :. '.-:ni:·~ in his 9ossession .:!.:: ::..:.: 
t l :":".~ . 

:l•~ J::l·; -t. t:Ja3 :J':. <!9£1::-c::-;:i.:ii.J.t~L:' 3:07 9.:n., an int~rview :.;as 
ct:n~ 1~;:':..:!'"'l · . ..;L:h L:i:-:-tat.L! ~oh:i J. 3~li::, :;421~4. ca_s :\~;~s:. 19 g l.~3·J. 
The !.~c~r~L~~ with Selin was cond~::9d in the invescigaccrs a~d ~ 
t=a;_:iiFg of:i.'=c at :·tTC:·!. E>r.!.~r to =~ing interviewed, Sol!.:i ·,;as_ 
:Jd~isE~ cE his co:isti.tuc:.onal rights as oer the ~i=a~da decis:~~ 
by Sg:. ~a~c Relshe. A stcJ.~dar~ ?ri:i:~d-MiccJ.nda rights for~ and 
wai.'lcr of ~i;hts for~ ~~s ~scd foe the ~ur9ose. Lt. Ray~o~d 



This document is housed in the Capital Punishment Clemency Petitions (APAP-214) collection in the M.E. Grenander 
Department of Special Collections and Archives, University Libraries, University at Albany, SUNY. 
 
 
 

.1 :_; l. '.( . '.') 
IJ. ,, , tJ~J 

::TC:·! S:.:~;> l..!:!:t:ru:..:il '::1VC:l':.i3.1ticn 
?.--:1c t L 

3:Jl.:.:! :-~!.-l:~~"i :::..lt: 0:1 .J:.:l.y 3, 1983, he !~~d !:C\'.!:1 c=:nki:1; 
·::··:tc:1:.i.•::~l·/. ..;-::::~?:·::!i.nq ::.::> !3olin, nu:nccou5 Ln:::u.r:~s bot:i bldc!~ 
-~~= · .. :~•=-t.~ l":.:...:! t·?·.::~ dri~l<.i:-:g hc::tC:!1.:ldl..! alcchol w!.;:~in ::::c hol!si:ig 
'..:~!.t. ..::-: J'..!l'.t 3, l.933. Ooli.n st~t:..:?d th.:it a: arot..::-:d 9:30 9.:n. <;!1 

.Jt.:!.y L l.9~>. •Jie:.c~r J..lck~on en.:~rcd th~ t.:~.!.t i:t ·"ln c:t::.a~::n:. to 
sc:c:.l·.! :Z'".r? i:::":"::7lt~~~ dc~.;:i. El:>li:i said th~t a g:-~:..!? c: .!.n::?atcs 
st;::=~:::i to !"::::-.::~s J.:ick:-::0:1 'oy yt.?llir.g cbsc·~nit.!.cs .:i.t hi::t. aol:.:1 
sc':li:l t.::cJt l~i~ .::~ll::i~tc ~:ck l3cac:ty wa5 '"n:.-::iin::i :tis he.:id" ar.d 
h3=~ssi~g t~~ o!~iccr. 8oli~ ad~ittcd that he was a=cng tt~!~ 
~ho wee~ glvi.~g :ha officer p=cbl~~s: however, he ~cnicd ac::.:~lti 
c3u3ing ~ny ~~ysical ha=~ co the officer. 

~cc:>rdin; =~ 9oli~. thc=a was t~nsion in the hoL:si~g unit bet~ee~ 
white ~~~ bt~ck i~~atcs. Soli:t ~entioned sp~cifically in~ace 
Horace aonnc=, a black inmace with considerable infl~ence. ac~ne 
is ~ell kn~~n co r~po=:in; invc~tigator as ha wcJ.s assig~c<l to ~52 
E~: ~c~eral ~~ars. 

D0li;: ~lso :::~:1tLo:~·~d .l:i::-:.::t~ Ti..7t ::tL!tledgc, a Ct:!.1..:casian !.::::-:a;:~ · ... ·~c. 
ac~c=ding t~ 3olin, was ~aving ?roblems ~ith 3cn~er within t~c 
~~::. Oolin. ~ho gcc3 by the nickname ~soao~, stated :hat he 
was at the end of tho housin; ~:1it when the trCL!~le b=o~e out. 
3olin stat~d ~r.ac: a srcL.:9 of in~ates did rush th: of:ice=3 ~i~~~ 
the:y attr:m9:.cd t:> ta;.,:e a tJ=~~i< inmate frc:7: tt:e ::.cusi.r.g L:ni:::.. 
Whc~ a5~cd to na~c the i~coxica:::.cd inmate, 8oli:i said that he 
t i..- •• - ..... ;i- ·as 1·- ..... "" .. .,. J; ·• · ...... · Ho··ev'"',... r.n ··a- no- C'"' .. --"':-··--g .• ._ ·- .-1 ""'""''-- .. :r_-n! .Je .•. -<i.:-is. ... -- , .. _ ,, :> • .... '-'=- ··--·· 

3olin scat~d that Jer.i<ins ~nd his cell:nat.e, ide~ti::ed as Ro~e=: 
"Ra~hit~ Driscoll, we=e blc~ing on Horac~ Sonner and that t=ou~l~ 
~o~ld hav~ dovelcped bct~cen the~. Accord:~g to 3oli~. Jcnkir.s 
and O=iscoll are active ~~~be=s in the prison o=g3ni=ation ~no~n 
as the HAryan Grathe=~ocJH. eoli:i denied being· ~sscc!.~:ed wi:::.~ 
the oc;u.r.iz~i:io11 hi::-.scl:. He said that he could r.ot:. say · .. /ho 
st a~bcd the o: f !.ce :-3. H·~ st.::. t~d that he had no: and :-.c also 
dantcj b~ing tho i:1~a:c who told the others to cha=;~ o= =~sh 
the o~~i=cr~. 30li~ clid indica::.a that he ~ot!ld be ~illi~g to· 
t~~~ a :-:·:·l•:J::-~::~ ~:,a::;i:':J.tion to verify his sta:·~::teni:s a:.d no:1-
i.-vo1··,._:.,..n: T~.~ i!1t;:c·.·i.:w •.·1ith i3olin was tt-.cn ter:ni;.a:·::!d . • a ;.'-=l. -· \., , ~ 

It s!"l.oul·i be r.o::.~d tr.:.i: 8~ll:i WdS later transfcr::-cd to :-rs? in 
jcffo::rson ~.:.:y. lie · . .;as -;i-.·=~ u. £)Olygc.:?9h e:<arni:ia:::.io.1 ~= T=cc9 :" 
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J:.:!.y ~3. ~'JS) 

:-:~::·i St.:;:?l~::';.':tt:.1l ~nv'-~st.!.c;at:.cn 
? ,=!-;·~ t: 

:·!::::.,,~:::-:. St.:!:·-: !!~·;::·.·•'3!" ?.:i.t:-oL ~1 Ss:. Gc·~=~c'? ?U'/~'~ ·~:l ~:- ~b=~:. 
J•...:l.;- \!, ~'JO!. =~~::;·..:t:s ··J: :::l~t. ·~=--:.:::-:l:1~t:.-~n ::c:.·:c :-:at ::c~n 
:-cc~:·: .. --~ ·:lt. ~::--~ ::.:~o ~e ::!\is:-·:.:;::-:. ~~sul:.= ·.·1ill :_;.~ e-0-:·1~-..;_.: -- -~--

On :i:c .1::-..!:-::~.::i of J:.:!.:· 4, i9::33, :-cp·'.)r:.!.::g o:::i.-::~= c:-:d :·:::. :::.:: 
~~~=~c=~~t. ~ssis:~~: ~~=~en ac ~S? conducc~d an i~CQr~ie~ ~::~ 
!:;~3.t·~ .,;:~:-:::· .:c..~1r::.i~s. ~_;59ca. hc·.:s:.:iCJ ~nt: ;23-..;10. Jcr:;.:i~s :.: . .:...; 
:~;.! ~·.:ll:~~t~ ::> i::::i~~c E'o~cr-~ ~r!.scoll. T!'-.~ i.~ccc·.::.:!·N ·.-1~~h 
J~~:~i:-.s ·.·:~s ·'.::::~c:;ct:..:d i:1 ~t:.!? cr.:i.:.;li:-:g of::..cc .J.t. :·rrc:-!. ?::io= 
to ~cL~~ ::-:ca::~i~~cct, Jcn~i~s ~a~ advisad of hi~ consti:~ci~~l: 
=-!.-:::-:~:; a3 r.~r ~:-.'3 :·:l~a:1c!a d~cis.:..~:1 b'f re9or:t::.::g i:t~·ese.i·;~:o=. 
' --.,-.:.,-::i·-,,. .. , ... -.. .:; ··ti.·-_...;, r•-..,-- ,:~..., .. - "'"'d ··ra;'""' a.:-·-· -- =---·.-\ ~'--····· ·-·· !'---··•-:.-. -a .. w ..... -":t·•"'-_, •\J-•• .. w ... • ..... t::C ... -1.·.;:C"' .. i...:. ._,__u. 
·.:us =..:=..::·:! f~= ~~c :::..:cpo~'-"?. J·C!:-::~:ns ;ickr.o· .. ·1ledgcd that ::e u~=~=s:-:.:= 
~ac~ o~ ~i3 =~g~:~. H~ willi~gly ~i;ned the f~r:n a~d wa~ver ::: 
:t~ ;;=~3c:-:cu :Jc :·!= . . ~r~cntro-:;c .;.!!'\d this im:~st:igutc::. Jenki::.3 
.:t~t·~d :!':~: ~~ ·.·:cul::\ '1ns-.-;cr qi..:cs·tions regarc:..~g th~ i::cider.: -­
Jul:· 3. t9~~;. 

JC:1~:;.:·;:; r:.•:!::ti.~:~d :h~t: he ~,,t~:j a ::ic:nb~r of a ·.·1hi.ta 9c·.-:~= c=g;:.~::~-
t io:i k:~c·.~·:i ~s t!":c 1\ryc::~ l3t"o::~e::-~ocd. A. white pcwe:: c:nblc::t ·...:<:l~ 
cat':.~0cd ~:i ~i:i :.:~p·;r l~ft ar~. ?1'..otcg::-a;;>hs of the ::nole:n ·..:;=.: 
:akc~ by =a?o~ting inv~~ti~ator . 

.:~:-:l:!.::s ad::li:.t:~d th~c. o:l Ju.!.y 3, 1983, he. h~d b..?en c:!=:..~i<:..::g 
:;c:::~:!1;i~l·: ·.-1i:H . .: i.i ~ou:si0·] t;n:r:. ;-2s. He also ad::littc:l c~~t 

o:fic(!::;-:; c~::;c into the '.lnit ·:l:1d att.c:':ioccd to rc~o.._·.3 hi:71 f::o::-: 
;- J"'~·-· t-·:i.~ ... ~. t .... ,.. ..... ("'\\ -:..... ,.h~,· t~n :--~- c= ... ,_n ,,,.._.~ _._. <...;:.~1.:LS s ~1..:...t.,.;. ..... a -:;.S ···-'/ _o:..:a-... ... t::'..l L•- i.. .. ..., •• ._ ... -··- -··--

~e g~llcd away E:-c::l th~ of ficcrs as other in~ates rushed ~t :~~ 
offi=c=s. Jc~kins was shew~ the recovered wea9on alleged cc ~~~~ 
be~n ~ado and ~scd by in~~te Robert Driscoll. J~nki~s sae~e~ 

Jan:·:ir:s · .. :ould r.ot gi·:~ un .::.ns·.·1cr. 
was then tcr~inatad. 

Th~ interview wit~ Ja~ki~s 

On t~c late .:i.f:cr::oon o: ..:u1·1 ..; , l933, an incervi·:!· .. ; ·.·1as 
c~~duc~cd ~ith inrnac~ Jos~gh Vogol9ohl, Jr., ~45~33. T~~ :~:~=-

~c s. i, • vi.e·.-1 ,;as co:ld~ct:.i..!d. in tt:·~ e;:-~ining office a.:: :-1~ :-!. .l-- rl.:-::-::::--.-
t=cuc ~nd =c~o=ting inves:ig~:or conducted the inte=vie~ ~i:~ 
V0Jcl9o~l. r=ioc to being q~astioned, he w~s ad'lised of his . 
cor.::iti.tutio::~l ci.~~ts as oc:- ::.r:e Mit"C!r!dcl deci.sio:1 ~y t;:i.s i~·:~s:­
ti']..!qo:-. Vl")<;~l;i::::\l u.c:<:lo~·:ledsed t.~~t he u~~~=st·~od. cac:-i oc 
his .:-i;:--.L::., t::.J.t t:e: ·.-1ould '"i.llingly sign the 9rinted ci.·;hts Ee:::-_ 
..:i:id :·:ui·:e:= ~:~d '-"ould ..lns·.·:er ~u .. ~stions directed to hi::i. He ::.::2;! 
siq::c1 ct".c fc::-::: in ::.h~ 9::cscncc of those previousl'.{ ~entio::e·=· 

• • • - - 1 
Vogcl9~hl sc~::.cd that h~ ~as 3 witness to the LncL=cr.c oc ~U-J 
3, 1983. He indicated that he would give us an oral st3te~c~: 
because he ~id not want to be involved in g2t:ing :~c bla~c ~~= 
a ·cas~· he w..:is not good for. 
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( 
..:i.J!.y L3. ! 9j) 
=·t'!"'::·! St...:r-P L~:::~nt~l :n·:c:'st: i..ga:i:>n 
i a ;l"'1 t ; 

... 

::~ '-;.:?.,:c ~=-:.c . ~c=:..: =a:-~ 
:-~~==!.;:::..· .. ~ ~::-i.~:- r.o ·:Jt'"·!.:1.J ~!i·:>·.-::-i r:.!":c · . .-:~a~u:i :·:h!....::1 h'3 L:l:~~ 
~..:!~~r:::::.-.:.i ,~s Oi..:i;1g :>~11.! ~:id th.? ::>~:r.e. J:-i:ico!.l. ~~.l~·~d 
.3C:3tt-.• ::: 1: .::: nt::..ce:- on ..iuly 3, 1933 usi.:'.g the :-:~!.:c -e •. --··~--~ -----·--·.; ... 
~r.~ ~c:;::i:.~r..::J ::.al:~,~ h~d =~en :!:inki:1g. 

of ~=~~~ 8---~~-~--~ . ---··'-=-··--··· 
:-~1. ~t".·.:·.-:1;·.! :") =-~f:l~:-t.::~g !.:-.·~·csc:!.;ato::' cl c:at:co c:~ :1:s c?-:~5: ·.·.::.:..:~ 
·- ·_·,.. __ ·· .. t.·.-~ .. _-.. -._ ·.·.·tt·,., ... _;.. •. !~.,.. .. a .. o--~.-.·~ . ..,, .. .._;,'"'n ... -:.,_•\..I"\,.;,.,. •. ,_ • 
• .:) "'- - I _ :\. J •• a_',_!W•i-.;.w, _.....,, • l'\~\.,\. - '-••r; ~••"-'-- ::-.;,;•,; 

·.·:.:i...: c,,;-:-::-:?.~:~"c.! · . .;t..:h Sr.:..s-c:lll. ohoc:oar:.Jchs vf ~~·~ ~t:.t.~~o ·.·:e=·"' -~-.- .. -. - - - . - --··-·· 
~i c~:5 ~::~~3ti~at~r:. ~d~icionally, i~~uc:c C::sc=ll desc=!~~~ 
:~ ~0t3!~ :~a clot~i~3 h~ was ~ca=ing ~~ July l, 193}. The 
~a3c=L~::on =~t~~ed th~: ci~~n ~'l ocher wic~~s3c5 cxac:l~. 

- J • -

C:"i.sc:cll :~~....t :1ot: :..'!~-.::n. told c:ltot...:t. i:iEcr~ac:ic:i :-ccCl'.'Cd ==~::lo::-.~:: 
· .. i - -. ,,. s c: "' s · ~ • l" ~ 0 ,... p - · .- ,... ~ ·o o - ~ · · - ' ... g h ; .::: .... ~ a - -. ..,., ,., :l t ~ ...... .-. ... - • ... -
•• '- •• \:: - - ~- ... - • ··- - ~ - .J - - ... '- ...... _,... • - - ~ - "- ~ ···'-=. • ~ .... ::- - - '-' _,. ':I 

in·.·~~::i;.a:':>= :is!-:cd Ociscoll whui: h-a had cc~.:l wi:.~ hi3 cl:::.~i::= . -
aft~r he ~~d rec~=~cd to ~is ~arl en July 3, 1933. D=iscoll 
sta:~d th~~ a~ far as h~ ~~ew che clothing ~a~ scill ir. :h: eel~. 

Criscoll ~as alsc askad ~hy he had given a state:enc 3~d had . 
ad~itt~~ =~~: he held i~ fact stabbed at an office= en Jul'l 3, 
t933. Dr:is::cll indicntcd that he had been· treated· fai:-1:·.oy 
i~·;~!.>t.i·~--:.t:J=s and c~.clt. he rcs9ect.cd sue~ trcat~e:i:. Ac.:.iit.:.c::~.:.t:·. 
he cold th~ze p:e~ent that he felt badly about w~at had. ta~e:: 
;:la.::c on Ju!.y 3, l9a3. Cri!:>coll co~?lec:ed :i.is scat~=~'.1t to 
, -. " - '"' ~ - ~ , .. .: ;· .~ .,... c -·'-t.::-'--::----- ..... -::- ..... , Jt:!~l ..; . 1953. 

!::w11sti1~:.c.::s thc:i left C:-i~c-:ill i:1 the c:.:stoc!y ot Sill A:-:::c:-::=.::1..:: 
This i~vas:~;at.0= a~d tt2 octe=s involved t~en ~:ccaeded to 
hausi~g ~~i: ~23, cell #410, ~hich had been assis~c1 cc 0:-is=::L 
and Jc:i.:..ins :Jn J;.:ly J, 1933. T~e cell was u::occt,;;>icc c.~d was 
loc~ed. lt. Newbe::y openec :he cell with a ~~see= ~e~. Ll9~~ 
e:;t~::i:-:g :~e cell, ~~vestigaco:s obse=ved a::d :-ec~ve=ed a ~l~e 
c:a:"'.!<. t-:9 ~ h !.c: a:1d c1 9ai= of ;:-..:;y pan ts and a 9ai= of :i i~:e 
t.en:iis s~ccs. All of th~ itc~s had stains a9pear~::g to be 
hloc-= 0:1 t~c::?. R:;a:-t:.r:g in 11est!.;~t.o:c ~co!' sa 1.'e==.l ;t'.~-:og:-a;:-.. 3 
of the lnte:ior and ~xc:c:-ior o~ cell ~~10. The ~ce~s seizei ~J=~ 
sec~::ad by ~1.,.·,;b~rry .!r~d Belsh~ as e•:!.dcnc..;. 
t.he invcs~ig~tcr's o~~icc, 

·..;hich itad be·~n r-cco1.:.::·.::c. 
tl:c i:::.-J::i:; as :iei'1g ~is c:r.d 
1982. 

in~a:o Driscoll was shown the i:e~s 
~i:~out hesitation, Cr!.scoll !.~~~=~~!.~~ 
the ones ~hich he had ~or~ an :~17 J, 

o~ July t5, 1933. rc?a::~ing investigator acco~~aniad ~Y Le. G~~~;~ 
3::ooks)· ir.·.-cstigacor, ~-iS:,con:c!cted inmate D::-iscoll ac tt'.e :O!S? 
hoscital. 7:-:.'3 contact .,,·as :nace at a~~=oxi~atel.y ~2:15 ;J.::i. ?~:: 
to ~~i:;g i~ccrvicwed, D::~~co!l ~as gi~en his constituc!.ondl. :!.;h~s 
a3 cer chc ~i=a~da decision. D::i$coll ~ckr.c~l~dgad t~ac ~a ~~=er-
5 --o· ...i .,,,,,..-. o;:: ·n;s ,...i ... ,.,t d · · "'Cd -i..- ·1i.·,....,_...i., (:o ........ ::o-.j • ... ·-_,..:_-,.~---

~_. u -'--·• .. .._ ~--'::•· S .J.:1 ~C Slg.. ~-·'= :· --··1...'"" • •··• -·· 
of =ig~:s Ln th~ ~=~~cr.ce of those mentiQr.ed. 
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 :"'l_,.. __ ~_:i>::-:·_._? :-.··1·~ • .• \.o ••.• "" ...... :-..s.~c ... 1· 1·,: ·r:~ ·~01.l•d Cc ··1i.·11; ... _ ......... _, 

- - - -·· - • - .<..; .•• ": - • -···: '-oJ ... ~.-:.:? .:i ;::c:.·.·-
-_.:-.:_:;~: ·!:·:~:a.~::~:~..J:i i:1 oc~~= ~ .. ~ ,..,.c?!.·.t.:•1 t.h-=it !1is o:-~l cln""'* ··--.- ... : . . ......... - '- ... ....:~ 
~~ ~-:.~·~·:::ir:~ i:.:1-= :~t!·~n :l.·:.:c:r::~..:L. D:-l~coll scc:::cd :-~r-;....c:- '":'u---· _ ... ~ . . . . -. - .... :· --~ ·...: .. . 
1:: : ;:-_ -: .:·:'!t.;'-:.:i: • :tc ' . ..:a:? r:cd ::,:, :<::o·.N" ·.·1n·.· :::t.!..:; :.::': .. ~st• c~ t·:l ... ·-·.:.-. - .. , . .. --- - .. '""- .. -·- ..• 
!'"tt::: ::j ~.:~:c - pol:·~:.-t:!~~~ ~x.::?::tt~ati:>n. !t:. ·.·:as -~:-:pl~i~c':! ~v 
Jri~==tt :~~c t~c~~ ~ad b~~~ ?~cvious off!ca: ~o~i~i~cs a~~ 
assa~l~~ ~h~~h ~ad been !n~escigaccd by ~hi3 :~~~~id~~l ~~~ 
tl:u~ :~::-:~1tc~ ~·:n.J !"!~c! !.:1 :~o ·.·!ay b·~en rcs9on.:; i.=!.c ~c i:i·.·r,l·:c-..i 
:"":..:'..! :u::·.:::::!'t·:i t:> c l.!i:;i :·cs;c:-:3bility oc c::ea:.: £ct" th~ .:::i::-:~.::. 
·- ., - ·· '- ... , ..... ; ·- ...;,,t· ;l .. D,,,..;.-c,...l" ,.J.._..,t ·.·~ ..; .. • ,,,. - · . '- .. ·.;')..., ·.·.·.;J ...... _ ... _. -•• ~.- .:1... '-0 - --t \,,/ J. '-••c..i ···- ..,, -S'- .-.a:it:•...;~! ::...:> 
~--:"'!~ .. ~ ;.:~:r . .3!:1 t.~~-!.. ~ic ·.~,1s in f.:rc: ~cspor-.sl1ilc :·o~ the c:-:.~e a:-::: 
c:.:: ~~ ~~~ ~0C a:c~~pting =~ c~k~ the wuig~t ~a= ~c=con~ elKc. 

~:-:.:...:~l.!. ~tc.:::-::··: :::~.:it t~i.s ·..,.as ~he f:.:-~t- ti~ti:? i.n his life: t!":a: 
;;.::~·c:-:':· !'::::! ~':··= :-~·.:~~ti·.J~ac.i·~ c:::~fcss1on t.;hic~ ~:~had gt·.ten. :~~ 
.::;-:::.··~ :::-?.c:.~ ~-.: ~!i.:; :-:.)t f<..'cl ti:-:.:? it shouL.l be :-:e::essar:t E·:>:: !1.:.::1 
·-:- t.:1.,~ :! r:~l·:·~=:Jfl!l ·~:<.J:n ::c..:.:!~~e he ~"as good :~c whut !1e ~ai 
=c~d~~'.! ~~ ~:.~ ~c~toxunc and ~a.had been truch~ul. Dricccll, 
~c ~~= :c~~=s:, staccd th~c ~e would cc~sido: t~e.maccc: an~ 
~~~l~ 1i'la t~1~ i~vestiga:cr an ~nswcr on or ~~out Jul1 13. 
t9a3. Cn ~~~: lg, 1983. r rccontact~d Driscoll and he sta:cd. 
:~~t: h~ ~ould dac!in~ ~t t~i$ ci~e to take a 9ol1graph cxa~ina-
~i=~· rr.1 co:.~i:~:.ic .. ! to maintai:l that ull oft.~~ infoc::?at.ion 
;:· ... ~'~ :n i.ri·:C"=;t:i 1;~t.ocs ·,·:js C!c::~.z-catc and trut:hf~l. rzo :ur':~c= 
c:...::i:~ct: h~s ~'~-:.:;~::ide · . .;i.th ~:"Jce::-c Dri~coll a~ :::.~ t!.r.tc c: .:his 

On ~~c af:cr~~~n of J~ly 5, 1933. contact was ~ade at t~e ac~~e 
C~:..;n:·1 1!c3;:i:.:?1 ·.-;ich :·rrc:-! Cf:ice:: Harold Roy :-:.:•...:;Ji:i, DOB .i:..:l.:l 5, 
t9~3. o:fic~= :·tau;>i::, d patient at the hos9i:a1 0:1 July 5, t'19J, 
~ad bc~n sta~~ed scrio~sly on July 3, 1933. ~a~;in receive~ 
a 3·~·~·,..rc st:!:> ·.·10L:nd :o· tha insid!:! of ~is :-ig:.t cr::t. T:-.c ·.-10-.:::~ 
-=·~~ultcu in d:::':':~gc to :::::~ arte:.-y. Fo~ detail~ oE Office:- :·!a·.:~.:.:-:';; 
i~j~=~~s ~nd cf t:-cat~cnc ad~inistcrcd, refer ~c ~edical :e;=r:s 
tJ te5~o~it~~~ ~Y attending :':':~dical scaff. 

- :-:.:'..!;>i:i :clc;t:ed that on July 3, 
h0~sing ~nit 2J rctu:lda area. 

1933, tc hc:id be~n assig~ed to t~~ 
~t a:ound 9:30 - 10:30 9.~ .. CC/: 
t~Qre were nu=e:-~us intoxica~~d 
If t • ..,., ..... ;... ..-~ •, - ,., 1 l :"\ d - 1-. ,... ,.. ('J - P'" ~ ,-, 1 CC - - ·°"' -•• \,,;.\\::""11·--"'! ~~--i:..; ......... -c11~i....-·..J- -··"---

~y cele9hone ~nj r~go=::~d t~e situation. A she=~ ti~e latar. 
c~=e~ ofEicocs a:.-riv~d at t~~ housing unit to assist the thee~ 
off ic~=s ~~o ~c=c ~l=c~ti~ on d~tv. Ma~oin scacad that ~e ~as · 
~a~ding ~u~ ic~ in th0 =;t~nda a;aa. Tha offico::-s enter~d t~~· 
23 ·.-1ir.g and .3ta::~c !..O b:-.i.ng out a~ int:ox:icat~d i.nrnc:ite. :-tau;Jin....-­
-::::~l:! ~o c ri:;;:ic:nbt.: r th~ i. :i:r.a t~ 1 s na:;.c. OE f icer Tom J ac!-:son ·.o1as 
o~c of th~ off ~~~~s ~ho assisted in attempting :o :o~ove the 
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:-r~C:·t 3 :.;: :.= l·.· ::t·~ :•:.:: l 
?:i·;~ t;: 

:-:~.· . .:;::.n ~':a:<:···! ::1~: ·.·:h~n t!~c i~::tatcs ch.:l:'';cd 1::::0 ::.he :-0::1,,;~d.J. 
e:;:,-.:·.1. ~-~·.,·as.:::::-~:::: en lllC ht?~d :J:" .. 1:1 r .. ::-:knc~ .. ·n .JS!:c::!il~~~. :-!c 
:::·~:1 :;i.~·.·: o:::::~= ..!.;!C~SCrl Ec:ill to th~ :::100::- :,,-:?t".·:~·~n t~c =c~·...:=:::.:. 
a~1 th~ A-w:.~g ~oo:-. ~au~i~ ~~a t~en sc~~hed i~ t~~ r~g~: a:~ 
~::· ·.!~1 =':!~ .• ·.c1:.::1 s:...:~jc=c. :·!.:iu;>in .st.:!ccci t!-1.:it :-:~ r:~e:i s~.:!=t:~d 
~L-:.!·;d:.~; ::==::.:s~l~· ::ind !~ad to l~=,~·~ ~he· hot..:5.:..r.g t.::ii~. :-£ 1.:! h-2 .. -.:·~:l 
£4)= :.:-.~ :. .. :::::.~:st=~ti-:ic1 :,ui'ldi~:.: -.-;here te rcc:i·."~d ~:r.e=·-=~::~·1 

• • • • • . 4 .. • 4 .. 

::i~~:~~.!. ::.=~.::.;:::'!~:1: ~=:..jr ti) :..::...!l.:!; ~rtins:cr:-c~ t:.a tt'=! Boor.a Cc·~:-.:·,t 
~:i:~p:..t.-~!.. :-;~t:~:.:i ·.·:.Js t:r1;~;l:~ :o :-~l.:lti::? an:r add:.~.:..cn..ll in:~::-::::.::~:-. 
c: '.".J.l!..!~ • .; · .. :=:.::·:?:1 stcicc::te~: is to =:e ob:.::ii=1~d f=o::t :·!au;>i:-i . 
0•/ -~i:::c:· •' ::t:•.;b.~C='/ 0~ S:=:.. 5elS~~ •Nht!:l his CC:.~d.!.Cicn all~·.;5. 

C .. .. ;_933. 
~=~~ War~c~ ~o~ald Wy:ick a~d ~ssi=:anc Wardan Bill Ar::tonc:c~~. 
't~t.::. of :-~S?, J.:::::::-s-Jn Ci.ty, :-tisso\:::-i, Chuc the=~ was a 9o~s:.­
bi!~ty c~at :he rio: ~t ~TC~ had been planned. Soch off:..cia:s 
:~Qn ccla:ej C~~c i~for:~cicn ~~d been ::-ccaived !=c::t Cep~:y 
S~~~.::-iEf .~.l!.J~=: T:..:=li..:·/ of St. F'=.:ir~cois Count~·. !·tissot:=i t~ac :-.; 
had inf~=~~~.:.~~ ;:!c= to July 3, 1933 t~at a r!cc ::t:..ghc ~e 
planned ~or che ~TC~ instit~cicn. According co in~o=::tati~~ 
r~ccived f=o::t bee~ Warden Wv::-ick and As3istanc Wa~~an Ar~~n:::~~ 
on or db~uc Julv l, 1983, T~=lev had been told bv ~ fe~al~ . . . 
~~=~n ~nd ide~~iE!ed a~ ~arv n~r:on that t~c oenal in=:i:uc~=~ 
at ~o~c=l~ ~as ~in Eor a bi~ suro~isa over :~~ Eou=th b~ Juli 
wc~kcndn.· Turlav was told ~v Sd~ton that there ~as go~n; to 
be a riot a:: ~h~ · !.:ist.itut!.on: Barco~ has a ht.!sband at :-rrc:-r 
i~c:-:cif:~d as :·!a:sr~all 8arto:-t. Turlev did net t~!.:;k too :::1.!c:: 

- '-- . - . .. .. ~ •b" -t- ,~ t-=··'3, .. ~ .... a: t .. -: :.n:or:::~~::;n ;it c~e t!.:ne because t .• e SL! JS~- ..... o -:~·- ··-·· 
,.:...~ ;,.,!=',...--..:a~tQ""' :..,.°" ~C-"""~d c1S ,...0,.. 1-.,e.l·""C OverlH -cl;able 71.!=.:..;·: '-•·- -··-'-'-··~c;;.-.·. - .. ··- ... ~~;it... •• ... .... '"' ~ - -! ... - . 

· . ..-e~::. on vac.:itio~ on .Tul"J' 2, l933. On :to~dav, J1.!ly ;t. L9.13. 
~,·- 1 :'\·, "t'>-:s..-,.; ~b'""''.,. ,..;..,, ~·co·c .. 1 ... -.:o .. "l.·a c~e·~e'·rs ~Qd;c. 7 ··-~:.·· 
-----,.: i. .. _ ... ___ - •J;.,J,l._ '-••<.,,,; 11.l --: ...... '- .._ ..... ' ··- - • -·----: 

lata= ccncacccd ~S? and t<ll~~d to Wa=~en Do~ald Wy:::-ic~. ~-= -- -

ri:= t!":·~ C'C~:.:~~st 'JC :-1s::- 0f:~ci.::ils, Office::- Tt..:=lcy cc:i.ta:::~C. ,J. 

Ee:::i,1lc ~:1~· .. 1:i c!:1'.~ id~:~t i [ i-.!:l c!3 Sar.d=.J. Guod· .. .;i:i. Sand.:-w. G~cd·...;:.~ 
•:1as ·.·d.~n :-!c=i 5::.=::~:i en ..:·.!l.•1 l, !..983 ~-~~n she told. Turle'f oE :-:.:r-­
""'1·"'"""·..T ... ; ,..;i·s .. ··-·c:--·· <l~ '-IT1.-···· On Ju~·· 7 1983 ~··elev o~~.:aine~ :-'--···'-_. ........ __ ._. .. _.,,,,,_,.. '- . ....,. . •1 , , •"-'- .. -

fc:::n Sa:~:.'.r:.:i Cr;-=d·.;:..:i ..i .·1C'itt·~'.1 3tat~:":'lcnt r~gar:~~:ig th~ i~fc:-~a::.a:: 
T1..:=l~y <'tlso ::-:u·.!~ .=. • .... =~tr:~:i r:e;,)v=i: !ii::-:solf on ·...:hat he h:Jd '::::ce:; ::::;:.. 
9::-i:>r to July 3, l9d.:. 
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( 
r ., 
• .J • 

:-:-rc:·l S;;ppl·~:::~:lt.l! tra·.-asc.igatic 
?~tJC ! ~ 

( 

7~rl~y r~Q~ ::-:a~tad both scatc:cn:s to Sill Ar=o~t=o~: e~ ~S~. 
0n J;.;l·.: lJ. l'Ja3. :-tr. t.t:::-:o:it::-o~t tran.;fcr::cd the s:~:c~encs 
~c:~:~~~ by rurloy to rc~o::~~g inv~stigaccr. rt s~oul~ ~e ~~=~i 
t~~c l zc~:~~a~: ~~$ nee ~cen c~:ainod f:o~ ~ar7 Sar:on bcc~~~a 
sh~ ~a~t :~~ ~rca ~nd is teli~v~~ co be i~ the Rolla a:aa ~t :~a 
:>::~~c:i: -:!.::-:a. 

E~cr7 ~~vcsti;~:~ve effort. has been and is bei~g ~ado to 
~~~~==i~c :he idc~tit/ of and co bring to justlco t~c indi'li­
d~~l er i~d~vid~als ~ho are.rcsoonsible for the deat~ of co;~ 
7~o~as Glen Jac~s~n and t~e subsequent. assaults upon othe:: 
c~rrcccional officers ~t ~TCM an July 3, 1983. Due to tho nu=t~: 
.... ,: • ... -~-.~s ···~ ··1~r . ., •nto"-"''"at~d _,.,..d ···n· o to V:\ ... ,.; .. a ..:ec:r"' 0 s ....... - - ' •• ~ ..... t.. - • .._ ' • .J • t;; ._ ... .." - - ~ Q \. •• , c.:. - "J - •• - '-- - - - , 

p~=:ici;~cad in the rioc, che full cxca~t of the nu~bcr a~d 
~Jo~ci:y ·cf ~~oae involved ~ay ~ever ~e kno~~. The g:eatest 
o~s:~c!Q ~h:c~ hls ha~pcred on~oing investigacicn th~s far 
~as been the ina~ility of yotcnci~l cyewit~esscs to =c~~~ber 
~~:t~ir.g d3 co the identity oE the officer~· assaila~ts. Th~s 
is not co say chat the Qf ficers have not honestly made such 
atte~;~s. T~a hard :~cts are that when one is fighti~g for 
life its~!~ :here is no ti:a to sit down and ta~e ncccs. 

!t ~ns suggeE~ed by Sgt. L. Dale Belshe chat perhaps ic ~i~~= 
~o bcn~ficial if tha o~ficers i~vol~ed were to be placed 
u~~er hy~n~sis if thoy are willing. I feel that s~c~ an 
i~vestiJati~a p=ccedure ~i;ht b~ oE benefit. Sst. 3elshe 
!~~$ i;~,.lic.:ited th3.C ha is willing co :nake che ar=ange:::ancs. 

A con:i~ucd eEfa:t will be made to identify any indi'lidual who 
was inv~lved i~ the acts of violence which took place on July 3, 
~g~J. '7'n.-. •--o- .. "' .. - i::,.,cto- i·n a .. in""'"sti·gation of ""h1·s :n~g:ii- .. ..:" 
--- ···- -···~ 4-ti.. ...... ~.&,. -.<.:.. - .,. -- "- - '-• ., ....... '-'<wo--

is ~oc who or ~hat agency receives tha cra~it but that agancies 
~crki~g togcchcr as a single effective invescigacive unit do all 
that is ?Ossiblc within the real~ of ~olice scie~ce to solve 
the problem fo= the benefit a: all concer~ed. 

There will be no atte~?t in this brief re9ort to identify t~e 
u~~erlyi~g causes of the events of July 3, 1933. A rc?o:t 
addressing t~ese is3ucs has al:eady been sub~ittcd by M=. Geer;~ 
Lo~bar1i, Assistant Di:ecto=. vich exiensive in~uc fro~ re~orc~~g 
in•1es t :.gat:t-:;i:. 

-
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observed Tom Jackson standing where you put the X and the T.J.? 

2 A. I came inside here and I stepped over here so I could 

3 try to observe and which I did observe through the glass, the 

4 inmates. 

5 Q. Now, can you put P.S. where the prisoners were all 

6 rushed on the flag area as you saw as you were looking out? 

7 A. All rushed in this whole area including the doorway. 

8 Q. At that point after you went around the partition, had 

9 the prisoners began to edge out into the rotunda control center 

10 area? 

11 A. Yes. This group had come up here~some had already 

12 managed to get into the rotunda area. 

13 Q. Now, retake your seat. 

l4 A. (Witness complies.) 

f 15 
Ta 

Q. Sir, from your perspective on the other side of the 

16 glass within the control center area, as you saw Tom Jackson 

17 being held can you describe to the Ladies and Gentlemen of 

18 the jury the manner in which he was being restrained? 

19 A. They had him by the arm and by the hair of the head 

20 and had his head twisted completely around holding him right up 

21 against the door casing. 

22 Q. Okay. If the door casing -- the glass wasn't separating 

23 you, how far would you have been from where they were holding 

24 him up against the casing? 

25 A. About a foot. 
j. 
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l 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Q. As you were observing through this glass area, what were 

you trying to do? 

A. I tried to reach around and get hold of Officer Jackson's 

shoulders trying to pull him around because he had already been 

5 knocked away and this was the only alternative at that particular 

6 time that I had. 

7 Q. Now, sir, I ask you -- I am directing the jurors attention 

8 now for the record to State's Exhibit 15 and ask you to step 

9 down here. 

10 A. {Witness complies.) 

11 Q. This is the doorway pictured on Exhibit 15, is that right, 

12 on Exhibit 8? 

13 

14 

15 

l6 

17 

18 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

19 right? 

Yes. 

This door is wide open? 

It is wide open. 

You were standing on the other side of the partition? 

Yes. 

And you reached around over the glass panel, is that 

That's right. 

To try and --

Try and get ahold of him. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. As you reached around the glass panel trying to get ahold 

24 of Tom Jackson, what, if anything, happened to you? 

25 A. I got hit. 
I. 
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Q. Where did you get hit? 

2 A. In the jaw. 
( 

3 Q. When you were looking ~hrough the glass, did you 

4 recognize anybody holding Tom Jackson? 

5 A. I did. 

6 Q. Who did you recognize? 

7 A. An inmate by the name of Roberts. 

8 Q. Do you see inmate Roberts in the courtroom today? 

9 A. Sitting over there at the table. 

10 Q. Next to 

11 A. Next to Mr. Marshall. 

12 MR. FINNICAL: Your Honor, may the record reflect 

13 the witness identified the Defendant, Roy Roberts. 

14 THE COURT: It will so reflect. 

15 Q. You indicated Tom Jackson was being restrained by the 

16 arm and holding his hair? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. In what manner was the Defendant restraining Tom Jackson 

19 in the hallway? 

20 A. I didn't underst~nd you. 

21 Q. In what manner was the Defendant restraining Officer 

22 Jackson? 

23 A. Had him by the arm and also by the hair of the head and 

24 keeping him right up against the door casing. 

25 Q. Did you see any other inmates out there close to Tom 
t . 
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( 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

Jackson that you knew or came to know? 

A. Yes. Rodney Carr was over to the right. 

Q. 

A. 

Any other inmates? 

Mercy, I can't remember his name here. Well, I can't 

call the name. 

Q. Can you describe him? 

A. He was a smaller fellow. I would say a hundred and 

fifty (150) pounds or sixty (-60), somewhere along there, 

maybe fifty-five (-55), five foot four (5'4"). 

Q. Did you see this fe.llow doing anything to Officer Jackson 

as the Defendant was holding him? 

A. No. The only thing that I could see was when this other 

person was behind Officer Jackson which while Roberts was holding 

him I would see Jackson jerking and blood getting all over him. 

Q. Did you make another attempt after getting your hands 

16 knocked away to get him out? 

17 A. Yes. I made two or three more attempts. 

18 Q. On one of the attempts, did you actually enter into the 

19 door area to get Torn Jackson out? 

20 A. I did. I tried and got knocked down again. 

21 Q. When you tried the second time to get hold of Torn Jackson, 

22 who stepped in the doorway and knocked you down; 

23 A. The Defendant. 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. 
j-

At the time he hit you, was he also holding Tom Jackson? 

Turned loose of him and took the second hold on him. 
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1 Q. When did he take the second hold of him? .. 2 A. I was down on the floor • 
J .. 

3 Q. When you took hold of <:he door facing there was a jab? 

"" MR. MARSHALL: Object, leading. 

5 THE COURT: It is a little leading. 

6 Q. How many times did you see the Defendant let go of Tom 

7 Jackson and regrab ahold of him? 

8 A. He held him on the initial first time and turned loose 

9 of him and then grabbed him a second time. 

10 Q. When you reached in.the second time to grab Tom Jackson 

11 into the rotunda area, describe his shirt? 

12 A. It was completely red with blood all over the front and 

13 the side. 

14 Q. Was it hard to recognize it was blood or easy? 

15 A. Very easy. 

16 Q. After you were knocked down by the Defendant, he regrabbec 

17 ahold of Tom Jackson? 

18 Ae He regrabbed him. 

19 Q. After he regrabbed ahold of Tom Jackson the second time 

20 did you see anybody else making stabbing motions toward Tom 

21 Jackson while Roberts was holding him? 

22 A. Rodney Carr was making a stabbing motion toward him. 

23 

11 

24 

Q. You say the blood on the shirt between the two times you 

were hit was obvious? 

25 A. Very, very obvious. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

( 15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

borderline. I just didn • t take time to count everything and 

write everything. Your life was on the line and you had to. 

Q. After you went back to the Administrative Building, after 

the riot was suppressed, did you have occasion to write a report? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How long a report did you write? 

A. A very short report because I was the highest ranking 

officer at the institution at that time. No one else had 

reached there yet. We had law officers corning in from everywhere 

I was answering the telephone calls and answering questions and 

a short one was all I got. I did write one later. I don't 

know, the 20th or somewhere I wrote a report on what I saw. 

Q. As the investigation began around the riot and the 

killing of Torn Jackson, how many different agencies would you 

say you may have talked to? 

A. Well, I talked to Sgt. Belshe, Investigator for the State 

Highway Patrol which was -- his interest wa?the killing. I 

talked to the Sheriff of Randolph County, then the Public Safety­

Public or Public Office -- whatever you want to call it, and I 

also talked with the F.B.I., plus I had talked with the Internal 

Investigator of the institutionJand then I was questioned by 

the State Highway Patrol Investigators which wasn't on the 

killing but it was on whether we were abusive or not towards 

the inmates. 

Q. So an investigation of all sides of the issue? That was 

t -
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ORVILLE PRICE puts Robert Wayne Hess into a Hypnosis state. I 
ORVILLE PRICE: Wayne, I want you to go back in tir:-.e :1ow . tc:: 0 , __ 

3, 1983. I want you to thi:1k about and recall July 3, 1333. Co ye--.: 

remember July 3, 1983, Wayne? HESS: Yes. 

5 PRICE: Ok, Wayne, it's Sunday, July 3, 1983 and you're going 

6 work at the Moberly Training Center. You have arrived at the Traini:-.-; 

7 Center now and it's around 2:30-3:00 o'clock in the afternoon you ha·:-::: 

8 arrived at the Moberly Training Center and you're going on duty. Vih::.:. 

9 was your duty that day Wayne? 

10 HESS: Food Service 

J 1 PRICE: Ok, ~ayne.' you have went on duty at the food service, a:-.:: 

12 let yourself. completely relax, you went on duty at the Training Cent-::::· 

13 in Food Service. Sometime that evening, Wayne, after Food Service, 

14 there was an incident in the Training Center. Somebody got you and 

15 sent you down to B Wing, who asked you to go down to B Wing? Did 

16 somebody do that? HESS: Yes. 

17 PRICE: Who was that person? 

18 HESS: Captain Halley. 

19 PRICE: Did you go to B Wing with Captain Halley then, that 

20 night? HESS: Yes. 

21 PRICE: Ok, Wayne, now you're in B Wing with Captain Halley an~ 

22 other '"T'>~rds ~ompletely relax now--let yourself be completely rel~x--

23 your completely relaxed. Tell us what you see when you get down to 
' 

24_,~·B w±ng tha,~~night with Captain Halley, Wayne • 
.. 

.... if". 25 , HESS: He'd,qone down to get a drunk. 

f..2 I 2~ 

2 
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PRICE: Somebody" went down to get a drunk? 

HESS: Yes. 2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

PRICE: Ok. Had they already gone down be=ore you got there? 

HESS: No. 

PRICE: Who went down to get a drunk, then, Wayne? 

HESS: Donald Kroeckel, Officer Goodin, and Officer Torn Jackson. 

PRICE: Ok, more and more relaxed, continued relaxed, Wayne. 

8 Where are you at, Wayne, when they go and get the drunk? 

HESS: Down in the wing. 

PRICE: Who else did you see there, Wayne? 

9 

JO 

J t HESS: There was Officer Dillon there and Hess and they went 

12 down to get this man, I don't know his name. 

13 PRICE: Ok, is there anybody else you see around there, Wayne? 

14 HESS: Just a bunch of inmates. 

15 PRICE: They're standing around in the Wing? 

16 HESS: Yes. 

17 PRICE: Ok, more and more relaxed, Wayne. Let yourself 

18 completely relax. Ok, can you see down in the wing to see where 

19 they get the drunk out of? 

PRICE: Do they bring the drunk up. 

HESS: Yes. 

HESS: Yes. 

20 

21 

22 PRICE: Who's bringing the drunk--who's got ahold of the 

23 drunk, Wayne? 

24 HESS: Kroeckel and Goodin. 

25 PRicE: Ok. Do you see officer Jackson? 

3 
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1 HESS: Yes. 

2 PRICE: Where is--Whereabouts do you see him at? 

3 HESS: He's behind Kroeckel and Goodin with the inmate. 

4 PRICE: Ok. What happens then, Wqyne? 

~~~----.;~~y start bringing the irtdtl back out a!".e T 1heR tlr~ 
( ~ ~-
~ up by the steps, the man broke loose. ----------· 

7 PRICE: Got up to the steps and then what? 

8 HESS: He broke loose, the man did, from Kroeckel and Goodin. 

9 PRICE: Ok, let yourself relax, now, completely relax. More 

10 and more relaxed, let yourself completely relax. I'm going to count 

11 to three and touch you on your left shoulder and I want you to more 

12 and more completely relax. One, completely relax. Two, completely 

13 relax, now. Three, let yourself completely relax, completely relax. 

14 Wayne, your're in the B wing and they're bringing this drunk out and 

15 you say he's broke loose from Kroeckel and Goodin. Whereabouts are 

16 they at now, where do you see them at? 

17 HESS: Up by the steps. 

18 PRICE: Is that by the steps th.:i t uh-come into the RutundcJ. or 

19 what, Wayne? 

20 HESS: Corne up out of the wing. 

21 PRICE: Corne up out of the wing. What do you see happens nc:<:-

22 after he breaks loose? 

23 HESS: A bunch inmates coming. Ther--ones got a knife. 

24 PRICE: Somebody's got u. knife? 
f -

HESS: Yes. 

25 PRICE: How do you know somebody's got a knife? 

4 
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1 HESS: I see it. 

2 PRICE: You see it? HESS: Yes. 

3 PRICE: ~ .. no' s got a ' . ~ iG11..ce, Way:le? '"1ESS: An inm.::te 

4 PRICE: Do you know ·..,rho it is? HESS: No. 

5 PRICE: Ok, then what do you see next, Wayne? 

6 HESS: He stabbed Jackson. 

7 PRICE: He stabbed Jackson? HESS: Yes. 

8 PRICE: And then what did he do then? 

9 HESS: He said knife. 

10 PRICE: He what? 

11 HESS: He said knife away from him. 

12 PRICE: Did somebody say to get the knife away from him, you'ce 

13 saying? Just tell me what you see, Wayne. 

14 HESS: Get that knife. 

15 PRICE: Get that knife? 

16 HESS: He's sticking Jackson. 

17 PRICE: He's sticking Jackson? Then what do you see next, 

18 Wayne? 

19 HESS: He's coming after me. 

20 PRICE: What happened then, Wuyne. Wh--

21 HESS: I-I got to go to Jackso'n. 

22 PRICE: What hnppen th--

23 HESS: (inaudible) 

24 PRICE: Just tell me what you're seeing. 

j- HESS: An inmate sticking--he's coming after me with it. 

5 
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1 PRICE: And then what happens, Wayne? 

2 HESS: He stuck me. 

3 P~ICE: He stuc~ you? HESS; Yes. 

4 PRICE: Then what happens, Wayne? What are you seeing? ·-_,..,._...-

5 HESS: We had gone back up and Jackson fell down to the 

PRICE: Jackson fell down to the floor? 

HESS: Yes. 

9 PRICE: Do you see any inmates coming through the doors? 

TO HESS: Yes, a whole bunch of them..:__-------
----~---------··---- --------------

PRICE: Who do you see first corning in the door, do you know them? 

12 HESS: No, about ten or fifteen. 

13 PRICE: Jackson-do you see Jackson now? Is he on the floor or 

t 4 what? 

15 HESS: Yes. 

16 PRICE: What else do you see, Wayne, what's happening? 

17 HESS: We--we're getting them back in the wing, they're fighting 

18 us, knocking us down. 

/----P-RI_C_E_:--Dia-:JOtt know arlYO[ them, Wayne? 1 
~o HESS: No. ~/ 

21 PRICE: Do you see anybody get--does any-do you get stuck? 

22 HESS: Yes. 

23 PRICE: Do you see the knife? 

24 HESS: Yes. 

25 PRICE: Who stuck you, Wayne? Do you know? 

6 
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HESS: An inmate, I don't know his name. 

1 PRICE: L<>+- yourself completely relax, now. Let your 0 
.' 

3 completely relax and just look at what you're--this is Jul·. ~~d 

4 you've got trouble in the wing. Tell me, uh, do you see any of 

5 the other guards? 

6 HESS: Not at this time. 

7 PRICE: Not at this time? 

8 HESS: No. I still see the inmates. 

9 PRICE: You just.see the inmates. 

10 HESS: Um-huh. 

11 PRICE: Wh--whereabouts are you standing at Wayne? 

12 HESS: On the other side of Jackson in the doorNay. 

13 PRICE: On the right side of Jackson in the doorway? 

14 HESS: Yes. 

15 PRICE: Let yourself completely relax. It there any other 

16 guards standing with you? 

17 HESS: I don't see none. 

18 PRICE: You don't see none. Do you recall where Captain 

19 Halley is at? 

20 HESS: No. 

21 PRICE: Ok, you can't see any of-the 

22 HESS: Just the inmates. 

23 PRICE: Ok. Let yourself completely 

24 coming through the door into the Rotunda? 
i. 

25 HESS: Yes. 

7 

other guards?, 

relax. Arc the inmatt:'s 
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1 PRICE: Do they come on through--do you--are you in the Rotunda_ 

2 now, or where are you at? 

3 H~SS: I'm at the wing door. 

4 PRICE: You're still at the wing door. 

5 HESS: And they came over to the wing door and they pushed 

6 their way up to the door and that's when it all happened. 

7 PRICE: Tell us what you see happening Wayne. 

8 HESS: The man has a knife in his hand. 

9 PRICE: What does the man look like that's got the knife in 

10 his hand? 

11 HESS: He's/ggfonde hair, about 5'7"--5"8", got a white, blue 

12 tank top on, he's got white taping on the knife at the--at the end 

13 of where the other tape's at. 

14 PRICE: White tape on the knife? 

15 HESS: Yes, white, gray tape. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

PRICE: Does he say anything? 

PRICE: Do you hear any yelling? 

HESS: No~ 

HESS: Yes, · bunch 1)f ir:::.. 

PRICE: Can you tell what anybody says? 

HESS: No, I can't. Just get that knife away from him. 

PRICE: Let yourself completely relax, more and more relaxed. 

21 Is someone trying to get the knife .:i.w:1y from him? 

22 

23 

24 

25 
j. 

HESS: I'm trying. 

PRICE: You're trying to get the knife away from him. Ok. 

HESS: I've been cut. 

PRICE: You've been cut. You've been cut now? 

8 
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HESS: In my fingers. 

2 PRICE: On your finger. Let ~ourself completely relax, ~ore 

3 and more relaxed. Completely relax, Wu.ync. i·1ore .. 1;)d more relaxed. 

4 Let y_ourself completely relax now, just completely rest, Wayne. 

5 Just completely relax. Completely relax, Wayne. Alright. Completely 

6 relax, more and more. You're on the--you're in the wing now, we're 

7 gonna--you're going to have to come back, Wayne, we're gonna bring 

8 you back and I going to count to five and you are gradually going 

9 to come back. I want you to come back and we're gonna finish later. 

10 are One, you I gonna gradually wake up Wayne, at the count of five you' 11 

I 1 wake up. T'wo, you're coming back, Wayne. Three, Four, Five, Wayne 

12 wake up now, please. Let yourself wake up now Wayne. How do you 

13 feel, Wayne? 

14 HESS: Tired. 

15 PRICE: Didn't rest long enough, did you? Where'd you cut 

16 your finger at Wayne? 

17 HESS: Right there(indicating). Across my ht:1.nd. 

18 PRICE: You got cut across your hand, too? 

19 HESS: Yes, it's gone now. Hot. 

20 PRICE: Hot from what? (inaudible) That's natural, Wayne. 

21 Want a drink, Wayne? 

22 HESS: ~Jo. 

23 PRICE: You're completely--you're real good about relaxing, 

24 Wayne. Your only problem is that probably that you should do it. 

25 layihg down so you could really rest. But, we're half way through 

9 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

HESS: Can I get up and walk? 

PRICE: Yeah, su~e. 

BEGINNING OF SECOND SESSION 

ORVILLE PRICE puts Robert Wayne Hess into a Hypnosis state. 

PRICE: Okay, Wayne, the Prosecutor, Paul Oesterreicher, is 

7 here and he wants you to go back and think about July 3. You're 

8 in the B Wing, the inmates are yelling, you've been cut on your 

9 fingers. Your finger is cut, you tried to take the knife. The 

10 Prosecutor wants to ask you a few questions. Paul--I am going to 

11 turn it over to Paul now and Wayne he's going to ask you a few 

12 questions about what you see that night. 

13 OESTERREICHER: Wayne, can you describe for me what the knife 

14 looks like? 

15 HESS: It's about 7 to 10 inches long, it's got a gray handle 

16 with white on it, and that's all I seen of the knife. ~(., this day 

17 I've been seeing the knife. 

18 

19 

20 

OESTERREICHER: Was it sharpened on both ends? 

HESS: Yes. 

OESTERREICHER: Were there any particular markings on the actual 

21 knife blade? 

22 

23 

24 

25 
j' 

HESS: Not that I see. 

PRICE: Completely relax, Wayne. 

OESTERREICHER: When did you first see that knife, Wayne? 

HESS: On the night of July the 3rd in B Wing between 10 and 

10 
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1 10:30. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

OESTER..qEICHER: Hho had the knife? 

HESS: .:l..n inmate. I don't know his :-:.ar::e. 

OESTERREICHER: Describe that inmate, if you can. 

HESS: He was about 5'7"-5'8", between 120 to 150 pounds, 

6 dishpan sandy blonde hair, and a white man with a white, blue tank 

7 top, with white trim down in the neck. Then the man took off down 

8 the wing. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

OESTERREICHER: Was the tank top short sleeve? 

HESS: Sleeveless. 

OESTERREICHER: Did he have any tatoos on him? 

HESS: Yes. 

OESTERREICHER: What type of tatoos? 

HESS: I don't know, but I know he did have one on his arm. 

OESTERREICHER: Which arm? 

HESS: I think low. I'm not sure on that. ,A bunch of inmates. 

OESTERREICHER: What happen when you first saw the knif c in the 

18 hands of this inmute? 

19 HESS: I tryed yell for--hollar there's a knife. And that's 

20 when I noticed this inmate taking stabbing motions towards Officer 

21 Jackson. 

22 

23 

OESTERREICHER: Did you see the knife go intu Jackson? 

HESS: I just seen the stabbing motions. 

24 OESTERREICHER: What did Jackson do? 

25 l · HESS: Jackson didn't have a chance. He had him in a he<.id lock· 

11 
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 OESTERREICHER: Who has him in a head lock? 

2 HESS: A bunch o: ir:r:iates. 

3 OE:STERREICHER: Did you know any of them? 

4 HESS: No. I don't know any of them. ------
5 OESTERREICHER: Could you described who had him in a head 

6 lock? 

7 HESS: No, I can't. I see11 them holding J.:ic:k:..;on's he<l<i r-·nlli.ng 

.. ---- ~-
------- ----8 him back in to the wing. 

9 OESTERREICHER: Were there any guards around? 

10 HESS: There was guards behind but I can't see who they were. 

Jl I tryed to pull Jackson back out of the wing. I said come on Jackson 

12 get up. I couldn't get him. That's when he was getting stabbed. 

13 OESTERREICHER: Where was he getting stabbed? 

14 HESS: In the middle of the chest. They--

15 OESTER..qEICHER: Where WilS he facinq towards you? 

16 HESS: Jackson had his head out into the wing. Let's get the 

17 knife. 

OESTERREICHER: Was his full body in the Rotunda area? 18 

/ 
I 19 HESS: Yes, he just had hi:; heud inside the wj ng. Let's c1ct the 

\ 20 knife away from him, he's gonna kill. They stabbed him. They stabbed 
,/ 

~him 
------

with the knife. 

-- ----- . ---... ',.. 
22 OESTERREICHER: You grabbed for the knife? 

23 HESS: Yes, get the knife. 

24 PRICE: Completely relax, Wayne. Completely relax. 

25 HESS: Kill. I'll kill 'em my way. I'll kill them if I get--

12 
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PRICE: Completely relax, it's alright Wayne. Completely 

2 relax. 

3 OESTER?.EICHER: Where did you get cut, Wayne? 

4 HESS: In the fingers. 

5 OESTER..'Q.EICHER: Was that your first cut? 

6 HESS: Uh-yes. 

1 OESTERREICHER: Where did you get--did you get any other cuts? 

8 HESS: Yes. 

9 OESTERREICHER: Where? 

10 HESS: On the right shoulder. It hurts. 

l1 OESTERREICHER: ,Who gave you that cut? 

12 HESS: The same inmate. And that's when I get the knife away 

13 from him. The one that got Jackson. 

14 OESTERREICHER; After the stabbing of Jackson, did you see any 

15 guards any where? 

16 HESS: Yes. On the left. I don' t know what the guards r.a :ne 

17 is. He's on the left side of me. 

18 OESTERREICHER: Anybody else? 

19 HESS: One be--there's a guard behind me. I don't know wl:<it 

20 his name is. I don't know who he is. 

21 OESTERREICHER: After you got stubbed, did you see the knife? 

22 HESS: No. 

23 OESTERREICHER: Do you know what happened to the knife? 

24 HESS: No. There's a guard there. He's got a knife in his 

25 hand~ the guard does. 

13 
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 2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

OESTERREICHER: The guard has the knife? 

HESS: Yes. 

OESTSRREICHER: The same knife that stabbed you? 

HESS: Yes. 

OESTERREICHER: Was that knife--

HESS: The one with the tape on it. 

OESTERREICHER: Was that guard do with that knife? 

HESS: He picked--he stuck it--he's got it in his hand. I think 

9 he's sticking it in his pocket. 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20' 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

OESTERREICHER: Was there any blood on that knife? 

HESS: Yes, from what I can see. 

PRICE: It's alright Wayne, let yourself relax. Completely 

relax. Wayne, we're going to gradually come back now. On the count 

of five I am going to tap you on your left shoulder and you're going 

to open your eyes and gradually, slowly come back now. One, gradually 

slowing come back. 'I",;o, slowly. Three, slowly c'orning back. Four, 

slowing coming back, slowly. Five, slowing coming back. Just sit 

there and relax, Wayne. Did you work today? 

HESS: No. 

PRICE: You're off today. 

HES.S: Uh-uh. 

PRICE: When did you--

HESS: Three days. 

PRICE: Three days? When did you get Off I last night? 

t, HESS: Monday at noon time. 

14 
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PRICE: Monday at noon time. (inaudible) 

2 HESS: Uh-mm 

3 PRICE: Do you still work in Focd Services? 

4 HESS: No. 

5 PRICE: Where are you working at? 

HESS: Visiting Room. 

7 PRICE: Visiting Room. 

8 HESS: I've worked for the Food Services one time since I've 

9 been back. 

10 PRICE: Is Goodin still working? 

11 HESS: Yes. 

12 PRICE: What's he do? 

13 HESS: He's the zone man to walk around the yards. 

14 PRICE: Do you have a hard time waking up, do you? You do 

15 that every time, I bet you have a hard time waking up. 

16 HESS: It takes me an hour to wake up. 

17 PRICE: It does. I can really see it. 

18 OESTERREICHER: Can I ask any more questions, Orville? 

19 PRICE: Mm 

20 OESTERREICHER: Can I ask any more questions? 

21 PRICE: Yeah. 

22 OESTERREICHER: Feel up to answering one or two more questions? 

23 HESS: Yeah. 

24 OESTERREICHER: You described the man that you saw doing the 

25 stabbing motion at Jackson and that cut you. When did yuu see him next? 
1-

15 
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HESS: The next morning. 

2 OESTERREICHER: How? 

3 :-!ESS: In D cell, in the ad sec 3 house or •..;ha tever they ww.n t. 

4 to call it over there. 

5 

6 

7 

OESTERREICHER: By hisself? 

HESS: He was in the cell by hisself. They wanted me to come 

back out and make a statement out at the prison now. They said they 

8 had the man. I want over there and that was _the man. 

9 OESTERREICHER: Who was that man? 

10 HESS: Inmate Call. 

J1 

12 

OESTERREICHER: He is the one that you saw doing the stabbing? 

HESS: Yes, he had the knife in his hand. I think he is in 789 

13 over there in adsec 3 house. I'm not for sure what room he was in. 

14 PRICE: Did you ever see this other guy that has confessed 

15 to it? 

16 

17 

HESS: I didn't see him at all. 

PRICE: Did you ever see him down at the udsec or anything? 

18 In adsec locked up or anything? 

19 HESS: No, I haven't cause usu~lly if I am not assigned to a 

20 house. 

21 PRICE: Yeah. Well, I thought maybe the next day _they had 

22 you pick out the guys. 

23 HESS: Well, they showed rne pictures. 

24 PRICE: Was he involved? 

25 i. HESS: In the off ice they did. 

16 
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 2 

3 

OESTERREICHER: Were they black and white or color photos? 

HESS: Black and white. Like they have out at the prison. 

OESTERREIC~ER: R~ght. 

4 HESS: With their numbers .:ind everything on them, too. 

5 RON DULANY: Wayne, when you s.:iw the inmate in the D wins, or 

6 adsec---

7 HESS: Adsec. 

8 DULANY: What was he wearing? 

9 HESS: He had on grey pants on and he didn't have not shirt on. 

10 DULANY: Just a pair of grey pants and not shirt. 

J 1 HESS: Yes. He had a bandage wrapped around his head, bandage 

12 to chest here(indicating). They put him in a line up with five in-

13 mates. 

14 PRICE: But, you had already seen him downstairs before the line 

15 up, hadn't you? 

16 HESS: Well, I didn't take that much of a glunce of him, I jL~t 

17 walked by him and then I seen him in there. 

18 
PRICE: Ok. In the line up, when you picked him out of th~ ltne 

19 up, did he have a shirt on then? 

20 HESS: No. 

21 PRICE: Ok. 

22 HESS: None of the inmates had shirts on. 

23 PRICE: None of them did. Ok. Did he have any tatoos on him. 

24 HESS: Yes. 

25 j -PRICE: Where? 

17 
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l HESS: On his chest and on his arms. 

2 PRICE: Which arm? 

3 HESS: ~hey had all--five of them had tato0s on t~em. r thin~ 

4 it is the left arm, here (indicating). He had fi'Je in-- up there 

5 had tatoos the same way on them and I picked him out and they told 

6 me not to say nothing to any of the inmates, just you and pick the 

7 man out, go back into the office and wait til they come in there. 

8 I picked the man out and that's when you (inaudible). They didn't 

9 have to tell me if I picked out the right man or not. 

10 PRICE: After you were cut, where'd you--what happened--where 

11 did you go to from there? 

12 HESS: The hospital. 

13 PRICE: Who took you to the hospital? 

14 HESS: I went by myself. 

15 PRICE: Did someone tell you to go to the hospital? 

16 HESS: Yes. 

17 PRICE: 1·1ho? 

18 HESS: Captain. 

19 PRICE: Captain Halley? 

20 HESS: Yes. 

21 PRICE: Where did he--you hadn't seen him, where did he appear 

22 at? 

23 HESS: I seen him when he came back in with the shot guns. 

24 PRICE: Oh, that's when he told you to go to the hospital. 

25 I· HESS: Yes, you see me, Wilson and Goodin was i.n the house by 

18 
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1 ourselves and Halley earn in there and he and two or three others had 

2 shotguns. 

3 ?RIC'S: o:-:, you '"'-=:::.-<.:: s til 1 tlic:r-c ,1 t t:-.ci t time? 

4 HESS: "f12s, I was still in the housing unit. I wa!;; thc::-e .:ibuut. 

5 10 minutes when I guess Officer Wilson said Hess was stabbed and Halley 

6 looked and said you're going to the hospital Hess. 

7 PRICE: Go ahead, but he had the shotguns and was back with the 

8 shotguns? 

9 HESS: Yes. 

10 PRICE: Did you ever see Halley go after the shotguns? Did 

11 you see him when he left? 

12 HESS: Yes, I seen him when he walked--went out the door to get 

t3 them. 

14 PRICE: He ran out the door to get them? 

15 HESS: Yes, but we had everybody back in the wing and everybr;dy 

16 was back in the wing when (inaudible). 

17 PRICE: W'hen he went to go get the guns, they were back i~1side the 

18 wing? 

19 HESS: Yes, with them back in the wing--

20 PRICE: With the door shut? 

21 HESS: We had them back and locked inside the house. 

22 PRICE: In the wing. 

23 HESS: Yes. 

24 PRICE: That's when they were beu.t--trying to beat the door open 

25 or beat the glass? t . 

19 
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1 HESS: Yes. Somebody threw something at the door glass and 

2 tryed to break it out. They tryed to come back out again and--

3 

4 

s 

6 

7 

PRICE: That's when Halley ran for the guns? 

HESS: Yes. 

PRICE: That left you, Wilson and-­

HESS: Goodin. 

PRICE: Goodin. And that's the three that were left. Oh, 

8 Al Freiz wasn't he there somewhere? 

9 HESS: He took--I guess he took Jackson up--helped carry Jackson 

10 up front. 

11 PRICE: He wasn't there, anyhow? 

12 HESS: No. He was there when all this stuff happened, but---

13 PRICE: He wasn't there when Halley went after the guns? 

14 HESS: No. Halley went out the same time they were packing 

15 Jackson out to the front. 

16 PRICE: Ok, well they had the inmates help pack Jackson, didn't 

17 they? 

18 

19 

20 

HESS: Yes. 

PRICE: Did you know that inmate? 

HESS: No, I didn't. only thing I know is what that inmate 

21 said, he said we'll try to get---

22 PRICE: Yeah, what I want to know, Wayne, did you know any of 

23 the inmates down there that night that helped do anything? 

24 

25 

HESS: No. 

i PRICE: No inmate in there? 

20 
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1 HESS: No, that is I can't remember names. I can remember 

2 faces. 

3 PRICE:: llould you know the r:a=:ies of any of them? 

4 HESS: No. I couldn't try to remember 150 inmates, I do know 

5 some inmates in there but they wasn't involved in it, blacks. 

6 PRICE: Were there any guns fired before you left the Rotunda-

7 HESS: Yes. 

8 PRICE: before you went to the hospital? 

9 HESS: Yes. 

10 PRICE: So you were there for part of that, too? 

11 HESS: Yes. Un till they got more help in the house and that's 

12 when they told me go on. 

13 PRICE: Somebody else come in to releave you? 

14 HESS: Well, I was in the Rotunda and that's when they told 

15 me to go on. I got out there, I'd say, by the canteen area and that's 

16 when I seen some more guards packing guns. I guess they are called 

17 the M squard, the goone squard or whatever you want to call them. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

PRICE: You said Dillion was there? 

HESS: Yes. 

PRICE: Where did Dillion go to or what? 

HESS: I don't know what happen to the man. 

PRICE: Only you three were there when Halley went after th12 

23 guns. Where was Dillion? 

24 HESS: I don't know what Dillion--he went into the office--

25 het just disappeared on us. I learned later on that Dillion helped 

21 
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2 

3 

pack Jackson out front. 

PRICE: Did he? 

!-!ESS: That's what I leo.r1H:d l<iter :.111 that iie: dcnc. Bue:. thc.t 

4 night there, I didn't know what ha~pened to him. I though~ he just 

5 probably got scared and run on us. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

bothy 

PRICE: Paul, do you have something else? 

OESTERREICHER: No, that's all I can think of. 

PRICE: I understand you said the baldes were sharpened on 

sides, did it come down to a point? 

HESS: Yes. 

PRICE: To a point. 

HESS: Yes. 

PRICE: Was the blade silver, did the blade have any color 

14 it at all, that you could see? 

15 HESS: No, that I could see. It just look like a piece of 

16 metal what they made a knife out of. 

17 

18 

PRICE: You couldn't stick in or not? 

HESS: No, I seen the knife there when the man, when I saw 

19 him sticking it into Jackson in a stabbing motion. 

20 PRICE: You seen a guard pick it up then? 

21 HESS: Yes. 

22 PRICE: Do you know which one it was? 

23 HESS: No, I don't know which guard it was. 

24 PRICE: You think he put it in his pocket, front or back? 

to 

25 H.ESS: I think he put it in his back pocket, but I'm not f Co r. 

22 

sure. 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

PRICE: He made u. motion bu.ck there? 

HESS: Yes, he made a motion bo.c'.-;: thc!'."c. 

PRICE: Did you see any other kniv0s o~ the floor? 

HESS: No, I didn't. 

PRICE: Did you see a ball bat that night? 

HESS: No, I didn't. The only thing I heard was when somebody 

7 got hit they went do'W?l to the floor. I came back up swinging and 

8 I slipped in the blood and I fell back do'W?l again. Then I noticed 

9 that someone was back on my back again. 

10 PRICE: You noticed somebody on your back--did someone knock 

11 him off or how did--what--

12 HESS: He got knocked off. Some guard hit him with something, 

13 I don't know what it was. Some guard hit him and got him off my back. 

14 

15 

PRICE: Was that inside the Rotunda or outside? 

HESS: It was outside the Rotunda. Right out side, between the 

16 Wing and the Rotunda. 

17 PRICE: Ok. Would that have been by the desk or whatever the 

18 Rotunda officer st.:i.nds by? 

19 

20 

21 

HESS: Yes. 

PRICE: You were right there by it? 

HESS: Yes. It wus ab<)Ut ~1s L1r <1!; frum here to--b<J.ck to the 

22 Rotunda about as far as from li.:.:rc to that door right therc(ir:J.icii.ting) 

23 to the wing door. But you don't have much--

24 

25 
j · 

PRICE: 

HESS: 

Oh, you're just right there at it. 

Yeah, because the big Rotunda--

23 



This document is housed in the Capital Punishment Clemency Petitions (APAP-214) collection in the M.E. Grenander 
Department of Special Collections and Archives, University Libraries, University at Albany, SUNY. 
 
 
 

PRICE: If I got inside the door of the wing, then I'm right 

2 next to the Rotunda desk. 

3 HESS: You ~re about 2 to 3 feet from it. 

4 PRICE: Ok. 

5 HESS: Not over 4 feet at the most. 

6 PRICE: So, then the fighting was going on right around that 

7 desk, wasn't it? 

8 HESS: There's a big oval mound desk. It takes about the 

9 whole Rotunda up, it does. It's like I said, between 3 and 4 feet 

10 between each wing door there is. 

ll PRICE: Ok. So it's right at the desk all the time, when all 

12 this is going on. 

13 HESS: Yes. 

14 PRICE: Then the man could stand behind that desk and hit you 

15 on the head. 

16 HESS: No, he couldn't he has to come outside the wing. 

17 PRICE: Why? He had a bat. 

18 HESS: The desk is too high. 

19 PRICE: But if I was standing up couldn't I hit you over the 

20 head with a ball bat? 

21 HESS: No. Cause the desk is--when I stand up it comes up 

22 about here on rne(indicating). 

23 PRICE: Ok. Couldn't you hit a man on the other side with ~ 

24 wooden ball bat? 

25 HESS: No, I can't cause the thing is ubout that wide(in<licatins). 
t -

24 
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PRICE: Do what? 

2 HESS: It's about 2 or 3 feet wide at the top of the desk, 2 '-, 

3 as wide as this one right here(indicatiny), this table. Yo~ ~~ve 

4 kinda hide behind the gate. 

5 PRICE: Ok. Is it wider than this table(indicating)? 

6 HESS: It is about as wide as this table, the Rotunda is. 

7 PRICE: Ok. 

8 HESS: It's about as round--wide as this whole--

9 PRICE: You know the bat's this long(indicating). 

10 HESS: We got two ball bats. We've got on that long--

11 PRICE: If you're ever back in the Rotunda or go back into the 

12 Rotunda, would you stand behind it and see if could take that bat and 

13 hit a man on the other side if he's standing up on the other side or 

14 if he's on somebody's back. 

15 HESS: If he' s right by it, he cu.n. But they· wu.~ ovt! r t.iy the 

16 wing door, there was no way he could--

17 PRICE: But he could if he was standing right by it. 

18 HESS: If I was standing right beside it, you know--

19 PRICE: If somebody was on your back right beside it, 

20 HESS: He could reach right over the top of it and hit the man, 

21 he can. 

22 PRICE: That's what I w.:lnted to know. 

23 HESS: If he hits a man as they go by the wing door the man has 

24 to open up the gate and then when he comes out--

25 PRICE: Sure, but you said that there's only, two or th!'.'CC foot. 
j. 

25 
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1 HESS: I said--oh about that much space in between them(indicatino' --

2 but not over 5 feet at the most when I open the wing door to the Re-

3 tunda. 

4 PRICE: Ok. 

5 HESS: I never measured, I have 

6 PRICE: Yeah, ok. 

7 HESS: If I ever measured, I could tell you right down to the 

8 inch. 

9 PRICE: Yeah. Do you work with Wilson? 

10 HESS: No. He works (inaudible) -

11 PRICE: Do you work with Halley? 

12 HESS: Uh? 

13 PRICE: Do you work with Halley? 

14 HESS: No. 

15 PRICE: Do you ever see them? 

16 HESS: Yeah. At roll call time and during the morning time when 

17 we eat and stuff. 

18 PRICE: I wish you would tell Halley that there is noting to this 

19 hypnosis that he--there's nothing to be afraid or noting to run from. 

20 Him and Wilson both. They're just like you to start out with, nobody_ 

21 wants to. There's nothing to it, you can see that. We would like to 

22 finish it all up and they're the only ones asked to. 

23 HESS: Did Maupin take one? 

24 PRICE: Who? 

25 t. HESS·. Ma . upi.n. 

26 
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1 

2 

3 

PRICE: Maupin? 

HESS: The one who got cut in the ann. 

PRICE: No, not yet. He hadn't. I think he was out of right 

4 at the start of it. I don't think he saw anything, he couldn't 

5 have. 

6 HESS: I think he got cut right off the bat. I didn't know 

7 that he was cut, too. 

8 

9 

to 

PRICE: Yeah, see--

HESS: I was out at the hospital, I seen him laying out there. 

PRICE: He didn'•t even see Jackson fall, so see he's out of it. 

11 He wouldn't have seen enough, see. We could give it to him, but I 

12 don't see an advantage. You know, just the ones that saw so tn~t 

13 they can see what they saw. 

14 HESS: I talk--I talk them but I don't know. 

15 PRICE: Wilson and Halley, isn't it? 

16 HESS: The only reason I did is because my wife told me. 

17 PRICE: Told you what? 

18 HESS: Told me it would be best to go ahead and do it. 

19 PRICE: Don't you think it is? 

20 HESS: Yeah. 

21 PRICE: I would, I would want to clear everything up about how 

22 this man was killed out there. I want to help him. 

23 OESTERREICHER: Because, that's all we're looking for is as much 

24 help as we can get. 

25 PRICE: I would appreciate it if ynu would say something to the;n. 

27 
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HESS: Well, I will talk to them, Orville. I'll go back, let's 

2 see, I' 11 be back Thursday night at midnight. 

3 PRICE: Well, maybe we'll have them by then, but if we haven't 

4 I wish you say something to them. 

5 HESS: I'll talk with Wilson. Halley, you just can't say 

6 nothing hardly to him, cause he's the captain. 

7 PRICE: But you could let him know that you've done it and that 

8 there wasn't nothing to it. There wouldn't be no harm--wrong with 

9 that. 

JO HESS: Did Goodin take one? 

11 PRICE: No. Who took it Kroeckel? 

12 OESTERREICHER: Kroeckel's the only one so far. 

13 PRICE: Yeah. 

14 OESTERREICHER: Besides hisself. 
··.· ... -t.. ... 

15 PRICE: We haven't asked Goodin, have we? 

1 cs OESTERREICHER: No, we haven't. 

17 PRICE: He's one of the guys--see Goodin was bringing the guy 

18 out, ok Kroeckel was one of those. What I want is the guys at the 

19 wing door on the other side and see what they saw, so you come here 

20 first. I'm sure that someone else at the door saw knife. There's a 

21 very good possibility. 'rhere wouldn't be .:i very good possibility 

22 that Kroeckel and Gooding seen it becuuse they ha~1 a hold of the guy 

23 bringing him out. I aimed to ask you while ago, was Jackson behind 

24 them corning out? 

25 HESS: Yes. 
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PRICE: Har far beyind was he? 

2 HESS: Oh, I don't know, five feet. Jackson was(inaudible). 

3 He never gave anybody no trouble. 

4 PRICE: Yeah. You don't think he w.:is further behing than he 

5 should've been? 

HESS: No. Not over five feet at the most. '" t::-\ 

\ 
I 

,,--~------------~-------------------------------------------------1'' 7 PRICE: The guy broke loose before they ever got inside 

I 

I 
8 door, uh? 

9 Yes, he broke loose before they got him up, oh I'd say HESS: 

10 maybe not over two steps coming up out of the wing. I don't know 

11 how many steps there is, but I'd say not over two steps coming up 

I 12 out of the wing. The man broke loose and that's when somebody said 

\ 13 you're not going to take him out. Then in went Kroeckel and Goodin 

\ 14 they got almost to the the gate and got out of the wing door and 

15 that's when all just followed Jackson right up the steps. /-_____ ..-/ 
16 PRICE: You're saying Kroeckel and Goodin didn't get the drunk 

17 inside the Rotunda. 

18 HESS: No. They never did get him inside the Rotunda, cause 

19 is we did we would have had the doors locked. 

20 PRICE: So he broke before they got him inside the Rotunda. 

21 HESS: Yes. The man got loose from them and then that's '"hen 

22 they all followed Kroeckel, Goodin and Jackson corning up and 

23 Kroeckel and Goodin was almost at the--

24 PRICE: When the man broke loose which wc:iy--where did he run to? 

25 HESS: He went back down toward the wing, he did. Inside the 
f -
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1 wing. He went back into the crowd with the other guys. When we -

2 first went in there, we heard a man and Wilson sitting there talking 

3 we heard a piece of metal hit the concrete floor. And we said there 

4 is a shank in there. You could tell when the metal hit that floor 

5 there was something that wasn't suppose to be in there and I know 

6 somebody's going to go down in there and take that piece of metal. 

7 I stood there and I could've I could've. 

8 PRICE: You could've what? 

9 HESS: I could've run outside when I heard that, but I wasn't 

10 going to do it. I was going to stay inside that wing, if you went 

11 inside the house, there was a fight, if anything did happen to come 

12 down. 

13 PRICE: Mm-uh. 

14 HESS: It all came down to fast then. Before--we were going 

15 to have to do something to get it under control. I think when the 

16 man got hit with the ball bat, that's when he went back into the 

17 wing and the rest of the inmates went back in there with him. '.-le 

l 8 got it under control, we got the wing door shut and locke<i but .it 

19 wasn't under control, yet, was it? 

20 PRICE: Any of those guys involved in that been brought back 

21 up yet? 

22 HESS: No, not that I see of. 

23 OESTERREICHER: I Wilnt to thank you for helping us. Every little 

24 bit helps. As I told you, we're jutit trying to get it illl sorted so 

25 
j · 

that we can (inaudible). 
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/ <h;s ; s the statement of Robert llayn~ Hess, whkh began at 11 ,47 A.H., 

j,:onday, July 4, 1983, regarding the incident at the Hissouri Training Center 

for Men on July 3, 1983./ 
I 

Schreiber: Give your ~~l l name. 
·:.: 

Hess: Robert Wayne Hess. 

Schreiber: Give your date of birth. 

Hess: August 26, 19411. 

Schreiber: Giy) your address. 

Hess: 524'Austin Street, Moberly, MO. 

Schreiber: Were you employed at the Missouri Training Center for Hen on 

July 3,t 1983, at the time of this incident? 

Hess: Yes, I was. 

Schreiber.: Give your rank. 

Hess: Corrections Officer 1. 

Schreiber: On July 3, 1983, were you working at the Moberly institution? 

Hess: Yes. 

Schreiber: What was your job assignment? 

Hess: Food Service. 

Schreiber: Were you on duty at 10:00 P.H., Sunday, July 3, 1983? 

Hess: Yes,· I was. 

Schreiber: Tell in your own words what happened? 

Hess: I was coming from the Food Service after I let the Ra1nadans "'out. 

was bringing the radio and the keys up to the Control Center~ and 

they told me to get back out to House 2. They said they were having 

some trouble there. There were some drunks in B-Wing. 

Schreiber: Name the other officers. 

Hess: Lt. Kroeckel, Officer Goodin, and Officer Jackson. 

Schreiber: Do you recall who the inmate was that was drunk? 

Hess: No l do not know who the inmate was. 

Schrei~er: 

Hess: As we got to the Housing Unit, they said they were having trouble ·in 

B-Wing. That is when they got the inmate out. They got him to the steps 

and he broke loose from them. i 
~:;:_...:.:..::......:::_:...:~=====:>...:....=--..:..:...:.:.::~~:.:.;.:.:~--~===-= ... ~===-·~:·------

Sch re i be r: !· 

Hess: A bunch of inmates followed them up there. The other inmates hollered 

to not take the man up there. That is when the trouble broke out. 

noticed that one inmate h~d a shank and that is when he stabbed Officer 

Jackson and then he stabbed me. After that I went to the Hospi ta] for 

treatment. 

·: 

·~ 
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PAGE 2 

Schreiber: How did you get the word? 

Hess: Captain Halley was on duty ..... 

Schreiber: Who were the officers on duty? 

Hess: He, Officer Dillon, Officer Wilson, Officer Maupin, and Officer 

Humphrey. 

Schreiber: Which officers went down into the wing: 

Hess: Lt. Kroeckel, Officer Goodin, and Officer Jackson. 

Schreiber: ~Where did you remain? 

Hess: stood "inside the door. Officer Dillon and Officer Wilson stood on 

the other side. Officer Humphrey was behind the Rotunda; Officer 

Maupin was somewhere in the Ro~unda. 

Schreiber: Did you see Officer Jackson get stabbed? 

Hess: Yes. 

Schreiber: Where was cffficer Jackson? 

Hess : 0 ff ice r J acksc>'~: was beh i icd .... 

Schreiber: Was the inmate who did the stabbing black or white. 

Hess: \.Jh i te. 

Schreiber: Was the inmate intoxicated? .... , 

Hess: Yes. 

Schreiber: Were there a number of inmates in the wing? 

Hess: Yes. 

Schreiber: How many approximately, inmates were there in the wing? 

Hess: I would say about 60 to 70 inmates in the whole wing, 2-B. 

Schreiber: As the.officers approached with the intoxicated inmate,-what 

did the other inmates do? 

Hess: . They just followed the officers up toward the front. 

Schreiber: Did the inmates rush the officers? 

Hess: Yes, they did. • 

Schreiber: Did the inmates actually.i_physicalJL take the officers? 

Hess: No not as I Sc:lw it. 

Schreiber: Did the prisoner get away? 

Hess: Yes. 

Schreiber: How did the inmate accomplish this? 

Hess: Just broke loose. 
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\. 

Schreiber: Was Officer Jackson the first officer to be attacked? 

Hess: Yes. 

Schreiber: What was Officer Jackson's location? 

Hess: Right outside the 2-B Wing door. 

Schreiber: Officer Jackson down inside the wing?._ 
'1 

.oHt.t:e~s~s ..... :_..!..:N~o!.:.. _ _...;::~!::::::..!....:L.:'!....'..z.J.:'._:!...:.:...:::_,t.-1.(~·,:_:·_;_· .:_· /: .: ~':;_-:; 

Schreiber: 

Hess: I had ahold of Jackson's arm and tried to pull him out of the wing and 

said "Come on Jackson". 

Three or four inmates had ahold of his head and tried to pull him back 

into the wing. 

Schreiber: How close were you to Officer J~ckson? 

Hess: I was standing right beside him. 

Schreiber: Did you know any of the inmates? 

Hess: No, I did not. 

Schreiber: Did you see the inmate with the knife? 

Hess: Yes, I s~w him, .but I did not know his name at that time. 

Schreiber: Did you see wherre the inmate came from? 

Hess: No, It happened so quick that I didn't know where he came from . 
. ,. 

~chreiber: i 

Hess: The next think ,:~:know, I saw blood. 
·-Sch re i be r: Was the inmate white or black? 

Hess: White. 

Schreiber: About how old would you say the inmate was? 
... 

Hess: About mi~dle age--20's. 

Schreiber: What was the inmate wearing? 

Hess: He was wearing a shift, blue tank top, with white outljojog · 

Schreiber: \./hat color was his hair? 

Hess: Dish pan blond. \ 

Schreiber: What type of weaon did the inmate have? 

Hess: A knife with tape around the handle, between 7 inches to JO inches. 

It was a home made k nife, with white colored tape aTound the handle. 

Schreiber: What a~ea of the body did the inmate attempt to stab Officer Jackson? 

Hess: ·in the gut--lt was in the chest area, the left side of the chest .. 

Schreiber: Where did Jackson go down when he was hit? 

4ess: Just inside the wing door, but the officers drug him back into the 

Rotunda beside the A-wing door. 

Schreiber: 

Hess: Inmates were striking me and knocked me on the floor and somebody kicked 

me but I could not tell the inmate. Somebody kicked me with his shoe. 
' 
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Schreiber: 
Hess:· I tried to get back up and then r slipped in the blood. Then I did get 

back up. 

Schreiber: 

Hess: I got stabbed over the top of my shoulder. He then stabbed me in the 

right shoulder close to the neck. 

Schreiber: Did you see more than one knife. 

Hess: l j,,ust saw the one knife. 

Schreiber: ~hat happened to the knife? 

Hess: I do ·not know what happened to it. 

Schreiber: Do you know if it was recovered? 

Hess: No. 

Schreiber: Have you seen the knife since the incident? 

Hess: No. 

Schreiber: 

Hess: 'We locked the doo·r so the inmates could not come back out into the Rotunda. 

Schreiber: You were shown a line-up of the people, the five people in the line-up 

Hess: 'Were all of the individuals caucasion males? 

Hess: Yes~ 

Hess: They all had bandanas around their heads; all had ·bands wrapped around 

their rib cage. 

Schreiber: Did any of the men have tattoos? 

Hess: They all had tattoos. 

Schreiber: Out of the five people, did anyone tell you or did I indicate to 

you anything about these inmates? 

Hess: No. 

Schreiber: In the line up were you able to identify any of the individuals 

as being the person who assaulted you and Officer Jackson with a knife 

on July 3, 1983? 

Hess: Yes. 
(~ 

Schreiber: After you identified this individual, d6 you remember, for the 

purpose of this interview, where he .,.,as in the line.up? 
1 

Hess: He was the second man from the left. 
t . 

Schrc_iber: After you identified this man and mentioned it to us, do you recall 

what the man's name was? 

Hess: Inmate Carr, Rodney Carr. 

Schreiber: To the best of your knowledge, was he the man who stabbed Officer 

Jackson.? 

Hess: Yes. 

'· .. 
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Schreiber: Do you recall or remember an inmate by the name of Robert Driscoll? 

Hess: No I do not. 

Schreiber: Would you ~now him if he walked into this room? 

Hess: No. 

Schreiber: Do you remember anyother inmates who were directly involved in this 

.incident? 

Hess: No. 

Schreiber: Js this statement true and correct to the best of your knowledge? 

Hess: Yes. 

The statement ended at 12:13 P.H., July 4, 1983 . 

.. 
•, 

DATE . ,-

-: 

~· 

~~Jd, ITNESS:BARBAAAA: 1PSHIECo 
Clerk-Steno I I I 

bl 

I. 
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VOLUNTARY ST A TE;\1ENI 

fNOT UNDER ARRESTJ 
PAGE NO. ___ QF __ PA 

for, nor •m I ~ing detained for NIY crim. 

"".es c~nceminc the evenh I am •bout to make known to ~r!-~~:=::::""7...;;;µ~:...:.~>-.:==""';r"''-----------------­
ir;,our ~inr •ccus'ed of or questioned about any crimln•I of enses ro srare, I volunteer tl,e followinc; inform•lion 

"Y own free will, for wlutever purposes ft may urve. 

# 
have read uch page of this statement consistinf of _________ _...,age Isl. ucn P•ll:e of wnicn ~ars my signature, and corrections, if an1 

., my initials. and I certify th•! the facts contained herein are true and correct. 

ired at 
tnf,._ _____ d,,iy of ___________ 19 _____ _ 

HNFSS:__ ~ llJ. /.Ju;_/)1-/ 
i. Si!f'ature of pe~on civinr voluntary statement 

ITNESS· 

.. ~ :• 
I •: 

,. I 
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MISSOURI STAT-t:: HIGHWAY PATROL 

Jefferson City, Missouri 

September 13, 1983 

Frcrn: 

Subject: 

To 

Sergeant L. G: Ullery and Corporal J. L. Merritt 

Investigation of events at Moberly Training Center for Men - Supplement #30 
. (CONFIDENTIAL) 

Corrmanding Officer · 
Missouri State Highway Patrol 
Jefferson City, Missouri 

1. In continuing the investigat.i,on into this incident, on September 10, 1983, 
Sergeant L. G. Ullery and I contacted C. O. I Robert E. Wilson, date of birth 
July 12, 1947, of Route 4, Box 83, Moberly, Missouri, at the Missouri Training 
Center for Men. This interview was conducted in Major Dennis' office at the 
training center. 

2. On July 3, 1983, Mr~ Wilson was working the 4:00 p.m. to 12:00 midnight, 
shift and was assigned to the control center. When help was requested in 
Housing Unit #2, Mr. Wilson went with Captain Halley, Lieutenant Kroeckel, 
Officers Goodin and Dillon to two house. Wilson said he waited in the rotunda 
area while Officers Jackson, Goodin and Lieutenant I<roeckel went into B wing 
to remove an intoxicated inmate. Mr. Wilson said this is a routine matter and 
not much thought was given to it. As GJodin and Kroeckel were coming back out 
of the wing with the inmate, he saw a "rrob" of inmates start towards the offi­
cers. At this time Jackson was sorre distance behind the other two officers, 
standing at the bottom of the landing. Wilson said Jackson just didn't hurry 
and even turned and faced the irunates. In the ensuing struggle, Jackson was 
caught in the rotunda door where he was stabbed. Wilson SCM inmate Rodney 
Carr with a knife and was cut on the hand by Carr. He then SCM Carr get on 
the back of Officer Hess. This is when it is thoµght that Hess was stabbed 
in the back. While carr was on Hess' back, he was struck on the head by 
Officer Hurrphrey causing him to drop his knife which Officer Wilson recovered. 

3. After fighting the inmates (approximately ten) back into the wing and 
locking the door, Captain Halley left to get shotguns. C. O. Maupin had already 
left to obtain rredical a.Ssistance for his stab wound. C. O. Humphrey and 
Lieutenant Kroeckel left to take C. 0. Jackson to the infi.nnary. This left 
C. O. 's Wilson, Goodin and injured Officer Hess to secure the housing unit. 
Wilson said the inmates were up next to the rotunda doors and glass area 
beating and kicking. He said one section of glass in D wing was knocked out 
but no one ~ through it. The officers were c:irmed with contraband items 
that had been seized and held at the rotunda desk, i.e., baseball bat and 
metal bed extensions. Wilson said he kept calling the control center 
requesting assistance. 

4. Mr. Wilson said that in approximately ten to fifteen minutes Captain 
Halley and Lieutenant Arney returned with shotguns and the captain inmediately 
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September 13, 1983 
Investigation of events at fwbberly Training Center for Men - Supplement #30 
-2 (CONFIDENTIAL) 

fired into A wing - he thought it was A wing. Wilson relates that after the 
second and third rounds the inmates started to rrove back. Wilson could not 
recall exactly how many tirres he fired into the wings after obtaining a shot­
gun. He said there were lots of things about that night that he doesn't 
remember. He said, _"I don't know that I hit any of them (inmates).• 

5. After the shooting subsided, the inmates were deadlocked into their cells. 
During the lockdown, Wilson said that he was just inside the rotunda door with 
a shotgun. He indicated that the inmates were getting pretty willing about 
this ti.Ire. When asked about rerroving the inrrates who had caused the original 
disturbance, Wilson said there was just the normal drunk problems and he didn't 
see any real problems. 'As these inmates were rroved into the rotunda area and 
secured on the laundry table, Wilson said that he could not recall seeing any 
PI:"Oblems, nor did he know of any difficulties in rroving the inmates fran the 
laundry table on to _the infirmary or segregation cells. 

6. Wilson, in reviewing the incident, said that during the shakedown he 
observed three enpty bottles of street whiskey. He said it is not uncomron 
for this type contraband to be brought in to the inmates. This, plus the 
homemade whiskey the inmates acquire, creates a bad situation. 

7. In talking about the attitude of the officers involved in going down into 
the wings for the lockdown and shakedown, Wilson said, "There was a little 
ass kicking done. Those guys were·a little hot when they went down there, 

7on~think they went overboard on it.• · 

~~. 
Merritt, Corporal 

Y.;~. V__;:J P'~~ 
{../ G. tlllecy, -~rgeant JLM:btr 
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from he and Carr at the doorway? 

2 A. Yes. He was in the rotunda fighting -- I believe it was 

3 with Lt. Kreockel or it was some officer~ 

4 Q. How long do ~·-l: think it was from the time that the inmate~ 

5 attacked the door and held Officer Jackson until they were pushed 

6 back into the wing? 

7 A. I would have to estimate and it would be just an estima-

8 tion. Anywhere from three to five to six minutes. 

9 Q. Were firearms later used to quell the disturbance? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. Did you use a firearm? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. What kind of firearm did you use? 

14 A. A 12 gauge shotgun. 

' 15 I· Q. Where did you get the 12 gauge shotgun? 

16 A. Brought in from the front end. Cpt. Halley brought one. 

17 I think three or four were brought out. 

18 I Q. When you saw Carr stabbing at Tom Jackson and Roberts 
ji 

19 there with him, did you see Tom Jackson make any attempt to 

20 block the stabbing thrust? 

21 A. No. He couldn't have made an attempt to block. Inmate 

22 Roberts was holding him. He couldn't have blocked it. 

23 Q. When you say he was holding him around the neck, do you 

24 know if inmate Roberts was using his right or left arm? 

25 A. He was using his right arm around his neck. 

j. 

J 
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,. 

2 

3 

Q. Did it appear they were struggling there? 

A. 

Q. 

No, sir. 

How did Tom Jackson's body appear in the grasp of Roberts 

4 when Carr stabbed hi.:'.? 

5 A. Like I said, when Carr stabbed him, I saw Officer Jackson 

6 lean forward as thought something hit him in the stomach. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Did you ever talk to Tom Jackson after you drug him away? 

No, sir. I believe he was dead. 

What led you to that belief? 

He was covered in blood. Had one eye missing and pretty 

11 well lifeless when we drug him out. 

12 

13 

15 

16 

MR. FINNICAL: Pass the witness. 

THE COURT: Cross-examination. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION by Mr. Marshall: 

Q .. Sergeant, you were struggling with Carr and Carr had a 

17 blade or a knife? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, sir. 

He cut you on the hand? 

Yes, sir. 

So you were forced to let him loose because he cut you 

22 on the hand? 

A. Yes. 23 

24 Q. And he ran over, you say, and cut at Officer Jackson and 

25 it looked like Officer Jackson reacted because he sort of went 
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forward; is that right? 

2 A. Yes, sir. 

3 Q. You didn't actually see the knife stick Officer Jackson 

4 because Carr's back ·.-/.::3 turned and you just couldn't see around 

5 his back, is that right? 

. 6 A • I saw the knife when he cut me. 

7 Q. When he cut you, you saw the knife? 

8 A • Yes. 

9 Q. Now, were -- how many inmates were right around Officer 

10 Jackson at that time? 

11 A. There were other inmates there. I don't know. I couldn't 

12 say how many there were. Approximately 20 to 25 altogether into 

13 it. This was in the rotunda, too. Somewhere out in the rotunda. 

Q. Did you have any idea of how many were right there at 

15 Jackson's location? 

16 A. There was at least two or three others. 

17 Q. How many inmates had their hands on Jackson or appeared 

18 to be holding him in some way or another? 

19 A. I remember inmate Roberts is the only one I knew and 

20 there was another, probably two other inmates there, too. 

21 Q. Two other inmates, also, were holding him? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 

24 

II 

I 
Q. 

A. 

Had their hands on him at any rate, right? 

Yes, sir. 

25 Q. Now, during the time that you saw Roy Roberts, did you at 

j · 
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t 

l 

2 

3 

any time see anything in his hand? 

A. No, sir. I did not. 

Q. You never saw any kind of weapon? 

4 A. Just Officer Jackson~cr never seen a weapon. I never 

5 seen him have a weapon. 

6 

7 

8 

MR. MARSHALL: No further questions. 

THE COURT: Re-direct? 

9 RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION by Mr. Finnical: 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Q. Who was preventing Officer Jackson from defending himself? 

A. 

Q. 

MR. MARSHALL: Object as calling for conclusion. 

THE COURT: Overruled. 

Inmate Roberts. 

Who was preventing Officer Jackson from getting away 

from the door where the stabbing occurred? 

A. 

A. 

Q. 

MR. MARSHALL: Object as calling for conclusion. 

THE COURT: Did you see it? 

Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Overruled. 

Inmate Roberts. 

How much size advantage did inmate Roberts have over 

22 Torn Jackson? 

Quite a bit heavier than Mr. Jackson. 

How old a man was Tom Jackson? 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A. I believe Mr. Jackson was sixty-four (64) or sixty-five 

t . 
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' 

J 

1 

2 

3 

4 

( 65) • 

Q. What kind of weapons did Tom Jackson have? 

A. He didn't have any. 

Q. How many people out there were helping Tom Jackson defend 

5 himself? 

"6 

7 

8 

9 

A. There was none at that time. · 

THE COURT: You may step down. 

MR. MARSHALL: I have a couple of questions. 

10 RE-CROSS EXAMINATION by Mr·. Marshall: 

11 Q. Sergeant, you also just said, as I understand it, that 

12 two other inmates at least then also had their hands on Officer 

13 Jackson at that same time? 

14 

15 

A. I couldn't say they were holding him. They may have 

touched him and there were inmates around him. Inmate Roberts 

16 is the only one I can actually say was holding him, keeping 

17 him from moving. 

18 MR. MARSHALL: Nothing further. 

19 THE COURT: You may step down. 

20 (Witness excused.) 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

(Counsel approach the bench and the following discussion 

was had out of the hearing of the jury:) 

MR. FINNICAL: This is the guy that was hypnotized. 

If he is going to cross-examine on that point I would like 

JOO 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF PHELPS COUNTY, MISSOURI 
AT ROLLA 

DIVISION I 

STATE OF MISSOURI, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 

vs. 

ROBERT DRISCOLL, ajk/a 
ALBERT EUGENE JOHNSON, 

Defendant. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

oOo 

Case No~ CR-5-83-692-FX 

September 5, 1984 
Moberly, Missouri 

DEPOSITION OF ROBERT EUGENE WILSON, a witness 

produced, sworn, and examined on the 5th day of September, 

1984, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. of that 

day at the Missouri Training Center for Men, in the City of 

Moberly, County of Randolph, State of Missouri, before: 

NANCY A. FOX 
Registered Professional Reporter 

and Notary Public within and for the State of Missouri, 

commissioned in Cole County, in.the above-entitled cause, 

on the part of the defendant, pursuant to agreement. 

oOo 
I· : 
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1 
open. 

( 2 So you were in the rotunda area? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. As the inmates came out, what happened? 

5 A. As they was well, they was bringing the 

6 inmate out the door. Kroeckel and Officer Goodin was. 

7 And the inmates started corning from the back of the wing 
a: 
:l 8 0 
Ill 

:!! 
yelling, You're not ta~ing Jimmy anywhere. Referring to 

lE 

I 9 ,.. the inmate. .... 
u 
z 10 0 
Ill 
a: 

Q. What happened after the inmates said that? 
"' ... ... .. 11 ., 
I 

A. The other group by the toilet joined in with 
Ill 
a: 

12 "' .... 
a: 

these and they came up to the door. Officer Jackson was 
0 .. 
"' a: 13 .... 
a: 
:l 
0 

( at the back of Goo~in and Kroeckel. And he was at the 

u 
14 I 

u 
bottom of the steps by then when they was coming up to it. 

!: 
rsi 15 
1" 

And he started up the steps. He didn't quite get to the 
I-
< 
u 16 0 door when the other in.~ates reached him to where he was at. 
rJl 
rJl 
<{ ., 17 Goodin and Kroeckel had already come through the door and 
z 
<{ 

lE 
Iii 18 c was out in the rotunda. 
1" 
a: 
al 

19 Q. What happened when the inmates reached the guards? 

20 A. Well, there was a lot of commotion. 'They started 

21 fighting, pushing up to the door to where I was at. And 

22 by this time I started fighting with Rodney Carr. 

23 t · Q. How do you know that you were fighting with,. 

24 Rodney Carr? 

25 A. Well, I knew him. 

5 
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1 
~ Had Rodney Carr been close to Officer Jackson 

( 2 prior to the time that you started fighting with Carr? 

3 A. He came by him. 

4 ~ He came by Jackson? 

5 A. Yes, he come by him. 

6 ~ Where was Jackson standing? 

7 A. He was standing in front of the window right as 
ii: 
:l 8 0 ., 
!! you come out the door • 
~ 

I 9 > 
!:: 

O. Were there other inmates up there besides Carr? 
u 
z 10 0 ., 
0: 

A. Yes, there was • .. .. ... .. 11 .., 
I 

O. Do you know any of them? 
., 
0: .. 12 .... 
0: 

A. I knew Hog Roberts and I knew some others by face • 
0 .. .. 
tt: 13 .... 
0: 

I didn' t know all their names • 
:l 
0 
u 

14 I 
u O. You knew Carr by face? 
!: 
<Ji 15 
bl 

A. Yes. 
.... 
~ 
u 16 0 
IJ) 

~ How did you happen to know Carr by face? 
IJ) 

< 
~ 17 
z 

A. Well, I'd seen him around the yard and stuff, 
< 
~ 
bl 18 a around the institution. 
bl 
a: 
Ill 

19 How would you describe his build? 

20 A. I would describe him as medium built, ·probably 

21 around I'm not very good at judging height, but I'd say 

22 five-eight, five-nine, something like that. 

23 How· old would you estimate him to be? 

24 A. I'd estimate him to be around early 20's. 

25 O. Did you see any of the inmates with a knife? 

6 
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:-cs n 313 florth \.JC'n..u___j_t ree t' Hacof!.J_li~.:.O=-------- t.·tl~cn :i t._..:.l·..:..tT:....;C"-'M..:..-__ _. 

-

t. f • • • • • • I~ 

..• . .... ·· ': .• ! ' .. ,· •• ;1 \• \ •· 
.... . !! ... • 

\._.-. .:cnt bcgnn :lt 3:17 
.. 

received n ca!.l_from~QJ.......!:li1ri9n ~urnphr..'f, Rotunda Officer, Housinq Unit #2. He stated he 

-
ad a bunch of drunks in 6-~ing and that they had run Officer Tom Jackson out of the 

: ino. I then notified Lt. ~roc_ckc~~fficer 'Wilson and Officer Hess to oo with me 

(· .. •.· 
Housing Unit #2 ·to check in on this matter. After arriving, Lt. Kroeckel and Officer 

oodin \...·ent into the wing and found one drunk inmate and were going to bring him to ·the 

. 
otund~. They· arrived at th~ steps lcad~ng out of the wing wlth this inmate, and he . 

: 
. 

erit to holl\!dng and that that time approximately 35 or maybe 40 inmates came running 
: :~ 

o us. They grabbed Officer Tom Jackson first and had him up against the door and 
... 

"'Pr"cximately,· I would say, 12 or 14 inmates were trylng to come out into the Rotunda. i 

"'fie.er" Goodin, Officer· \Ji Ison, Lt. Kroeckel, and myself--Captain Halley--we went to 

=ghtin~· these inmates. A number of them were armed with iron bars and knives. 

ed to help Officer Jackson get_ a_way from the inmates. They \verc holding him and 

..:dng this· procedure; I was knocked down twice, plus was hit in the arm with a pipe. 

heard Officec_.J..g_s:~l!Q.LL~.L.j}~d I finally managed to drao him out, He was bleeding 

:·fuselv and dragg_~LJffi ci:>._r_Jack.s.Qn_a_s;_r_oss the Rotunda and knew at that timP. that 

t·:<is dying.:. After q~ttin'L.!li.fic!:.r_~ackson out I then discovered Officer Hess had 

:n stabf?.cd .i!.!l~L.Q!...fl£ ... e.L.l.!.r!YQin...J.._~·!..h.9~ .. ~everclv stabbed. Officer Hauoln had to be 

''-.ed bv R<rnc.Joloh County !~.::!rnl.JJ)_~-1£ .. ~hc University of Missouri Medical Center in 

: to the l\ciministr_ation_~u.!Jding and_!vhcn I entered the Administration Building I had 

?etre to hi-t the siren~-~-9£.!"L~!.~·~':'ld brinq more h~~ in. Arrivinq shortly there­

r \-1,1s Mr. Joe Ounningto~..!--~~~ion Supervisor, and Hr. Allen Personette, Plant 

:-<?:1.f ti11; ahr>,.Vl! st:it•!tll':tl ron::istln); of_l_p:t;:i!~, .<nd 3ttc5t it is a 

. - c , , r :1 l (~ :1 c: c: ()II" t " r I h c.. , • •: (. II r :: . \! 1 ii c.11 t 0 (I k p ]., c ~ 0 n _ __.J~u.uluYi:-...3~.,.___il._9~8~3J..-~---
l• ... 

• I ...... 
I -1. :: I H! fr(?" l ~· ;t II :I ..... 1 :111 l ;1 I" i I :: • ti i th Cl II t r (! :t r I) [ t I 1 r {::it 0 L pr 0 mis "'C 

:; i ::u O I",.., a;J_4),~..............,~-
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__ _....;-..;;-:.:.·.::...· ...:'-·=--'...:l~-L~L_..t_Y_. ____________ I> 01; __ H_a_.y__;;9;...r,__t .... 9_2_2 __ A c c_6_1 _____ ... _,_-_. 

' rcss 313 tlor th Wentz Street, Macon, MO t<ikcn tl t HTCH c· 
·---------------------~....;._ 

·.( 
r· 

bcg;11 \ :lt 3:17 :i • tn • 1' d J l 4 ___ .on <!Y, u y , 19 83 

( 

~ncn t 
&)-;~ ...... 
X.l'~X 

:continued fro m Page .. .. 

!.a int enan~e En ~J nc.~ r 11. l_Jl~Y.:.<:._lht:;.!11_~_2.bQ.L_gun each and by that ti me?, Lt. \.Ii 11 i am Arney . 

•.rrived. and h e took. a_2hot_Jl.f:.!!!~-1!..1l.<i...1 took a gun. We arrived at Housing Unit 12, and 

re breaking glass and still attempting to try to come out.of the wing •. 1e inmates we 

!hots were fir cd through the glass in the direction of the inmates, buf this did put them 

n their rooms The Emergency Squad was called, and all other available personnel~ and : 

:c then got -th e situation in hand. \.lings were--inmates were deadlocked in thetr rooms. 

:nd the wings were locked down. The guns were left in the Housing Unit to stand guard . 
: .. 

,n the walk-wa y and the Rotunda. ________ __,, ___________________________ ...;... ______________________ ~ 
-· 

!Statement end cd at 3:17 A.M., Hond_ay, July 4, 1983) 
I ' 

/ 

-
-... :· .- ·' ,. . . •. 

~ 1' ••• 

. . ~ 

•• 

I , . . . I• 

·-----------------------------------------------~------------------------~ 

-----------------~----·--------------------------------------------------------

:i 1] th l! :1 h n.v <! t: t :\I" •! n r· :1 t r. on ~d s t I n 1: o [ ~p :i :': c· ~ 1 n n d at t es t 1 t is a , 
~·I :i~c 11 r: 1 t~ ;c•:orinl 11 f tlH'. 1·vc•nt::. 1!ldc:lt tool~ pl.nee on July 3, 1983 ~ 

,~·1i:: 1u~ frr!i•J:,• :111•1 volunt:1rlly, 1:(r:lio11t fc!:tr of. thrcnt oi: promisr 

"· . · _ ~1;:n.11nr·1j//~z'i .~&~· · .. 
\ f!._-/ .. d~$f_c¥2.~ .-:--.-Yi'""""-- _'f5.f._,, , ,J,__Q _,__ _,- " ~-
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF PHELPS COUNTY, MISSOURI 
AT ROLLA 

DIVISION I 

STATE OF MISSOURI, ) 
) 

vs. 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 
) Case No. 5-83-692-FX 

ROBERT DRISCOLL, a/k/a 
ALBERT EUGENE JOHNSON, 

) 
) 
} 
) 
) Defendant. 

oOo 

September 5, 1984 
Moberly, Missouri 

DEPOSITION OF DENVER FRANKLIN HALLEY, a witness 

produced, sworn, and examined on the 5th day of September, 

1984, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. of that 

day at the Missouri Training Center for Men, in the City 

of Moberly, County of Randolph, State of Missouri, before: 

NANCY A. FOX 
Registered Professional Reporter 

and Notary Public within and for the State of Missouri, 

commissioned in Cole County, in the above-entitled cause, 

on the part of the defendant, pursuant to agreement. 

oOo 
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1 

( 2 
~ After you were unable to get to him at that time 

-:~hat happened? 
3 

& I was back around again in front of the door~ay. 
4 

There was Officer Wilson and I, and we kept battling. 
5 

~ With whom were you battling? 
6 

~ Unknown inmates as far as I'm-concerned. I don't 
7 

= 
know at that time. Only -- the only one that I do know is 

:J 8 0 

"' "' i Hog Roberts. Because he stands out like a red rose in the 
I 9·. 
> 

u Sahara Desert. No one \1ould miss him. 
z 

10 0 

"' .. ... ~ That's because he's a large man • 
... ... ... 11 ., 

A. He's a big man and a lot of dealings with him. 
" = ... 12 ... .. 
0 .. ~ Very well. Do you know whether Mr. Jackson 
... 
a:: 13 .. 
z 
:J stayed at that same location? 
0 
u 
I 14 
u ~ They wouldn't turn him loose. That's right. 
= <Ji 15 
Iii ... They wouldn't turn him loose. 
< 
u 16 0 
<II 
<II 

~ Was there anyone between you and Mr. Jackson? 
< 
.a 17 z A. Inmates. 
< 
:E 
.... 18 0 .... 
a:: 

~ Did you observe any inmate strike Mr. Jackson? 
= 

19 A. No, I did not see any with th.e exception of one 

20 that made a jab at him. And he you know had a painful 

21 look on his face and all, which you knew he was getting 

22 hurt in some way. But you didn't -- I didn't know who was 

23 hqrting him with the exception of Rog Roberts. 

24 0 Rid But you say you saw an inmate jab at h.un. v 

25 you see an inmate jabbing at him with a weapon or just 

9 
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1 

2 
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5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

'· -23 
~ , : 

24 

25 
-... · .. : __ ..... : . .' · .. · .; 

·,· .. · .. 

Call your·noxt iN'i\:neas, please. 

HRo FI.NN!Cl\L; Youz: )Iono:i::, 1;-m call Wayne Hess .. 

- -:. - 1-, 

being fi~ot duly sworn by Hershel Schafer, Clerk, testified as 

followa: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

By Mr. Finnioal: .......... ~ ~ !" .... -· _,, 

Q. Sir, would,.you pleas~ ~.state .your name. 

A. Robert Wayne Uess, Sr. .-:. ...... -

o. Mr. Hess, where do you live? 

A. 633 North 8th, Mob~rly, Missouri. 

Q. How long have you lived there, ·Mr. Hess? .=· 

A. 
I lived there abo:t. a,l~ '~~ life in Mob~~l~ • >+.,t'._,L.~_:· 
Uow are you employed?···. _::. .. . .. . - .- .··. , .. .. -:: ·· ·· ~ ... , o. 

. . ,,. .. . ... , • •" -· . . • . . - . . ! . . : . - .· . - .· ·:.. : _ .. :-·;_:·,;.·:.~. ~ 
••.. ·· .... ·_.;· .. ·, ......... _'t'' .. ~. ··; .. ,·::_~; ~- .• ~- ... ; .': : . .. ·.~: . ·:: ...... · .... - ....... ·~, -! 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q .. 

. ·. 

-~= : '· .• ' .: .. ··-· • ·•.· . +: .. ;". -~'. '. -~,--.: <.. . ·.·,:: .: \.:.~_ .. _:~_,_;._{_:_:,':_·; :-

... . ~ .. ::. - ... . .:: ·, ~..... r· ·' r' .. ·" .t.: :· '· . . : ·-:-: .··.·~ .· t' 

. ·:. f .•. • . ... • . .. :-_;· ·~ ·.• • • 

.. .. 
~: ~t. d.o.es_ _ t_

1

ha. t. ,:-... ~_t··.an.-.··-d. ·.~'o.:~?·~· .. ::_~.::· ..... _ ·~.· ... ---.~.·-'"'. -.·.::-~ ·-.•. _ .. · .. _~:.:::=.·_;:·::._;···:·:··.·.:_·,:· ..... ~_.'-~--~'._:_.,:·.:_·-.·~·-··.·;_·,. ·_ · •. :. • ,;:~ .; ·:::~ .... _.·::>"/\.};~. _,\ 
M~~~rly Tr~·in'i~g· ·center~ ·for .Me~/-:.~:·• ·. ~ . ·/. ?:\::·:·.:~ :·:_;·_.~~-:::·>'.r_.:._;}Vit~~~~ ~ 

... . . . . . . . ' ; ... ~ . . .. ::-:: .• ~?_.:. 
: • • .-.. . ~ • ~.. ,·. . • • .• .. ; •• i - •. ;: • .. ... ·' ...... ~ 

Is that the prison there :.in Moberly? . . · :-!. . ·. ~<:~: 
I; 

.· ~ .. :.:. ·; ...... 
:Yes\: : 

~ ;. .. ,J 

·~ .... : .... -.·: . . ... . : . : : .:.. ·. ·. ! 
.• ' 

_, ....... ,· : .. ~- ~; ·:·. 

h~ long have you been .employed there· ."at Mooorly 
' ;, .. : ' . .. . . . : : .. . . 

And 
'·' ··-' ! • ··7. 

Training Center for Men?~, ..• 
. f . 
.. !.... . ;_. ..... ·~_-_,.. . 

-~ .. , .. ..:!"­
r ~· .· ... 

... 

. :· ~· 
.. ::.) .. -...... 

.. 
' ... 

-.: > • r ~ ~· 
·." I; 

• • .... l. 

' ...... . 

A. : 'Five years and seven months. . ~ ~ >. _::.::·._..-· •. 
. :~ ~- ': .. ------~: ~ .·-~~; .. · .. . . : 

- · ... ,# .... ·: •• 

Q. :.:·And what. a'x-a your dutl~s ·:there at tlu! .. Miss.ouri Training 

-· . ; :c.:;~1J~;S:\ > , .. ·. ·· ·· " 
·, :· ·,:. :· .··' ·< ' t·' 

· :--~<'.'. :_-~ .. ce.n't~~ ~'tor ·M~~? 
. : . ';~: :.--. ·.··: : ........ ~ . . · .~:.::· .... ·~· • .. ·.. .• 

.... · .. ·.· 
. . 
. ~,. _.,. Jt •. • . 
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'. 
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. · 

A. Capt:a.in Halley. 

a. Do you x~mo1nbo.::: what time .that w_an? 

Q, Has anybody else ther.e? 

A. Yes. 
~· -. .. '"'. 

Q. Nho else was with Captain Halley that night? 

A. Kr~cckel, 'Nilson, me, and.Officer Dolan .. 

Q. Whan you arri·:.ted at. 2 House, .what did you do? . 

A. Well, they, said they was having .trouble there in the house·~· 

Q. - . ·. . . . 
. ... .. . . -.... :·.:.·_ 

And what happened? . . 
·f~- .. ~·-.·~ .. ·. ··--~··,,.-·· 

·. 
• I· ••• ~ 

A. Well, they ~-ent down .to get .this guy .out of the wing and·:'._: 
. . . ·.-'.".'·-~ ·:: 

somebody holleri~g out and .. said;._ •yo~ are .not· going ·to take 
,·. 

• > ~; /" •• 

that man.out." And·th~t'.s .. when .a11 ·.of tfie ttouble started~ 

Q. Okay. No~1, did you .see·: the ·.guards .go .down to .get the irunat 

out of the ·cell? 
• • .·,·• ' • T • 

. : : ·: . :-: ....... 
A. Yes. - .. 

. . 
. .. ~ : :· :- . . . .· . . .. :-· .· :-;,: .. . . .. . . . 

• • • ~ l ··· .... 
.,., .. '.Iii .. 

. -: ~ . . ...... .· ·. :·· 
• .• • .,. • • • .. . ... ,, ~ • "!' 

.· .:' .. ~ ....... . 
•· '4':- 4 ~ • • •• - ~-. . . ~-. 

. .· : . . · .. .. . . 

~ .. . 

o. Whera wer~ you ·standing '_when ... you .. sav ·them .do_ <that?· 
.... .. ·-.',: ·_:. :-:';_·-.-._:·'.i:.: ·r -~: i:··~:_;'.·;· :·.·"·;:-::.;.~:::·i\'-~.~/'.~~>.'::: .. :,:;:· :···.-:: .'>·:"' ·~~;._:\: ... ·-:· 

A~ Inside ·the door;·_ · .:-·.:·.·'·.:·~':~._.,,:~··: ~. · ", .. ~ · :_ ~-. · ·· · 

Q. Insid.e the doorway. Does .that mean inside? ·Let me ask 

this questioni Inside ··~ii .the. wing side or ·inside 
. .. .l• . . ~- • · ..•.. 

control c~~ter?. "·:. _; ·-·· ·-~ ":.~. ~ ~l~:~:'.~~~-·. : .. :···: > ... : _ ..... :·~ .:' '. _; .. , 
.·•... ' ...... ,, . 

in the 

... '• ~ ~",/tf o• • 1• f 0. •Ce, • I 

• ... • • r . • : ... ,,.. 

i~side the ~in~~ ~ ... "~ .. · .. ~ .... ? . ··~·~; ~ , . ; . · . · · · 
Where wera ·you:-a~ding·~·~ns;d~ ~a ,_wine;?,.:_ .. -~·;.-..· 

. · .. · ·'·· :';l'." ·~. (:,:·.:,'\;.,~).;,·.~:'"is.:,:/ · .. Y • .. :_::;·.'.;/',,'·~,:,.:.,. 
JI... '..On the right..:. hand side. of ·,.the·· door .... '.., :\.::._. ~-'. /: .~ 

- · . .-. ~ '-~ /. ··~ :1 t\ ... ! r ,: ..... ~ '.\:\ . ;'• .... )->\. ~ <·~ ~ < · :<i f .. , .,.~ i r~~ .... ~_: · 
q • "" :.yQ~~¥,•:. _-~.!'i~r.e Yem ~ stil~_'. •. O.J?o ·:-~~;.;fl:aq? .. if<,;._.;· l°-'(: .. \'"'·;._,::_.. :. 

; ·;· :": .. .- ..... :·· .• ··.:. · ..... ~ .... •· • ... ": . ~-.·~ ':"·:/··.-~.·; ::,:.:~::~·::··.;·:·· :::-· .• .. ~.-, .~ .. ···.·.;.".:'~"'! ... : .. ./' f" . 

• .... 

A. 

Q. 

,.· .. . ·· .. . 

. . ..... -
... ·:·.!· •·· 
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- j; 

I 
1 l\. 

2 Q. Hho had a knife? 

3 I l\. 
!I 

Rodney Carr. 

4 Q. Do you sea that person here in the courtrcom today? 

5 A. Yes, I <lo. 

6 Q. Would you point him out by.what he's .wearing. 

7 A • He's wearing the blue coat.over .there, jacket, and blue 

. · 8 pants. . • J • . ·, • : .. -,,.,.. •" . . ~ ., :2 ..... -~' 

9 Q,. Nhere was·~odney Carr when.y'?u. saw him with a knife? 
... 

10 A. Up on the top of the:stairway, up .on top.of tha flag. 
.. .. -~ : 

11 Q. Okay. And where were you.when you.observed,this? 

12 
; . 

) 
.13 

A. 

Q •. 

:_ ·. :.- .... ·.· ·.~, --
. Right inside right beside. ,the :~d.o~rw.;_y. ··: ~ , _. 

. . . .. ~ . • . . . : ' ··-: .·! . . 
. . ~ 

.:~ : 
. ... >-. : j Okay. Inside the co.ntrol .center or .inside the wing? . . . ·: .. 

.· 15 

· Inside the wil'.:g.. . : .. ::-.::· .. "'· :·:, ~ .. ~: .. << ... :~ ; ·· .. <" ..... 
.. 

Q. ·.Now, after'you observed h~·~bmi!ig .up .. there with a knife,:.:.._ 
. ;·~: .- . 

14 A. 

16 
. ·. _: ... :·_ .. ·' . . : .. . - . 

. . ·. : ' ;~- ; . ~ : . . .. 

can you describe the knife ~for ,the j:olks1. '.~. ' ... 
·, :· . . . . ~ . . . 

. "' ::.: . : 18 . . . 

17 A. Yes. It was about 7 or 10 .inches ~~mg . .with white .tape on :i • 

Now·~·-. ~~.::Y~~ ~~~e~ed·>:~~·~~ ·'.;t~~~e·.:·~'.~~~,;~~~-~~-; ;i~/~~- .. Okay • 
·- 19 

! . Rod.nay Carr? .:,<~ ........ ,.. ' . . .. · ...... _-:; 

..:. : 

.20 
'·I.•• 

. 21 

A. 

o. 

Yes. ., ~ ..... : 

-~ ";.." .... · 
·. '.··' 

• I t • : ~ •._. ? .. ~··· :. ·. • :'· ·· .. • 

-Okay. About how many._wo~ld.you say.were coming up on the 
..·· ..... 

22 
·flag area? ·'· -. 

~ . 

.. ,, .. : "' .. 
. • .• .-: :·· ::: . .. . . 

• . · <~ ·:~::,;~;!! 
.. . •' ··"' 

. ~ ::: :·.~ ~~·.~~~-/,~. 



This document is housed in the Capital Punishment Clemency Petitions (APAP-214) collection in the M.E. Grenander 
Department of Special Collections and Archives, University Libraries, University at Albany, SUNY. 
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» 2 
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5 

6 

7 

I 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

·- :."::: .. 17 

... 18 

·19 

20 

21 

22 

23 
" .. 

. . i .. ·~\·.:> 24 
... ·: :· :_ .. _ ... 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q .. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

; 

townrd tho flag. ... . ., 

Bef 02:0 you saw him stabbed by thi£# indl~J'idual, 

alr~ady bloody?· 

Yes. 

-

So prior. to the ·time 

Jackson, it appeared 

already? 

Yes. . . 

• ••• 1 • 

you.saw_this 

that. .Jackson 
.. . . 

'..:. . ,• ~ .· . :· 

. _,; 

. .: 

. ~ .·. ..~ .~ . . 
~- .. ;- . 

iiunate·stab 

was already 

Okay. Now, where was .it .. when ·you saw.--

Jackson now when you saw .him .'.stabbed?.:. 

Hight there in the middle.of .the doorway. 

Okay. Now, who·did:y2u..:see·:etab· Tora Jackson? 
. . .. -~ . 

Rodney Carr. . ~ . 

I 

~ 

Wa3 his Shirr 

this Tom 

bleeding 

... --: . ·.·· ; 

.-_. ;'. __ · ~·-. ~}1:.f :~ 

. .' .· ---~- i:~ ~ 

•.:.·.:.._.; 

::s~at the aame R~~ey :~~~ .y~u-~ave .identified? .n~~,h~I '. 
Okay. Sir, I will show you .what's been .marked can·'.you·i '. 

. · . . , .. .. ....... :-' : · .. . . . ·: · ·:\ :.. · . : ... : .. ;;:~~-!)Si~ ~ 
descripe the knife· that y,ou ,saw?.·; .. >:·".-: ·: :_. . .' .. · ~ ...... ·.· ·. ?:::.,~,r;~:~i-j;:s;i; 

. . . . . . . ·. " .. "_; ... : ... :. ." '.:": .'.:: ;-. ..... · , ... _:'. ·:·· ...... :.-: '·:·.:=· .:.· . . ... ;.. . "-::··':.. ·: :·. :::~-~?':)t}~~1~~ :: 
It hacl white tape bound a.round .it. . . ' · .. ·:..::{. 

· .. ·· 

Q. ~:~:::::Okay.·_.- I will· show ·you·: what •.-s bee.n -marked ;·~s ·State• s' 

<J'"ff.{~7!!.'N6w/'caii':you-.:testify-.tliat.-·.·th1s·.-~1s':--the 7·exact-.kn_ife:..:.or,,. 

: .. ::· .. ·.: one~:·ihat-·'(~pP~e~i-~."tii·at -~~~y.?: ... '. 
. " . ·: • "'. ... : (.,.-·:~:~: .:.,::·<·:·'..:;-': .... _,·>~/> .. :/·: .. _ .. :: . . 

A. ;;~,;,,on_e.-~that·:::.~ppeara···:that. .wa~. '.,· .. ·.· · . 
. ,:· --~~ .. · .. '· ... ·. " .. '. ." :-- :, ;., .. · '. :. :·: .:. <2~-: .. . ... : " 

Q. ;.-)-.:JJf.aa-_'-'J.t··a ~h"ite-:M.ndla->:yo~.·:~ay? .... ~··_:·. · .. · ·· . .i .. , 
.. ., •.· ... .-: . . . : . •. ; ; . . .. ~ .· ·' . .. 

. · ... · 

. ·· . 

••• =: ..... 

. . ~ 
..... :~ 

. :~~ 
. ·-._· .... · . · ... 

' . "':.. . .... . .. 

. . . X~X-i:#'.::c;:,::!A.:,../L .. ·. . .. 
•, . ... . . ·. 

•• "!-

... :·.· .·. 

'·· .... 

--~ .-~. •·. - / .:·:~--~.~ 
:- 0 • • I 0 o • .• ~ ~ ·-· 
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) 
1 

2 l\. • 

3 Q. 

4 

5 

6 A. 

7 Q. 

8 

9 

10 

,. 11 A. 
,·: .... 

".": 12 Q. 

13 A. 

14 

. '\ .· 
15 Q • 

' . 16 

. •" ._· 17 . _. -~ ·. ··. 

··- .. ·'· -~-~·ia 

20 
A. 

21 
Q. 

I 

i 
He was, you know -- Hho.t do you monn by that? 

Hell, wouJ.cl you step down here, please. 

PrctBnd that I a~ Tom Jackson and that you are Rodney 

Car~. Did he.use his right ,or 'left hand? 

lie used his right, but I .am left-handed •. 
. . 

Assume that is the doorway.and I am right at .the doorway 

aiming into the'control cente~:area an~ ..you are Rodney" . : ; ,, 

Carr •. · Can' you describe the .manner :.in .which~ you saw the 
.- - , .. ~; !·" - J-;: .. J.:_;r·:.:.1 L ,; ~- :· -. . . ~ 

:"'. 
' ' 

Defendant s"tab Tom Jackson? .. , , , ·_ ·,_-._ ... ·· ,:_,; <.-.. ·. _ . . . . . 

. . . . ... . . ,·· 
Yes. LL~e this· here. 

MOve .forward? • .... ·. 

.:.·. . ... 

th~: b<J9.y:_ ~-~-j~~~_.i;i:a_qk~oi:i ;, t,-,· .. __ :·.:L,/; _:: ~):'.;'.,:~-~::-_:: ·. :· 

. . , . . .: ; . ' .. ~ 

: . . '~ : ; . . . ·:· . . . . .. . 

.Okay. Now, Mr. Hess, could .you come down here again.<-·:_ -
. . .. .. "> ~. # .: • -~· • • • .. • 

Okay •. You. are. Rodney Carr •. :. I_·:·-~-_:Tom ~~ckson. _You · :. 
· .... 

·.":have stabbed me.·· ·..fu~~~ :~~"5 -~i~r"'..~~!;,_~-~-tif view·"".'-~,' J: ·me~;"'.:_: 
: ::· .< . ,. ..... :-.' :.·.. . >"'°:;-:':',.:.:::/, ... ·.·::' :=::~,; ,; _:· .. ; .. ···--··:~· /:?J'::~_\'.'?{~'.::::·{.:·:.:~ ·~:·.: '.-:~·-::::>: .. ·;::;::;·:/~:= .. ~~-~ 
where did you get this view?. ,,Were you st~ding here, back 

.. , .. 
here, over there? Where.were .you.standing? 

I was standing right .here·~ ... , ~ , .. ,. , , -r • 

About how many"feet away,would you Z!ay? 

22 .. ' 
A. twout 3 or 4 feet .... ,.. , ... :· . .. . . .. - .. 

. -
.,.>> ": 
Q. -·~.·.Is that your beSt guesstimate? · · · 

"~ ... ..... ·'. .. '. 

. 23 
.. ,". .. ·:· ... . 

.. ·.:. - .: ... · . ... ~-..... 

A. · . ·Yes. ... . . : ... 

~--~."~.~Y~~~~'~?-~ft:er-;.ycrcira~~th~·:.:p~~~·dani:·:.Rodrle1~~~dil~~::_s.tab Tom· Jack~- 1 

; • ··. ·.._s: "':. .. _'"'... .• . . .. . • . • .. : : • : : : : . :.·, ~~· ·.: •· .• :~. . · .. : - • . . : ~ · ... ." ••• :·~~ ·~::: :·:.~: ·.:·:· :: : .;.. ...... ~ . : • 

· .. -. 

·"' :·· :' ...... . · ......... . 
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14 

-· 
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16 
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18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 ..... -
.. ' 

' 25 
·. ·. 

Q. 

.-..... ;t ~- t ! 

A. Yes. 

Q. W~at, if anything, happened that caused the Defendant to 

leave you? ""!.• t :• . ·, 

A. Another officer hit him with a.ball bat. 

Q. Did you see this officer.hit him? .. 

A. No, I did not.·:. .·. 
"• I ~ '" . ·· ... -....... ·, : 

A. 

A. 

Q. Okay. Could you hear'.it? .~:: 
. ,• . ····: .... .... ~_:·:·_.._: 
....... ,, ... . : : ·{ ·.' ... .. . : .• 

Yes, I could· hear it •. ·.·~--~~>·- .. ·y-.~; ... 
... ,; . . ·. . . >~/:·--t..:.: . ; ,: : ... _.,. -

What did it sound like when·,you ·.heard the ball bat hit? 
. .. -~ ·.). :·:. . . ... >~·.:·,./?~-~.: ': : ; ·'.~.:;,.· . . . :'. > • : 

Like a big old.boom •. ' ...... -~:: 1~;::.,-: · ... ~·.: .. .-... ·, 
. ···~ ··_:· .. , ... '.; -~.~ .. ·.=:·· .. :· ;_4_ •.. •.· '. 

After you heard. the. sou~d_~:~::~-~a_t ~:';if anything I happei:ied to .... 

Rodney .. earl=~ f, ;'. '; i /, ; :• 1 ::~t;\F L·~:; . b (; 1 .. 1 :: , ' .· 
. Well, he went back in .the·;jtfng.··. ·_ .~ .. .:·:_,. .::~ -.. :·.-··. · : . . 

~-: .. :. '.· 3 '·-.} . ( :'.<: )::'(:'.f.f.:.) f'·J-:. ' ":_.:". . · .. ·>: . : . . . '· 
Okay. And did the inmatei(i:S.:tay_.in .th~.-w~ng?,. '. :-.. ·_ 

Yes· . . · ·. /:i,;:, . ::;:; .·I~i~:: ... :f:·:· · .. :/:[.\;;}.. ... : · ···: ·; ·.:; ,.-> · · 
Okay. · Now, did they go ultimately .back .into the wing area? 

: : ':.~Vig~} - . . - . . 
Well, we forced them .. back·_J.n:~then, .you .know, .I got the 

door locked down. . ·-~:~~~:f ~{''· -·. 
:.~~~~;?:~!~~·~·. ·_: .... ; 

Okay. After the door was:· . .l"o.cked down~ .what. happened then? 

Well, we staye~ there·, '_t~~~~~lp -~ame •· · __ , . . . 
i . . ··<~~::F~t:: . . .. 
How long did you stay th~;~·;'~c\,i~,before help came? 

. ..... y _·.:-·:· .. :~·~'fg~j~~~};:··~:·· . . . . . : ... 
.·I don't ·know:J,G':;:t ~don't know. ·- I'm just taking 
. . : '. ·.· .;·;'":~.' ·:~:¥#&~1:r .. :'-- :. ·'. :· ~ ?:-.:·~ · :: : · -

a guess. About. ten minutes-.:::· .Ten, fifteen minutes • 
. . · ~ ~:" .. : :!~~~~~~;~:~;::_: :. :.: . ;: .. 

A. 

Q. 

A; .. 
."'·. :- ? • '.:· .. ~. "; • • •••. 

Q • 

... 
A. 

. .. 
Q. 

A • 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Q. 

Oh, about 

I 
I 
! 
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14 
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15 .. 

· . . ':. 

16 

.. .17 .. . -
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; ··. · .. :,.-24 
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\ 

Q. Do they fairly and accurately represent ~1a pl1otograph of 

blood ~1at was loft behind on the floor in B Wing? 

A. Yes. 

' . HR. FINNICAL: Your Honor, we offer State's Exhibits 

Nos. 23 and 24. 

MR. OSSMAN: I have no objaction to 23, Your Eonor. I 

object to No. 24 in that,counsel hasn~t laid a proper 

foundation particularly in.regard .to a time frame.with·<·. 

regard to Exhibit 24. . ~ 
. .... .., ~·: . . : . : ~ . . . 

: .. ·" . 

MR. FINNICAL: . I will. .. 

THE COURT: Very well. 
. .· . 

Q. . Is that the way the floor appeared .after the inmates· ·were 

. ·: pushed back to the wing? + ·_ ., •. .. ". 

A. Yes. · .:· :· :.·,_ . . ... . . :' .. -~- ·, _.:. ;·: . ·. 
. .... 

. ~ , : . 

. . 
• ~ ... :' t • 

'. · : TUE COURT: 
~ : .. ~ •:' ·~ : \., • •: ~ •., I 

.That objection.will be overruled~ :;.~hibit 
· .. 

:·•. .. 
24 will be admitted. , ' 

r 
I 

.··· ... 
~ ,..~ ... -· •. -:~ . ·;.c· •• r 

;,... ••• ••.I • ~ r..',.. I 

• •• ,. ... !"· 

- ..... • 1 •• 
...... ):io 

i ... (State' a Exhibits 23. and ..24 were .admitted in,_( P.Videnc · 

:: .. ·: : . .. . . . . - ... .-... . ~ . : . . . 
. . . . .. ~· ... · i. ~~ -~ .. >·· ... ,,.. .. .. -~... . .. 

Q. Now, I will :ask.you if that.evening 
.·'· .. . :· .; :: >·· .. " ;' .: .;::.:i::<:~:::i\:(.:-: :. ·_:· .':: ~-

• .. -' "·for ·treatment~ .. :. -- ,_..·: .. ,::i::::,; 0._ :· • ... 

: ·: ·,,, ·: : . . . . : . . ' . ·':; .. · -~ . ,.. ... !~:\ ~·~:~~ . : . . :- . ·, · ... ·.. . 

you had occn 

l 
•. I •... ! • .:• : ": .·.·:. 

.,,. ....... 

. . . . ~--: :-. 
.... :~· ..... ~~ .· ... ~ .· . -~ ·: 

; ·.;, ~ ... : -~.: .. \~ .. §j,;~:h_:, 
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19 

20 

21 
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. ' ..; ..... . .. .. ·. ~-.··· . : ~ .. :. ·"~ 

·· .. 

i 
HR .. : OSS.MA.N: Your Honor / ,J: assume Mr. Finnical pl~rt3 

;pi=-_oceedinga · wera- had 1) 

to introduce er ia trying to introduce State's Exhibit 

No. 25., which is a line-up that was held I. think on 

.':T~ly 4. . ... 
?1R. FIUNICAL: . Right, July:4 • 

HR. OSSMJ\N: And I think Mr. Finnie al will agree that 
.. 

there is evidence .-- or :t ... will: ma.'tt.e ·an offer of proof that 

tliere is evidence that this .. witness .was sh.own other . 

photographs before h~ waa ,taken .,to ~this :line~up to identify 
--- . . ~:. ~ .. ·. . . . - . 

the Defendant.·' .Arid on that .basis .:i .thin:k,".the. identificatio 
. : .· ... 

i~:~.ta.intad, and I would move .,th~ ·,court to .:strike any 
. : . . ... : .. :: ... 

eyi,~ence pertait?-i~g to this .identlf icat~?n_• ; · · . · .. , 

.MR~»FINNICAL: It's .. my .unde:rstandinq-that there were _j 
. \ ~ ·: . . . . . . . : . . . . ·._: ~- ·;.·. _:- .·· 

When we arrived at the Missouri,Training Center for _Men, 
•' '' : • ::' •.:·. • '.. .;. o • ~ ·, • I' o' ... ~:· • • •.: • 

tJ:iere were a group of pho.tographs··. ther~-. ··~:.~He· _".lo0ked ·at· 
. :.. .·· . . . ·_ - ... : .. . .. . 

..• . . :: ~ , . . •. 

the. phot09raph _o_f Roberts.,. ~Di;i~coll. _and-.i~d.-~cated .th~t:~~t--· 
: ... · .. •'. ~ .. ·:· ·--.:·. ~ ·. -· :-·:~· . ·-~_.:-::;:~:: .. ·":;-'.~- ..... :. ~--~; :··. -~-~---.. ·.·. __ :?:·.~~.----~·~:~.:--·:~--l~~- _;~·:_· ___ ··._·~-~------~;::;·~-~~~~:-~-~~~~~;~-:;-, :·\ 
wcis--riot-the person that he··aaw.stab.Jacksori;·::.:a~d: .. 1one othex · 

. . 

individual was not Rodney. .Carre:·,; He:·did not see a photogr·ap 

_of .. Rodney ~arr. 

·THZ COURT: 

MR .. 

. . :~_. 

A. • • • 
. ··­... 

. I . ···: ... •• 

Is -;it.: your_ contention that there_ is such 
·., ·. .. .. .. ": 

. ·-:· ; 
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) 2 
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5 

6 

7 

·a 

9 

10 

; . 
11 

12 

) 13 

14 

.15 
. ·;_ .. 

;. · ·. "':.··.~:'y5 
. ·: ... · 

: .. ·, 17 
. . , 

... ·· . .-. 

18 
r .•.· l.: ~~· •• :· •• •• •••. •. • 

., 

,19 

·'. ·,.·:.20 
. . 

:, ... . . . : .. ; <. ~'.>21 

22 

=.· 23 

o. Nf;r '. Mr. ncss, x hclio;~~ ;:~':' , fodic: t~d: <;t the time that y:r 
saw the Defon<lant Rodney .. Carr put .the blade into tho side 

0
.l 

Tom J~ckzon, was it lc~rcr. .than :·the chest area or the ch~:rst 

area? ;..,. . 

A. Lower.~hest area. .:• .. ·,; ., 

Q. You mean down here .-·or;~ up:·here'l .. ·· 

.n.. Down here • ~ .. •. 

Q. Okay. t:low, throughout this .trial have .you come to know a 
·.•.· ... ·. ·' 

man by the name of Robert.Driscoll?. 
; 

A. Yes. '•• i .r.•" .. .. 
·: :···· :' .... • .. 

o. I will show you what'.s been.marked as.State's Exhibit 26. 
. . . '· .. "•' 

And I\·dll ask ·you lf :~6~· can ."iden~if;· ::~at individual. 

A. Yes. ·~~~t's R~bert o~is~o1~.', '.'.}F<r\ .;. . 
. . .. : ·:~. ";- ·, ~: . . . - . . . •. :- ; ... --. 

Q. Okay. · Now, I believe you :indic.ated that .the time that 

·Rodney Carr stabbed . '.r~~; J;~~~i~i ;~~re .was already blood on 

. . hµn, is th~t ~1ght1 . • · ~/~'";!·S~~:'_?t;\ : .·-• .. 
A. Yes, -sir. '-~·-- .... · • .., ~:./'<.':-·~·/:~~:.:.\<-~ ·. · '. . 

-.. . ·"' -'!·-·:. _._ ·::~·-: .. - .. !·:-_ .. :-. ~.\_;.:·.~- :·. - - ... : 
o. · ·. ·oid yo1.1' ... see· Robert Driscoll ·~tab· Tom Jackson? 

A. ...... ..! _ .. ;. , .+ 

a • You cannot testify to that? . 
... _ .... . . . .. . ~ 

No, I. cannot~.· .:; .t.=i:.>i: >.{~ '-.·.\::;,;} ·~::·· 
. .• .. . - • . . ' . :' .>:: .• ::. ·.:: -~ ... : . 

A. 

. :• I• 

, - ... -·" .. 

. ... ~ . 
.... : ::.~ :; ·: 

.., . ;··. . . 
~ ~· - .... 

#_. : ••• :· ..... 

Q. Okay. Now,· can_ you.see what was happening to Tom Jackson 
.. : .":.. . .~· --.~:: " ... -~~ ::~~ :..-_.... . 

While he was being restrained.out here before he Car.la aroun 

><: = ·the --~·~~~a;?··:.'..·;-.·=.::~-~:, __ -~-s~:~~~i:}Xi:-~::>·~-, ,;:. ·:··~.'. .. 
s~~}.::~~i¥:~;~~ ~hid .. ~~i~{~tt{a~~;;.h~hr_i >·- . ~· ... 
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·23 

'·_:·; .. :.::<:.<~~ 
~.::.-.· ·::· 25' 

' .. 

it may havo been taken. 

l·m. FIN~O:CAL: Well,:· ·":lour. Honor / I ~·lill ask anothe= 

qucwtlon. . •. 

·, 
. -~ . .. ~ .. . . 

: . . 
THE COURT_: ; lill right·.· .... ·, .. · . . . 

Q. [)~~a_ this""picfure( fair.l_y.'.a~d- :a_c~u·r.et.t.ely ·:-~epr~~en~:·the way 
. . 

the 2Gth? 
: •. • ' I•• " •. !. ~· . " t ;: "• ?.: f• ,; ' 

Did you see him·,the. riext dayl ·:excuse me; the 
. . 

. ~ .: ~: . .......... 

..... ') 

·Yes. A. . . 
:: ··::_="~·~: 

.. 
'. Q. ... ·~ ...... ~ ~ ~ :-· . 

~; :-.. . . 

. . I "' .._ 
.. 

. . 

Q. This;-,is -how: he. appeared? .. : . · . .- · ... · ,,. · ;'.. ~ ~· : ·.: .:. ·. 
~-~=-:-~-.. 'i.:.: . .. · .. _ - - • •,";:'. -~ . -:,., ·-. :-.. - .. . . . ·: • 

. .... ·.· . 

. . . . · .. ~ -: .. 

1\. • 

.. ~ ;I 

MR. OSSHJ\N: No _objection, ~'.four :Honc:>r• .· -- -. ... ,· .- '!-.;~:;;~:,_-:-! ,._:_,., 
• .~ .. ,·: . . .. ·. ~ J. . : • . . :: • • . • •.. ·- • • . . ': .... '. ~ . . ' : •· ••. 

. .. 

THE COURT: State's .Exhibit .26 .will· be admitted.·..',:_. 

. .. . .. . : ~ , .;, . .~ :1 ~ .•. _ ~-. '.:::, :: ' :: , .. ;::: : :;:;::f _\~ .. -·,;- --~'.Hf.,::, .. ·/: . ~ -~· .• : 
(State's Exhibit 26 .was· admitted :int~·---evi_dence.>:>··· .... 

.. - - -... · \• .. ·. .. . 

HR. FINNICALz .. l?ass ... the witness • 

. . 
THE COURT I Cross. >.t: · ... > ~ .. , ... ·. 

··. .... ~· : 
: ... 

MR. OSSMAN: Thank you~ Your Honor. 

,·: 

. ·. 

. . . . :· 
. · ... 

. ·. . ~-· ·:.... . .· , .. . ., · . 

- .. + - ..... 

.... ·.·.· ..... 
CROSS-EXAMINATION 

·. ;·:: . . _i: ... _:.·· .. -. ·'·. 
~· :... :. . ; . . · ..... 

,\• . 

•.: • .:..·· .. •I 

:.· '• ... 't ... 

~.By Mr • .o~ s~an : .. < . · · .. :. . ·_.:; ... ~.-; .' .:._ .. :.· ·. ~-:.'. . .:::- '.:.·:·',· ~ . .-..·~·.:··_.,\_\:.:_ ·.-.:~.-:.·:· .. ~.:(_::r:.· ... ;~' _.-_.·.·.:_;:·· ·:~ ·.;·~:.-.:-•-:-":~: ':;,.~ ..... ~·~ ::_··.-."·::· =--~ ·',;. _,·.--~· .. :· .• ,.- --~ - ( .. ~~ ::. /• ·. ~:~·~.: )' .. 

-.: 

.. 
·. ·:.:·_.· .• ·.:_.:,:':·:·:.···.·,:·;.:_·.-.·.;:·:.·~--~-~.:_.·:_·~.· •.. : __ ~,:J.~-~--:'·;·.··:·~~-·.·.·.·~··:··_;:_:_ .. _~,:_·.~~~-.·~:~-•. ;:1"·· •• t.··.::·.··;:<:.·::·,·.-.:--~,_-.:-~.'.-·.~,:·.'.;.~-~-:~:;_l:··'·~:(.,·.·.·.·.:_._,·'._:'.-~-:·;_:.:.;.··::;.·_:'.·_· __ .,·::.·.:::~--~.:_.:;_;~--_' ... _'_~J··:;··.~:---:.~···:·,·_: ___ -._;·:::_·.:;···_·.-_.·::·· .. _-.:_:_· .. -:··-:·-·.-:··_·_.=··· · · ': .. ~~- .. -\~::/:r~~..o .... :-·- · ~· --~'.·: ... _ · · · -. _ ': .. ~ ..• · -· : ~;, . · ~:: :::·~··=:<;(~L;.~~Yh~:;/~~~)~.t:J:,_=~ ~.~~~j::-.\~~::.:~~ ~-: /~ ;: . ·~-~(;. ~· .. 

,· . 
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1 

2 

3 

23 

•y ',:-:.:·. 24 

i 
Q. .What kind of shoes? 

A. I ditln't pay attention to no .shoes. 

All righto Now, it's your testimony, is it not, that you 

actually saw a knife in this man's hand and actually sa\·1 . -.. ·. 
' 

that; knife go into th.e, bod~ of· Officer Jackson? 

.Yes. 
; 

i ' ~ • :· : : • .. ~. ~ .. ~ 
. . ·. ~.... . .: : 

Is that ·correct? .. .;. 

Yes, x ·did. S'.~a.· _ · ~h~ knife ·~1:i '.hi°s. hand.· . ·, · · .. , 
~ ... ,-• • . • e • • • • .. • •.: • • •• • "f' :.' • •• 

:Ia this knife that Mr~ F·innical ·has in his .hand? 
.~ >. :.· ~.'. { ~\ •. :. _. ,=.··_,_,.. 5 ,··· .... '~·· : . ·. . -= ~ .- • ~i .\ " ·= .·: •• · • _r-.. ·r. ! -~" .· : . ~>._~_<)·(:·: :-

Yes. '., -··· · : · .. :. · ·= · · ·· .. <·.-::·~·: . . "<_,\.~.- t.·:{",: ;···,'. ~., ·· ·· · ,··'.·.··.; · · · 

... · ... ····.·: ··; ... :·· 

How many times did you actually ·.·~e~ .. or did. you all~edly 

aee this Defendant s~~~ Officer·~·J~~k~o~:;·· .. :"i'i/··:~ ;: ... : ... · __ ~;/;~'I~8~:~\~}.·~~:-
. . ... ;· . :·. .... . . . " : ; ~ . : :.: . ···;:?· .. :;>·· . . : 

One time. . ;•. 

, . 
· .. 

That's the only motion you .saw?. 

That's the only motion. . ~ , .. ~: ~··;: . .. ~· .. ::: .· ': :.: •• · ••• t 

.. . : . 
All right. And you say that you actually :physica~ly saw th 

blade . go in to the body? .. , ·... . .. 
. • .. 

•• • • .I 
... _- ~ ... . ·,: ~ 

. ·.· 

'· .. ··· 



This document is housed in the Capital Punishment Clemency Petitions (APAP-214) collection in the M.E. Grenander 
Department of Special Collections and Archives, University Libraries, University at Albany, SUNY. 
 
 
 

l 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 
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10 
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.. . .. 11 
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.•.-. 

12 

13 

... .. ·,. 14 
. -~ ~ . :. l -~· ." 

·: . . :· .... · .. ·_j _, .. ; :: :.;_· ~?.. 
. •. ·:-.. • .. 

,. 18 

19 

. 20 
. . .. 
21 

· .. ·.· .··· : .. 

· ......... . 22 

confu13ed about who did that. 

Now, on July 9, 1983, did you or did you not give a 

handHrittcn statement concernina.this i.ricidcnt? 
. J 

A. '£0 the shc1:iff I did not ,give no handwritten statement. H~ 

took tho statement dm·m •. , .:r did not uso my hand. 

Q. I want to show you a copy dated July 9, 1983. It say3: 

statement of Robert t'Tayne Hess .. . Thora are two pages as· 

bast I can toll. Now, this.is a copy. I want to ask you 
" . . ..... :· 

if you signed that statement, ,not necessarily whether you·: 

wrote it. Did you s.ign it? .. ·:_";.:. ·~ .. 
.. · -.. 

:· ~· 

A. Yes. . .. . . ~ .. · .. -···. ·:,. ;i ''!':5>·• r 

. . . . I '.;, : .•.. _/;.;' .. ' '. . ": • . 

Okay. so ·that' is y~u:r· ·st~tern~rit? ·-·~·You re~all 
. :>· ... :~ \_ . ; ... ·, ~ ' /, . :.. . ··~ !: f... . 

Well, I cannot '·recall it .. ·:S. ~- .. _; .• > -~. 

a. 
A. 

:~ :. . .. ' ~ .. : ... · .. ',~ . . . . . · .... ! . . . ... JI ... 

0~- .:Yeti recall m~ing a· statement? .·': .. 
. •.. . ... _.. . . •. . . --: .· •"' ,. I . 

. -.: ·=- •. •··· . . . . •. - ·.· ..•. ;··~·~: ·~·' .· . . .. :":· •• : •. - .. • .• _. .... . . ; ~ 

·A.··· . ."' J: recall· making .a :stateme~t •. \ :;_)., .; ..... . 
~ • • • • • ,. • ·, I, • '" ... • ~! ,:- . • 

- ·' 

w~uld :you ·llke·· time '.to look;. a~ it? i·.:j ~->? 1 .~ ~··>< 
. ,_;. j (\· ~ ·, ·,_ .. : { • .. j .. :· r:~ .. ~-. t ~ /' :·:.. . .,::: t :: '··\ '.;. __ : :. ·' :: ~- ;_ ::~ 1,: :· ~ ·: ,;. \ .. ) 

:_ .<·":· .. \})}:Lt 
Q. · .. ·: .:. -:~~-- ::·7~~~{_f;~ 

~- ~= . 
. . · •. - _:i ·;.:~~-f~:. 

.•: ;':.: .. :~. \~f ~t:~jJ 
.. ; 

. .. . . . 
A. •. : . .. Yes, I would. . ' .. < . ,,··:..;'-.· .. ..;:'. :::. ~ :.: .. -:-_ ':(.·;:~ ;.~;~,;-: .. -,~. ·/_.> 

"· ••• :~ : • • • •• ·• : ··.··.~. -~:-: : •• ' . :.. • ... ·-.,,.!.. ·1,: 't ••• • .. • : ~- •• • •• : •• 

. ' ~. : ! .• ~ ~- •. -~ 

• ·•• r •• •. 

a. Okay. . .• ~ 

MR. FINNICAL: Jay, .Mhat .day was the statement? 

. MR. OSSMAN: July 9 .. ...... 

··- '"'\ -
i' : (~~~~~.l_d~t's_.ExllP,i~:!-:.~~3 .. .ID.~-~~~.:-~_o;-_;;.::_;~~~_!:i~ic'!-~ion_:) 

··--·--·-···--··-·-•.I'•~---- . 
. . "' . 

. . : .. : 
..· - ----. . . .: -;.;;- :-: .... ......... 

.... 

o. ·_;"· ~;- i1a~s·/-· I: •m. gbinq~' to···show --:You·=·'what_•_s., ·been· mark.ad 
~- ;,, .-._. :-: .·;_: ~:~-. . ,: . . •. . .· -·- ·.. . ~;. .. ' ·,_ . . . -~: . .. . . . . 

<~;_,::~;/:~p~_fe~ci~ .. n~~-~~:-Bxhibit .:f"an<f:~·sk''.y8ti~·.·ii- you~~n .. taka .a 
. ·. ··~;,~~~ .. -:~}:~~-~)(-1···-~.::·.i~-"';"'~.~ · .. : ... ,~--~-- •.• ...• ~,_.··:-·'·:-: ...... _.-· J· ·-·. -~· ·:· . ·---~-~·--:·.·-~·: .. /_ ....... ·:.- .. _. ·=-~- .i.' 

.•.. "' 
a5 

look at 
- .... ···':_:- .... -..... 

-; .. _ . : 
. - . . : ·:-·: ;' :·· 

.. : ·\. ~-~ ·-~~~-~::_:: 
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' \ 

-======:-~ 

I 

2 N~wber~ said to you? 

. 3 1\. Yes. 

4 Q. And ._T,llhat did he tell .you~. 

5 A.'· .Ho.,-.just -said_.he was go;~g-to .. pr·ove me wrong • 
. · :· ... 

6 Q.. Uh-huh.· 

.·.·1 A. )3_:Ut --
~· .. · ... 

. ·. 8 . Q~···: · s·ir/ =·~let me ask the ·questions, .please • 

•I 
.. . ·:·:··'-.. 9 
.. ·. 

:._ . .....__.._.!.- ···":;· :· . ~ : . ~· . . . : .• .. 

..... : 

. . .. 
10 .Q • J;~n't ~t a f~9!:, that ~in-yo~r ·~~~~~ent_yQu ·1;5~y~that1 

. '•. 

.· .. 11 "~.i~~.te:n:a~t Ne~~ber~· .. came. up .t<:> ·,~a-- arid. said~. 'iiess /I'm 
.:... :.· • I•;•• o' 

. 12 go~?g _to pr~y_e:. you: ~rong .. 
-·- .. , ... ~- .. 

. You '17~ .. ~ot· ... the,·.wrong man.·· That· 
••• .!. • • 

13 _qn~. inmate•" · _..;;· I assume ... that's. DriscolJ_ :. ".:'-
. . . 

at .... · .. : .,. 
gave .. a.: ·..;_ .. 

14 
-: .. ~ . . . . 

. "-: ._-. 
.. -: . ·. -

:·-15 
~.. : .. -.: 

.-·· .. 

... 

stat.am.ant? ~-.·· · .... . . . .. ,. ..... . 11111 "• ' -~ •' .. 6 .. I • ' • 

'· .. ·: .. 16 : . 
A. # - .. • 

17 MR. OSSMANz Can I have just a second, Your Hon.or?.'!·;:::;:. 
.. .. -.. ~. . . ;, .;· -.. ·_ .. :.·. .• . •'':. ~--.. ·.·.~.-. .. ·.~~'.··.·.··~.' ... _;;_:...·.· ...... :-: . . - ... ~ . 

18 
• .. -.r .... ·_; ~. :: "' -

I have· no_ ~urth~~, questions of the witness, YoUr-· · .. : 
19 

20 
..... 

21 

. :,• .. ·: · .. ·:·\. 22 

... · ;: . 23 
. :- .... _:_ .... -

{: . : . .-· · .. , '. . . . . 

Honor. .. ... ; -•··.I 
~-. ·. 

' 
: .. ·THE COURT r .. Redirect. : ·• ~:_,: 

-·· . ;; (~. ~ ·.• .. ~ J ••• 

.. ~-- ·•.-.. 
\·. : 

:"'·-· .. -..... - ~ ... 
.. . . 

.. 
~ . _,,. 

·:' .. 

... ~· ... ~-~ ... :-: .. ~:-·'. -: ... ~ .. :· ~--' •,:.. ; .. · ...... ~ .; . 

. .. · .. REDIRECT EXA.l't1INATION . ·•. 

.. 
~i '*; -~ -~-·: : ~ .. '\ ~. • ; 

:BY Mr •. ·· ~innic:~i t 
:- .. ,. _ .. :"' ~· . . ... ·:-.. ... ·· ... ; .. 

.. ··: ··.: . : ~..,,· . 
•r ,· ~ • •• • ... .;."·: '•' ·-••• ~. • .. :._.·: ... 

... 
·!. ;, .. 

·.·· ~ 

• ····#· .. ; :,,, . . . . .. . ... '246 

":.i.ti~iil.~i~~i~ ~;/0,fiAl~ , _.,,;;,_~~i,~£1L~ . _,.;:~%i~~~JJj~-, ik~~"-, ... • . 

: .... _ 

. . ·: 

.. 
·.·; 

_t ~- ! . . . 

.. . . .. 
..... •·.· .••• ·. : •'t •. 

. . ·. ;~ ~: .. ·:~---~~ ._::.£- _:,i. ~:-.. ·~ .::..:/ :.::~:t:~· :: .. ~ . :":. ~. 
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.... : ... 10 

. ·.· 
·.: .... ·.·· 11 

.: .:'._ .: ... ·~: ··:.12 
~ ·-~· .~ : • .. 
... 13 
'. ._. 

( ·:· · .. ·. 

,.· . · 14 

I : ·' 15 .. · .... ('_. 
~. . . :·. .• . 

. -:.16 

: : ·.: - . 

17 . ,;.:._.;·,:.· 

r::)~· ;\'.;-_:._'~'~ ia 

·.·. 

. . • .. 

19 

20 

· ... ·.:··21 
· ... 

.. · 22 

n.. 

Q. 

A • 

Q. 

A. 

Q •. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

==================·· '~·================== -:====~ ....... 

that?, 
~ ....... 

Do: you ra~ai+ ··what_ you.' said.· :abau·t~: the person .. Wh~ s_tabbed yo 

as far as faci~l hair goes~ 

No. 

You do not recall? . .· ~ ~ . : . 
~ . ;. · ... ', ·.:· .. · . . . · .. 

.· .. 

. ·, . . . .·. :" :. . .. 
mean ·by that ~ther_e? '.-_.\· .. :.: ....... 

·. . . . : . ::.:·;:·::~ .::: .·.( .. :. . 
. . •f·.. .• - ·-~ ~:.. . .. 

Hhat do yeµ . .. .: .· ~. :. ... 

Sir? .- . 
:; : '· . . .......... • . . . · .. ·. .. : : : ~ . . .. . . 

Hhat do you mean by . .'. that .. there?·.;,.-:<\·~.---<, ... _..·.. . . . ..... , · ·- ,. ... _~·;:.:- · · · .. 

Do ~iou remember what .you .sa;~-!~~i-~ ::the .d~~~·s~~~~; .. ··:~.:·.>.=;\:\.:.\:: ·.'.-__ 
.-._ .... -:;- .. _'/:.·_> .. >: ...... :. ·:,.-.:: .. :<. ·: ~<:·~::::;::/L;~,- :,-.::.:_, .... _ 

No because I never read the deposition. , . .-_ . - , ~ ... --.· ..... _, .. · .. , .-.- ·. _ 
.\ ...... -.. : : ·. ,· : . . : . . :· .. ·.:.. -:: .· .... ·~.···. :: ··::-." :~. --~-.~~ _; ,•, .. 

Would you like a chance ~~ .loo~.·~~-... ;~~;~.)>:_.·:-~.:: .. ;: ... ·~.-~:'_;_.'.~ .. ·:~·_.".~-~-.(_:~~.:·:\;~:.':_'..· .. · ... :: 
Yes, :t would. ... ...... :_ .. _'·": ... · .. -,:-... ~'._:_ ... '.":: ·· '.· · · :. -..· ·: 

. ..... .. :· ;, .. :. ._: ,. · ... ·' .. :'.·::-,;: :-~:~J:~~t-.:·.~:..:.:.: . 
And I am specifically calling .your attention to page;'.10 ~- ·.·= · 

And you will nota on the .. fr~ri~.:-~~t:·;·i~ ·:~he .. depo~~~·i6~·:·,·~~-:.'.)_~:.-..· 
... :.--.~-; . - . .. . . . . .. :... ; .. · .... · :· -->~/·~ .(>.,:. ~.: "·; ~ ;: ;;~; .. :·.£~~: . .-:~,::·<~ ;; :-:. :~;~;.;'.::~r .-;:_: ~·:'. i)· _·:.~.:;_:: ./~~--:~~~?~;~(:?~=-: ·.-

Robert Wayne Hess.·'.· · 4'..,:: .. ·;· ., · · . . ~·::>. ;-·;·:::···;~ .·-.;· · :;,:·t·~ :··.-.:: 

A. 

o. 

sir? 

Yes. 

Have you had a chance to .. review that de~sition page 1 , 

'" ...... , .. · 
. : '•!' ... 

.. 
·-: .. : .· ... -~ /·~· .· ... 

. ·: =-:.;\:~· .. : ·.. •·': 
• •••. 4 • 

.· 

. . : .. 

. . : -~ .... ·. ,•." 

. .. ; 

;,:-. 

And what do you now recall.what'you·said ·concerning facial 
·:··. 
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1 

3) 2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

-. -.:a 

9 

10 

13 

14 
.. ·. 

. . '·' ' ....... 15 
........ 

:. :- . ·.·. ! .. 

16 

... ._ 17 
... ·. 

... 
.• '· .. 18 

19 

. . : 21 
. :•. 

. 22 
... ·.-.··. 

· .. =· . -.. 

"Of~I.Q~4::h_a~hcivt"i''a ·heara··:of'"moustache? 
.• 4..- ~ . . . • • . : •. •. I • ;- . • "' 

u ;\~- -~:;N· o· " 
~··~· .. 

. ' ; . ., . '• 

: ; '·:·· 

. ' ... D_<? _you :reca~l that?.' .'i 

·I ~aoh' t" rc-ca11 ·that·.~_::_·' 

. i 

l\.. 

I have no other questions., Your Honor. 
,. 

TUE COURT: Redirect. . . . ·•. :; . ·~·: ~ ; . . . · ... ·. 
~ . ~.: .•. . ~. :· ..... ·.:· : . .. . 

. .... 

tL.Il. F~NNICAL: . I hav:e no .other questions. 
. •'. 

THE COURT: May t.hia witness be "ex'cused? . . . . . ·: ~· .· . -~--

,·z· ·.: ~ -· : .... ~ ;·~.. : .. ...... ::;~ ~· 

I·m. OSSHJ\N: No, Your Honor.·· :. ~ .~·: ·. _ .. · 
.. ; : .. 

Til.B COURT: Very we11: -._You wil.l step ·doWri;·· remain 
.. : ;. .. . . . . 

., outsid~. ' ' . . . ' ·,.;>'.'.>.; : ;5 : . ··: _":· ..... : -~-; .. ~-·~\: ":? ·:;:---_;: . .. . ,. ~. ~ ··..... . . -::. _:···~·. ~ 

Call your next .witness; ;.··.~:;_~.·.-·-~" . .< .:·. -:· · .... :-;· ... ·;.,' '· 

. HR. FINN:CCAL: · .. Rober.t w~~~:~~-~,/~i~~~~~- :·:,·~; ·:- . 
·.. . ~· .· ·:':.::'~.~· .. ~·:.~·:·· .. ~ ...... :; ~·:;·~·-· .-. .·~ .:·.: .. 

·: ·. · .. : ~. ; .. • ... • . : - -., .. ·:J . •• -

.... :-... , · .. ·. "· ..... :· · ... ·. 
. . . ; 

.· . .'. 
. ... , ~ · ... ·::·· ·; ·• 

.. · 
·.· ... : . 

. ROBERT WILSO. N : .. : .. ·,_,_ ·.;: .:._. ;.: . :::·:\.;; ',:;\ . .. -.· -. · '. ~ .. · .. ': -:_.,.: 
~~..;;...._..;....-...=-;,..;;...-' .. . . .·:. :_.-· .:·' ·. ·:. -.,._.-..· .·.- =~ .. ; 

.. . .. . ... :r 4 •• _. • ,, .... ._' •• " ..... • ·:· , <· .. :~~:.~- ;.:·::·--::i) ;=:-: .... : .. .;,.;/-: -J" ~:':."X;_.: :=<:: -: .. :(-.-:-:.-..:~:: ~.-:,:-.·::~~: , .. ·:_y 
boing first duly sworn by _Hershel Schafer, .Clerk,· testified as 

follows: 

··.· · . 

By Mr. Finnical' 

.. 

·. 

. . . . 

o. 
. .·,,, .. 

Sir, would you please state .your name~'.·,._-,:_-" 

A.· . :~··. ~ : : -... : Rebert Wilson. . ... 
)" ./ ;_ ~/ .. : . . ~ .. . ,.... . . . : . :·:,.; l-.~: .. ~ :_.~- .. · ... 
. o. -. .. _Mr • ._Wilson, where d.c>". you".li;e? ·:·~-~· . ,_».<>: ... : · · 
. . . . . ~-. . . . : . :": :: . .• ... . : .;. 

.:;j~L~:- ... ~u te 4 ~:. Mob~r ~ y I Mis s~uri . :~:~·:;~/:·.: :'.:. j·\.; ;:;:.~~;·~:-.:~.'·;:·;> .... ·f ::.)::·:.: . ~ 

' ' : J .. 

~ .... ; 

.· .. •. 

,:.:. 

. . · . 

.· .. 
.· 

I 
I 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

:6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

Q Back on July 3rd, 1983 how were you employed? 

A I worked for the Department of Corrections, 

Randolph County, Moberly M~dium Security Prison. 

Q And subsequent to that time you've retired, 

is that corrE:?ct? 

A 

Q 

I retired in '85. 

Now, on July 3rd, 1983, did you know the man 

who's sitting next to me? 

A Very well. 

Q Can you identify him, tell us who he is for 

the record? 

A All I knew him by was Hog Roberts. 

Q 

A 

Q 

So you knew him by name? 

Just Hog. That's all I can recall. 

I want to show you what's been marked as 

16 Plaintiff's Exhibit 11, and can you tell me and the 

17 Court what that is? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A This is just a report of what I wrote on the 

happenings of that particular night. 

Q Okay. When did you make that report? 

A You're asking me something now -- I can't 

remember what I done yesterday much less since 1983. 

Q I'm not trying to test your memory. Does the 

report reflect when you made that report? 

A Well, that's the night it took place, July 

t -

29 

(COMPUTER AIDED TRANSCRIPTION) 

-----------·---- --- -------------------- ---- -
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1 and so many things took place that it's hard for me to 

2 say now, but I definitely gave his name as a man who was 

3 holding him because I was r~ght there beside him. 

4 MR. WOLFRUM: I object. This is getting into 

5 a narrative. Non-responsive. 

·.s THE COURT: Sustained. 

7 Q (BY MISS MESCHER) Do you know whether or not 

8 you would have made such a statement close in time to 

9 July 3 of 1983? 

10 A July 3? 

11 Q 1983. 

12 

13 

A 

Q 

Would I have made such a statement? 

Somewhere close in time to that. Do you know 

14 whether or not you would have said that Roy Roberts was 

15 holding Officer Jackson sometime near July 3 of 1983, 

16 your statement occurring sometime near that- date? 

17 A Well, it didn't happen until the 4th, did it? 

18 You're asking me if I made that statement on the 3rd? 

19 Q No. I'm asking you if you would have made a 

20 statement, whether or not you would have made a 

21 statement that Hog Roberts was involved holding Officer 

22 Jackson sometime near the events of July 3rd? 

23 A I still don't understand. I'm sorry. I 

24 don't understand your question. 

25 Q It's probably my wording and not anything 

i. 

36 
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1 hynosis or because that's what you observed? 

2 A That's what I observed. 

3 MISS MESCHER: I don't have any further 

4 questions. 

5 THE COURT: Redirect? 

·s REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

7 BY MR. WOLFRUM: 

8 Q You say that even though you didn't know his 

9 name, Roy Roberts was easily identifiable to you because 

10 of his size. I assume the minute you saw whatever you 

11 saw, because of his size he was one of the easy people 

12 to pick out, is that what you're saying? 

13 A There's about twelve hundred inmates and you 

14 can't remember everybody's name and face at that 

,,- 15 institution. 
! 

16 Q I'm asking you what you testified to on 

17 cross-examination. 

18 You said you could pick him out because of 

19 his size, about the biggest guy at the institution? 

20 A In that wing he was. Not in the institution. 

21 Q In that wing? 

22 A In that wing. He lived up on the top wall. 

23 Q And you're saying that at the time· of the 

24 incident you saw what you saw and you could identify Roy 

25 Roberts because of his size, is that correct? 

I' 

16 

(COMPUTER AIDED TRANSCRIPTION) 
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1 

2 

3 

A Okay. I turned around and looked and I seen 

this man right here had Mr. Jackson in a headlock. 

Q But my question, we've all heard that, my 

4 question is you could -- you're saying you could 

5 identify him because of his size? 

7 

8 

9 

10 

A Not because of his size, but of his feature 

and his face. I could not forget the man's face. 

Q You had seen him before? 

A I seen him around in the institution. 

Q Did you know any nicknames that people called 

11 him? 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

A Yes. 

Q On July 3rd what -- on July 3rd, 1983 what 

nicknames did you know that people called him by? 

A Hog Roberts. 

Q You knew that on the day prior to the 

incident? 

A I just knew they called him Hog Roberts. 

Q And so you're saying that when you gave the 

statements in Plaintiff's Exhibit 4 and Plaintiff's 

Exhibit 5, you're saying that you knew who Roy Roberts 

22 was, is that correct? 

23 If you gave those statements on July 4th and 

24 July 9th of 1983, you're saying you knew him by the 

25 nickname Hog Roberts? 

t . 

17 

(COMPUTER AIDED TRANSCRIPTION) 
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1 A I just heard the inmates call him Hog 

2 Roberts. 

3 Q Fair enough. You knew that when you gave 

4 Plaintiff's Exhibits 4 and 5, right? 

5 A Yes. 

-6 Q And in spite of the fact that you testified 

7 you gave a lot of statements, you didn't give any 

8 statements that you believed to be untrue or incomplete, 

9 did you? 

No. 10 

11 

A 

Q Okay. What walk did you say he lived on, Roy 

12 Roberts? 

A 

Q 

A 

Huh? 

What walk did you say he lived on? 

In B Wing. 

Is that upper, lower? 

That's up. Lower and an upper. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Which one of those wings did he l;ve on? 

Would be the wing on the upper wall. 

MR. WOLFRUM: Unless Mr. Roberts has some 

21 more questions, I don't. 

22 Nothing further. 

23 MISS MESCHER: No recross. 

24 THE COURT: You may step down. 

25 Call your next witness. 

j. 

18 

(COMPUTER AIDED TRANSCRIPTION) 

---------------- ---------------



This document is housed in the Capital Punishment Clemency Petitions (APAP-214) collection in the M.E. Grenander 
Department of Special Collections and Archives, University Libraries, University at Albany, SUNY. 
 
 
 



This document is housed in the Capital Punishment Clemency Petitions (APAP-214) collection in the M.E. Grenander 
Department of Special Collections and Archives, University Libraries, University at Albany, SUNY. 
 
 
 : ·- ' . .J -

:;·~ .'.·r:::::::; 7 

:in;; er! 15°" h:z.i .\;:c !Ci 
t..1i:~a ;tC \t] .\. c.--r.•-(l)--



This document is housed in the Capital Punishment Clemency Petitions (APAP-214) collection in the M.E. Grenander 
Department of Special Collections and Archives, University Libraries, University at Albany, SUNY. 
 
 
 

··-. ···········-:J ;. .:. ......... .. 

--'- ....... 
:"es s ------



This document is housed in the Capital Punishment Clemency Petitions (APAP-214) collection in the M.E. Grenander 
Department of Special Collections and Archives, University Libraries, University at Albany, SUNY. 
 
 
 



This document is housed in the Capital Punishment Clemency Petitions (APAP-214) collection in the M.E. Grenander 
Department of Special Collections and Archives, University Libraries, University at Albany, SUNY. 
 
 
 

THE COURT: You may step down. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

MR. FINNICAL: Same situation, your Honor, subject 

to recall. 

THE COURT: Yes. Right? 

MR. MARSHALL: Yes. 

THE COURT: You may leave and return to your home 

but you are subject to recall so make arrangements 

so somebody can get hold of you if they have to. 

(The witness was excused subject to recall.) 

10 

11 JOE VOGELPOHL 

12 duly sworn by the Clerk of the court, testified: 

13 DIRECT EXAMINATION by Mr. Finnical: 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Sir, please state your name. 

Joseph Vogelpohl. 

Mr. Vogelpohl, where do you reside? 

Missouri Correctional Center, Pacific, Missouri. 

How long have you lived there? 

About two months now. 

Prior to that where did you live? 

Algoa, A.C.C. 

22 Q. Now, I will ask you if you had occasion to· reside in the 

23 Moberly Training Center for Men on July 3, 19 83? 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, sir. 

What was your status there? 
j. 
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l 
2 

' 
3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

a 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

the hallway? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Who was in the hallway? · 

A. John Bolin, Doug McWorthy, Rick Beatty, myself, Robert 

Driscoll, Rodney Carr, Roy Roberts. The others I can't remember 

the names. Melvin Steikel, Tim Rutledge. That's all I can 

remember. 

Q. Now, as the group were standing in the middle of the 

hallway -- strike that. Were you standing in about this general 

area (pointing)? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. As you were standing there with the group of -- how many 

inmates? 

A. Approximately thirty (30). 

Q. As you were standing there, who, if anybody, did you 

observe coming down the hall? 

A. Tom Jackson and two other officers. 

Q. What did you see them do? 

A. Go to Room 410 and take Jimmy Jenkins out to ad-seg. 

Q. Was anything said as Tom Jackson and the guards were 

taking the inmate Jimmy Jenkins out? Were any statements made? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. What kind of statements were being made by the people in 

the group? 

A. Roy Roberts and John Bolin said to the other inmates, are 
t ; 
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t 

2 

we going to let them -- the guards -- take Jimmy out like that. 

They said, let's rush them. 

3 Q. Were any other statements made to the guards? 

A. No, sir. 

5 Q. And as the guards start going up the hall, what if 

6 anything, happened? 

7 A. They rushed the guards and attacked Thomas Jackson. 

8 Q. Did the group of inmates overcome Thomas Jackson as he 

9 was returning, walking down the hallway? 

10 A. Yes, sir. 

11 Q. Where were you in the group? 

12 A. I was off to the left side and they were in the middle 

13 of the wing. Thomas Jackson and Jenkins got to the steps and 

14 he was pushed down. They were at the door. 

15 Q. There are steps leading up to the doorway? 

16 A. Yes, sir. 

17 Q. Other inmates were surrounding the door? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. Where were Thomas Jackson and Jimmy Jenkins when you 

20 observed this? 

21 A. About in the middle of the steps. 

22 Q. What happened then? 

23 A. The inmates had attacked him and were trying to hold him 

24 back. He managed somehow to slip away from them and headed for 

25 the cbntrol center. 
i. 
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l 

l 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

Q. As Tom got to the control center door, was he stopped 

by anyone? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

Who stopped Tom from getting into the control center area? 

Roy Roberts. 

Was Roy Roberts in the front or back of the group? 

He was in the front. 

Now, as Roy Roberts stopped Tom Jackson from getting in 

9 the control center did other inmates come up around the control 

10 center door? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

A. Yes. 

Q. What if anything, happened then? 

A. Some ~ntout in the control center to fight with other 

officers and some were fighting there at the flag on top of 

the stairs and some on the steps. 

Q. How far were you from where Tom Jackson, Roy Roberts 

17 and Robert Driscoll were? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Approximately seven feet. 

By the back of the flag? 

Yes, sir. 

Did you see Robert Driscoll do anything with the knife? 

He was stabbing at Tom Jackson. 

What was Tom Jackson doing when Driscoll stabbed him with 

24 the knife? 

25 A. Trying to go out into the control center. 

328 
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1 Q. Was something preventing him from getting into the control 

2 center? 

3 A. Yes, sir. 

Q. What was preventing Tom Jackson from getting into the 

5 control center area? 

6 A. Carr was inside the wing and prevented the door being 

7 shut. While Driscoll was stabbing Jackson, Roy Roberts was 

a holding him. 

9 Q. Did you actually see Robert Driscoll put a knife in the 

10 chest of Torn Jackson? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. How many times did you see it penetrate the shirt and go 

13 in the chest of Tom Jackson? 

14 A. Twice. 

15 Q. After you saw the knife penetrate the chest of Tom 

16 Jackson, did you notice anything on his shirt? 

17 A. Blood. 

18 Q. After you saw it, what did you do? 

19 A. When I seen it, I was in the process of turning around 

20 and going back to 410 to watch T.V. I didn't want anything to 

21 do with it. 

22 Q. Why didn't you want anything to do with it? 

23 A. I am not a killer. I do not believe in killing somebody 

u like that. 

25 Q. Do you remember the exact words that Roy Roberts used in 
t -
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l 

~--

2 

3 

5 

the back of the wing when they were taking Torn out -- taking 

Jimmy Jenkins out? The exact words he used? 

A. Not the exact words. 

Q. Just generally? 

A. In general, are we going to let them take him out like 

6 that, sit here and watch them do it or do something about it. 

7 MR. FINNICAL: I offer State's Exhibit 23. 

8 THE COURT: Any objection? 

9 MR. MARSHALL: 23 is Driscoll's knife? No 

10 objection. 

11 THE COURT: It is admitted. 

12 (State's Exhibit No. 23, so offered and received in 

13 evidence, is not included herein but will be filed separately.) 

14 Q. Did Robert Driscoll after the incident and after the 

15 inmates were pushed back into the wing, did Robert Driscoll 

16 ever come to you and say anything? 

17 A. Yes, sir. 

18 Q. What did he tell you? 

19 A. Did I take him out, JoJo, or did I take him out, referring 

20 to Torn Jackson. 

21 Q. Had Roy Roberts escaped back into th~ wing after the 

22 me lee? 

23 A. I don't know. I didn't see him come back in. 

24 Q. Where did you stay after you left and saw Jackson being 

25 stabbed? 
j · 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

Q. All right, you deny that. Do you remember writing a 

letter to DeWitt Burns? 

Yes, sir. 

B-u-r-n-s? 

Yes, sir. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. Do you remember saying in that letter, old Ed Ruegg is 

over in H-Hall in P.C. He really got involved in some heavy 

a shit. I heard he held Jackson while Robert was stabbing him? 

9 A. That is what I heard. 

10 Q. So you said that in ·the letter to DeWitt Burns? 

11 A. Yes, I said that. I said that is what I heard because it 

12 is what I heard but what I saw, I saw that man in that suit hold 

13 Jackson. 

Q. Not what you had been saying at the time? 14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

A. I wrote that for one purpose. It also says in the letter 

when I was dispersing from that scene I turned around and knocked 

him on his rearend for one reason; The people µp on Hospital 5 

were friends of his ·talking tc me about it, how they knew him, 

et cetera. They were bringing me my food. How would I know if 

20 they were friends of his they wouldn't put rat poison in my 

21 food? I was told at another time people on that -- people being 

22 paid to put poison on the food. I wrote that letter for my 

23 protection, to make them believe I wasn't testifying against 

24 Roy Roberts. 

25 Q. That is why you said when you were leaving you knocked Roy 
i. 
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1 RE-CROSS EXAMINATION by Mr. Marshall: 

~ . • 
2 Q. You talked earlier about how you heard before the rush 

3 occurred, you heard some inmates saying let's rush them or 

4 something like that? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. Who was saying that? 

7 A. John Bolin and Roy Roberts. 

8 Q. Do you remember being interviewed by Sgt. Ullery and 

9 Corp. Merritt of the Highway Patrol on October 3, 1983, you were 

10 at the hospital on the fifth? 

11 A. Yes, sir. 

12 Q. Did you tell the officers at that time that you overheard 

13 inmate Robert (Rabbit) Driscoll and John Bolin say they should 

14 prevent the taking out of Jim Jenkins and you related that 

t 15 Bolin said let's rush them? Do you remember saying that to the 

16 off ice rs? 

17 A. What I told the officers, I said Roy Roberts. If I did 

18 say that, I wasn't in the right mind because I know Rabbit didn't 

19 say nothing. He was a quiet person. Robert Driscoll, he was a 

20 quiet person. He put that knife in his back and walked out. 

21 Didn't say a word. He was like that before that, he was a quiet 

22 person. 

23 Q. If that is what it says, it is not true? 

A. Yes. 

25 MR. MARSHALL: Nothing further. 
j' 
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I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on February 
26, 1999. 

I am Richard Hays, investigator for the Capital Habeas Unit of the Federal Defenders of 
Eastern Washington and Idaho. I work with the attorneys representing Missouri death row 
inmate Roy Roberts. 

Mr. Roberts was convicted in the killing of a prison guard, Thomas Jackson. During the 
course of my investigation of the Roy Roberts case I interviewed numerous people including 
Willie Dennis. I interviewed Mr. Dennis at his home, 1101 South 4th Street, Moberly, Missouri, 
on February 20, 1999 at approximately 6 pm. 

At the time of the murder of Mr. Jackson Mr. Dennis was a Major working at the 
Moberly Training Center. According to Major Dennis he arrived at the prison within an hour of 
the death of Mr. Jackson. Major Dennis relieved the guards that were involved in the initial 
disturbance and proceeded, with 3 other guards, to transfer inmates thought to be involved in the 
riot from B-Wing, where the riot had taken place. The transfer of inmates took place within two 
hours of them being locked in their cells after the guards took control of the wing. Major Dennis 
told me that he supervised the removal of Roy Roberts from the cell. Major Dennis told me that 
he saw no blood on Mr. Roberts and that had he seen any blood, that he would have confiscated 
any article of clothing or other item, with blood was on it for evidence. Major Dennis did not 
want to sign an affidavit. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAITII NAUGHT. 

l -
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POLYGRAPH QUALIFICATION OF 
DONALD I. DUNLAP 

Appointed to ~he Kansas Ci~y, Missouri Police Departmen~ December 
1, 1955, as a patrolman and was promoted tc "Plain Clothes" Unit as 
an investigator in 1959. 

Transferred to Polygraph Unit on August'1, 1960 for'training as a 
Polygraphist. Received two years "preceptor" training under 
Supervisor Kenneth Johnson (Reid Control Question Technique). 
(Kenneth Johnson was trained by John E. Reid.) Conducted 
approximately 1, 2 oo examinations during the two year training 
period. 

Attended National Training Center of Polygraph Science, New York 
City, in 1966. Received six week 220 hour formal training. Mr. 
Richard o. Arther (formerly associated with John Reid) is director 
of National Training Center. 

Have been supervisor of the Polygraph Unit since Mr. Johnson 
retired in 1969. Was involved in training of one polygraphist in 
1964 and since 1969 have personally trained five polygraphists 
(except for their formal six-week school) four of whom still are 
under my supervision in the Kansas City Police Department Polygraph 
Unit. Have personally conducted in excess of 7, 500 Polygraph 
examinations as a police polygraphist over the past 16~ years on 
Criminal cases, Internal investigations, and pre-employment 
examinations. Since 1962 have been.a partner of Johnson-Dunlap & 
Associates {private polygraph firm) conducting private examinations 
for businesses on internal problems, etc., (approximately 1,500 
exams) . 

Have testified numerous times in Jackson County, Missouri Circuit 
Court as an expert witness. Also testified in Cooper County, 
Missouri. 

Accepted as an active member of the Academy for Scientific 
. Interrogation (an international professional polygraph association) 
on July 1, 1963. Became a charter member of the American Polygraph 
Association on August 23, 1966 when the Academy for Scientific 
Interrogation merged with three other professional polygraph 
organizations. · 

On June 1, 1964, helped organize the Missouri Polygraph Association 
and became a charter member. Served as chairman of the membership 
qualifications committee from May, 1965, to October, 1973. Elected 
President of Missouri Polygraph Association in October, 1973, and 
served two (2) year terms. Presently Chairman of the Board. 
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Charter member of the American Association of Police Polygraphists. 

1974 through 1976 helped organize Greater Kansas City Polygraph 
Association. A charter member. Presently (1978) serving on the 
Affirmation Committee. 

Elected a Distinguished Fellow in the Academy of certified 
Polygraphists. 

Have done research on ~re-employment polygraph examinations 
conducted at the Kansas City, Missouri Police Department and 
submitted a paper on same to the National Training Center of 
Polygraph science, results of which were used in the 1972 National 
Training Center Seminar. 

Personally drafted the stipulation form presently used by the 
Kansas City Police Department for court admissability of polygraph 
evidence. Received honorable mention in the Journal of Polygraph 
Studies (Vol. VIII #2 Sept.-Oct. 1973} for contributing to the 
"model" stipulation form recommended by the N.T.P.S. 

Have lectured on proper procedures for the investigator in regards 
to the use of polygraph to numerous detective training classes at 
the Regional Center of Criminal Justice and also at Training 
Classes for Metro Squad Detectives. 

Presently Chairman of Audit Committee AAPP. 

Presently Chairman of Board-Missouri Polygraph Association. 

Have personally drafted proposed polygraph licensing bills 
introduced in Missouri Senate for the past four sessions. 

Have had full re~ponsibility of operation of Polygraph Unit since 
Mr. Johnson retired in 1969. 

Attended and completed courses on Organization and Management, 
Human Relations and Supervisory Training and Police Operations and 
Methods at the University of Kansas City in 1958. 

Have attended numerous supervisory and management courses offered 
by this department during the past several years. 

Have attended seminars and short courses on polygraph as follows: 

1963 - University of Oklahoma - Polygraph Examination Clinic 

1964 University of Oklahoma - Polygraph Examination Clinic 
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1964 - Academy for Scientific Interrogation seminar 
(St. Louis) 

1967 - National Training Center Seminar - New York city 
\ 

1968 - National Training Center Seminar - New York City 

1969 - National Training Center Seminar - New York City 

1970 - National Training Center Seminar - Los Angeles 
American Polygraph Association Seminar - Los Angeles 

1972 - National Training Center Seminar - Chicago 
American Polygraph Association Seminar - Chicago 

1973 - National Training Center Seminar - Jefferson city, MO 
American Polygraph Association Seminar - Miami, FL 

1972/ John E. Reid Seminars, Series I, II, III, IV and 
1974 Interrogation Seminar - Chicago 

1976 - Coordinated Missouri Polygraph Association and Greater 
Kansas City Polygraph Association Seminar - Kansas 
City, Missouri. Conducted by Ronald E. Decker, 
Director, U.S. Army Polygraph School 

1977 - Texas Department of Public Safety Polygraph Seminar -
Austin, Texas 

1977 - Missouri Polygraph Association Seminar - St. Louis 

1978 - American Association of Police Polygraphists Seminar 
- Austin, Texas 

Have accumulated a "Library" of over 20 books and publications 
pertaining to Polygraph Technique. Presently receive periodicals 
from the National Training Center and American Polygraph 
Association on a bi-monthly basis. 

UPDATE: (1982) 

Present Position: 

Chief Polygraphist, Kansas City, Missouri Police Department, 
Polygraph Unit Commander (Equivalent, Captain) Supervising four 
polygraphists. 

Owner, Dunlap-Johnson & Associates (Private Polygraph Business) 
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Additional Training: 

1978 

1978 

1980 

1981 

1981 

Missouri Polygraph Association Seminar, Kansas 
City, R.O. Arther, Seminar Leader. 

American Polygraph Association Seminar, st. Louis. 

Missouri Polygraph Association Seminar, 
Springfield. Dr. Stanley Abrams, Lecturer. 

Missouri Polygraph Association Seminar, Kansas 
City. John F.X. Lyng, Lecturer. 

American Polygraph Association Seminar, Houston, 
Texas 

Have coordinated the Missouri Polygraph Association effort to enact 
a licensing law in Missouri for the past several years. (Since 
1964). 
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DON DUNLAP & ASSOCIATES 
Certified Polygrophlsts 
Personell Consultants 
HCR 66 • Box 150-A IS 
Warsaw. Missouri 65355 

January, 1995 DON DUf.lN'. AC:P. 
TEL~ 816-.dJI~ 

Since retirement from the Kans:1s City, Missouri Police Department in 
, \ 

1985, I have practiced private polygraph testing, conducting examinations 

in criminal and civil cases at the federal and state level and in military 

cases.· 

Since 1989 I have co~ducted polygraph examinations in law enforcement 

cases fo~ the Benton County ].fi.ssouri Sheriff's D~partment as a Deputy Sheriff 

Reserve, i:a cases in Benton County, Henry County, Cooper County and Morgan County. 

My present work involve·s Polygraph work for dozel'ls of attorneys, 

including the Missouri Public Defenders Office, over the Sta.te of Missouri, 

and many in the State of Kansas. 

i 
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I.ESTER I.. DUKE. A.P.A. 

TEl.EPHONE 42 I ·2772 
AREA CODE 81 S 

.. 

DUNLAP· DUKE & AS$0CIATES 
CERTIFIED POL YGRAPHISTS 

SUITE 1045 O?ARK BUll.CING 

11oe GRANO AVENUE 

POST OF~ICE aoz I seo2 

KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64106 

-·:-·:.. -· 
Ju.uary, 1985 

ANNOUNCEMENT 

OON CUNl.AP. A C P .. A.PA 

TELEPHONE 474·44114 

AREA COOE 81 S 

After more than 24 years of law enforcement polygraph experience (9 years 
as a full time Polygraphlst and l5~ years as Chief Poly~raphist) 1 must 
retire from the Kansas City, Missouri Police Department with 30 years 
service. 

I have, for several years, maintained a private polygraph business, 
Dunlap-Johnson & Associates, more recently Dunlap-Duke & Associates, at 
9p6 Grand Avenue. 

Having studied under the most highly qualified polygraph professionals, 
such as John E. Reid, C-hicago, Richard O. Arther, New York, and Kenneth 
Johnson, Kansas City, I believe my background in the polygraph profession 
qualifies me for any Polygraph Consultation and Examinations. 

I plan. to continue my private polygraph practice, conducting polygraph 
examinations in criminal cases, pre-employment screening, internal matters 
and continuous polygraph programs. 

Should you, in the future, have need for my services I would consider it 
a privilege to consult with you. 

i. 
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DON DUNLAP & ASSOCIATES 

Bruce D. Livingston 
Capital Habeas Attorney 

Certflled Polygraphists 
Personal! Consultants 
HCR 66 • Box 150-A 15 

Warsaw. Missouri 65355 

February 20, 1999 

Federal Defenders of Eastern Washington and Idaho 
Capital Habeas Unit 
201 North Main 
Moscow, Idaho 83843 

Dear Sir; 

Re: Roy Michael Roberts 
Polygraph Interview 

As per your request, an appointment was made for a 
polygraph examination of Roy M. Roberts in regard to the 
stabbing of Correction Officer Thomas Jackson which occurred 
on July 3, 1983, at the Missouri Training Center for Men, Moberly, 
Missouri. At 9:44 a.m. on February 19, 1999, Mr. Roberts 
voluntarily submitted for said examination which was conducted 
at the Missouri Department of Corrections, Potosi, Missouri. 

It is the opinion of the polygraphist that deception was 
not indicated in this person's polygraph records when he answered 
the following questions as indicated: 

1. When Jackson was being stabbed, were you holding him 
in any way? Answer, No. 

2. When Jackson was being stabbed, were you holding him by 
the hair? Answer, No. 

3. Just before Jackson was stabbed, did you pin him against 
a door casing? Answer, No. 

4. While Jackson was being stabbed, did you have any physical 
contact with him? Answer, No. 

This opinion is based on recordings of physiological changes 
in the first two relevant charts of the examination. During the 
interview, the subject being uncomfortably cool, asked for his 
jacket. However, due to prisoh regulations, he was not allowed to 
have it in the interview room. Prior to the third (last) relevant 
chart, the 'subject was noticeably shivering which, in the opinion 
o~ the polygraphist, caused distortions in the recordings of the 

RECEIVED 

FEB 2 5 1999 
FEDWsfc°R~~D!~8 OF 
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(Page 2) 
Polygraph Interview 
Roy Michael Roberts 

chart. These distortions do not, in the opinion of the polygraphist, 
indicate deception. 

A form release was signed by the subject prior to the examina­
tion and is incorporated as part of our file in this case. 

DD/sh 

! . 

Respectfully, 

~/L__ /(/& ~ -· 
Don Dunlap, A.C.P. 
Polygraphist 
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I declare under penalty.of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on February 
26, 1999. 

I am Richard Hays, investigator for the Capital Habeas Unit of the Federal Defenders cf 
Eastern Washington and Idaho. I work with the attorneys representing Missouri death row 
inmate Roy Roberts. 

Mr. Roberts was convicted in the killing of a prison guard, Thomas Jackson. During the 
course of my investigation of the Roy Roberts case I interviewed numerous people including 
Michael Dunn. I interviewed Mr. Dunn at an Iowa correctional in Clarinda, Iowa. 

Mr. Dunn testified at Roy Roberts trial in January of 1985. At that time he claimed to 
have seen Roberts hold Tom Jackson while Mr. Jackson was stabbed: When I spoke with Mr. 
Dunn February 19, 1999 he told me that he had Hed at Roy Roberts trial and that he had not seen 
Roberts hold Jackson. Mr. Dunn told me that he lied in order to get parole from the state of 
Missouri. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAITII NAUGHT. 

j. 
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